COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT



SUNNYSIDE EDUCATION ASSOCIATION & SUNNYSIDE SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 201 2022-2024

TABLE OF CONTENTS

PREAMBLE1	
ARTICLE I – ADMINISTRATION1	
SECTION 1. DEFINITIONS SECTION 2. RECOGNITION SECTION 3. REPLACEMENT EMPLOYEES/SUBSTITUTE EMPLOYEES SECTION 4. STATUS OF THE AGREEMENT SECTION 5. CONFORMITY TO LAW SECTION 6. PRINTING/DISTRIBUTION	1 1 2 2 3 3
ARTICLE II - BUSINESS4	
SECTION 1. EMPLOYER'S RIGHTS AND RESPONSIBILITIES SECTION 2. ASSOCIATION RIGHTS SECTION 3. ASSOCIATION LEAVE SECTION 4. DUES DEDUCTIONS AND REPRESENTATION FEES SECTION 5. NO STRIKE SECTION 6. AGREEMENT ADMINISTRATION/INTERPRETATION	4 4 5 5 6 6
ARTICLE III - PERSONNEL7	
SECTION 1. HIRING PRACTICES SECTION 2. ISSUANCE OF CONTRACTS SECTION 3. NON-DISCRIMINATION SECTION 4. DUE PROCESS SECTION 5. PERSONNEL FILES SECTION 6. ASSIGNMENT, VACANCIES, PROMOTION AND TRANSFER SECTION 7. EMPLOYEE FACILITIES SECTION 8. EMPLOYEE PROTECTION SECTION 9. SAFE WORKING CONDITIONS SECTION 10. INAPPROPRIATE BEHAVIOR PROHIBITED SECTION 11. THREAT AND/OR ASSAULT ON AN EMPLOYEE SECTION 12. SOCIAL MEDIA DIRECTED AT EMPLOYEES SECTION 13.COMPLAINTS/CRITICISM SECTION 14. EMPLOYEE RESPONSIBILITY ARTICLE IV.A - OBSERVATION/EVALUATION/PROBATION, PROFESSION	7 7 7 8 9 10 11 12 12 12 13 13 14 15
GROWTH PLAN16	AL
SECTION 1. PURPOSE SECTION 2. APPLICABILITY FOR EVALUATION PROCESSES SECTION 3. CLASSROOM TEACHER EVALUATION PROCESS	16 17 17
ARTICLE IV.B - EVALUATION - PROBATION32 SECTION 1. PURPOSE	32

SECTION 2. PROCEDURE	32
SECTION 3. OBSERVATIONS	33
SECTION 4. EVALUATION REPORT	34
SECTION 5. PROBATIONARY PROCEDURE	34
	36
ARTICLE V - REDUCTION IN FORCE (RIF) AND RECALL37	
SECTION 1. INITIATION OF LAYOFFS	37
	37
	37
SECTION 4. PROCEDURE	38
SECTION 5. RECALL PROCEDURE	39
	39 39
	39 40
	40
ARTICLE VI - INSTRUCTION41	70
	41
	42
	43 44
SECTION 4. CLASS SIZE SECTION 5. RE-EVALUATION OF SPECIAL EDUCATION,	44
EMOTIONALLY/BEHAVIORALLY DISABLED, AND HIGHLY CAPABLE/GIFTED	
,	47
	48
SECTION 7. CURRICULUM	49
SECTION 8. ACADEMIC FREEDOM	50
SECTION 9. CLASSROOM VISITATION	51
	51
	52
SECTION 12. MENTOR TEACHERS	52
SECTION 13. STUDENT TEACHERS	52
SECTION 14. STAFF DEVELOPMENT	52
SECTION 15. VISITATION DAYS SECTION 16. BUILDING BUDGET COMMITTEE	53 54
SECTION 10. BUILDING BUDGET COMMITTEE SECTION 17. TECHNOLOGY COMMITTEE	54
SECTION 17. TECHNOLOGY COMMITTEE SECTION 18. DIVERSITY, EQUITY, AND INCLUSION	54
ARTICLE VII LEAVES56	<i>J</i> .
	<i></i>
SECTION 1. SICK LEAVE SECTION 2. WASHINGTON STATE PAID FAMILY & MEDICAL LEAVE (PFML)	56 57
SECTION 2. WASHINGTON STATE PAID FAMILY & MEDICAL LEAVE (PFML) SECTION 3. FEDERAL FAMILY AND MEDICAL LEAVE ACT (FMLA)	58
SECTION 5. FEDERAL FAMILY AND MEDICAL LEAVE ACT (FMLA) SECTION 4. LEAVE SHARING	58
SECTION 4. LEAVE SHARMO SECTION 5. FAMILY ILLNESS LEAVE	60
SECTION 6. EMERGENCY LEAVE	60
SECTION 7. PERSONAL LEAVE	60

SECTION 1. EMPLOYEE WORK YEAR	66
SECTION 2. WORK DAY/PAYMENT	66
SECTION 3. CONFERENCES	68
SECTION 4. EMERGENCY SCHOOL DELAYED OPENING OR CLOSURE	68
SECTION 5. SUPPLEMENTAL DAYS/TRI/EXTENDED CONTRACTS	69
SECTION 6. HOURLY RATE	71
SECTION 7. JOB SHARING	71
SECTION 8. EDUCATIONAL STAFF ASSOCIATES	71
SECTION 9. SALARY	71
SECTION 10. PROVISIONS GOVERNING EMPLOYEES' SALARY SCHEDULE	72
SECTION 11. 125 PLAN	73
SECTION 12. DEFERRED COMPENSATION	73
SECTION 13. INSURANCE BENEFITS	73 72
SECTION 14. TRAVEL	73
SECTION 15. TUITION REIMBURSEMENT	73
ARTICLE IX - GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE76	
SECTION 1 DEFINITION	76
SECTION 2. PROCEDURE	76
SECTION 3. ARBITRATION COSTS	77
SECTION 3. ARBITRATION COSTS SECTION 4. JURISDICTION OF THE ARBITRATOR	77 77
SECTION 4. JURISDICTION OF THE ARBITRATOR	77
SECTION 4. JURISDICTION OF THE ARBITRATOR SECTION 5. TIME LIMITS	77 78
SECTION 4. JURISDICTION OF THE ARBITRATOR SECTION 5. TIME LIMITS SECTION 6. GRIEVANCE AND ARBITRATION HEARINGS	77 78 78
SECTION 4. JURISDICTION OF THE ARBITRATOR SECTION 5. TIME LIMITS SECTION 6. GRIEVANCE AND ARBITRATION HEARINGS SECTION 7. INDIVIDUAL COMPLAINTS	77 78 78 78
SECTION 4. JURISDICTION OF THE ARBITRATOR SECTION 5. TIME LIMITS SECTION 6. GRIEVANCE AND ARBITRATION HEARINGS SECTION 7. INDIVIDUAL COMPLAINTS SECTION 8. EXCLUSIONS FROM ARBITRATION	77 78 78 78 79 79
SECTION 4. JURISDICTION OF THE ARBITRATOR SECTION 5. TIME LIMITS SECTION 6. GRIEVANCE AND ARBITRATION HEARINGS SECTION 7. INDIVIDUAL COMPLAINTS SECTION 8. EXCLUSIONS FROM ARBITRATION SECTION 9. CONTINUITY OF GRIEVANCE APPENDIX A-1 - SALARY SCHEDULE	77 78 78 78 79 79
SECTION 4. JURISDICTION OF THE ARBITRATOR SECTION 5. TIME LIMITS SECTION 6. GRIEVANCE AND ARBITRATION HEARINGS SECTION 7. INDIVIDUAL COMPLAINTS SECTION 8. EXCLUSIONS FROM ARBITRATION SECTION 9. CONTINUITY OF GRIEVANCE APPENDIX A-1 - SALARY SCHEDULE	77 78 78 78 79 79 81
SECTION 4. JURISDICTION OF THE ARBITRATOR SECTION 5. TIME LIMITS SECTION 6. GRIEVANCE AND ARBITRATION HEARINGS SECTION 7. INDIVIDUAL COMPLAINTS SECTION 8. EXCLUSIONS FROM ARBITRATION SECTION 9. CONTINUITY OF GRIEVANCE APPENDIX A-1 - SALARY SCHEDULE	77 78 78 78 79 79 81
SECTION 4. JURISDICTION OF THE ARBITRATOR SECTION 5. TIME LIMITS SECTION 6. GRIEVANCE AND ARBITRATION HEARINGS SECTION 7. INDIVIDUAL COMPLAINTS SECTION 8. EXCLUSIONS FROM ARBITRATION SECTION 9. CONTINUITY OF GRIEVANCE APPENDIX A-1 - SALARY SCHEDULE	77 78 78 78 79 798182
SECTION 4. JURISDICTION OF THE ARBITRATOR SECTION 5. TIME LIMITS SECTION 6. GRIEVANCE AND ARBITRATION HEARINGS SECTION 7. INDIVIDUAL COMPLAINTS SECTION 8. EXCLUSIONS FROM ARBITRATION SECTION 9. CONTINUITY OF GRIEVANCE APPENDIX A-1 - SALARY SCHEDULE	77 78 78 78 79 798182
SECTION 4. JURISDICTION OF THE ARBITRATOR SECTION 5. TIME LIMITS SECTION 6. GRIEVANCE AND ARBITRATION HEARINGS SECTION 7. INDIVIDUAL COMPLAINTS SECTION 8. EXCLUSIONS FROM ARBITRATION SECTION 9. CONTINUITY OF GRIEVANCE APPENDIX A-1 - SALARY SCHEDULE	77 78 78 78 79 798182
SECTION 4. JURISDICTION OF THE ARBITRATOR SECTION 5. TIME LIMITS SECTION 6. GRIEVANCE AND ARBITRATION HEARINGS SECTION 7. INDIVIDUAL COMPLAINTS SECTION 8. EXCLUSIONS FROM ARBITRATION SECTION 9. CONTINUITY OF GRIEVANCE APPENDIX A-1 - SALARY SCHEDULE	77 78 78 78 79 79818285

APPENDIX C-4 - STUDENT GROWTH GOAL SETTING107
APPENDIX C-5 - STUDENT LEARNING GOAL ASSESSMENT RESULTS
APPENDIX C-6 - FOCUSED EVALUATION REQUEST FORM110
APPENDIX C-7 - SELF ASSESSMENT CRITERIA SUMMARY112
APPENDIX C-8 - PRE-OBSERVATION CONFERENCE FORM116
APPENDIX C-9 - POST-OBSERVATION CONFERENCE FORM118
APPENDIX C-10 - LONG FORM OBSERVATION OF
CERTIFICATED TEACHERS
APPENDIX C-11 - EVALUATION OF CERTIFICATED TEACHERS122
APPENDIX C-12 - SHORT FORM EVALUATION OF
CERTIFICATED TEACHERS
APPENDIX C-13 – LONG FORM OBSERVATION OF
CERTIFICATED SUPPORT STAFF126
APPENDIX C-14 – EVALUATION OF CERTIFICATED SUPPORT\STAFF
APPENDIX C-15 – SHORT FORM EVALUATION OF CERTIFICATED SUPPORT STAFF
APPENDIX D - GRIEVANCE REVIEW REQUEST FORM134
APPENDIX E- JUST CAUSE
Indexii

PREAMBLE

This document is an Agreement between the Sunnyside School District Board of Directors and the Sunnyside Education Association, which is affiliated with the Washington Education Association and the National Education Association. The hours, wages, terms and conditions of employment contained herein have been bargained and agreed to in accordance with the provisions of RCW 41.59, the Educational Employment Relations Act.

ARTICLE I – ADMINISTRATION

SECTION 1. DEFINITIONS

- A. *District/Board* shall mean the Sunnyside School District No. 201, county of Yakima, state of Washington.
- B. *Association* shall mean the Sunnyside Education Association which is affiliated with the Washington Education Association and with the National Education Association.
- C. Parties shall mean the District and the Association as co-signers of the Agreement.
- D. Agreement shall mean the Collective Bargaining Agreement signed by the parties.
- E. *Employee* shall mean a member of the bargaining unit.
- F. **Day** shall mean school day, except during summer when it shall mean weekday except for holidays.
- G. **Superintendent** shall mean the chief administrative officer of the District.
- H. *President* shall mean the presiding officer(s) of the Association.
- I. *Contract* shall mean the individual written contract issued to each employee.
- J. *Act* shall mean the Educational Employment Act, RCW 41.59.
- K. *Negotiations* shall mean collective bargaining as defined in the Act.

SECTION 2. RECOGNITION

The Board hereby recognizes the Association as the sole and exclusive bargaining representative for all full-time and part-time (one-half time or more) certificated personnel whether under contract or on leave and employed by the Board. Such representation shall exclude Superintendent, assistants to the Superintendent, principals and assistant principals, and directors/coordinators. The term "employee" when used hereinafter in the Agreement shall refer to all certificated employees represented by the Association in the bargaining unit as above defined.

SECTION 3. REPLACEMENT EMPLOYEES/SUBSTITUTE EMPLOYEES

- A. Replacement employees are employees hired to replace an employee on a District-approved leave of absence for seventy-five (75) consecutive workdays or more in any one assignment in a given school year. Replacement employees shall be compensated at a per diem rate based on placement on the salary schedule and shall be entitled to the same contractual rights, salary, and benefits accorded to provisional certificated employees.
- B. Replacement employees shall only be entitled to any continuing contract rights as provided by law if the District provides in writing that the replacement employee's employment shall be extended to a permanent basis. If no such written notice is given to the replacement employee prior to the end of the school year in which the replacement employee was hired, the replacement will be given first consideration over new job applicants seeking positions; provided, however, they file a written statement of such desire for the vacancy they seek to fill.
- C. Long-term substitutes employed for a period of time beyond twenty (20) consecutive workdays in any one assignment in a given school year shall be compensated as follows:
 - a) Substitutes holding a certificate other than Conditional or Emergency. will be compensated at a per diem rate based on placement on the salary schedule retroactive to the first day of the assignment.
 - b) Emergency substitutes holding a BA or BS degree will be placed on the salary schedule on the BA(0) line retroactive to the first day of the assignment.
 - c) Emergency substitutes not holding a BA or BS degree will be paid at the Long-Term Emergency Substitute rate of 83% of the BA+0 cell per day retroactive to the first day of the assignment.
 - Excused absence shall be considered uninterrupted service. These employees do not accrue seniority, benefits, or other contractual rights. After thirty (30) continuous days in an assignment, the long-term substitute will be the subject of one (1) formal observation consistent with Article IV, Section 3.
- D. Casual substitutes shall be paid at the Board approved rate and do not accrue seniority, benefits, or other contractual rights.

SECTION 4. STATUS OF THE AGREEMENT

- A. This Agreement shall become effective when ratified by the Board and the Association and executed by authorized representatives thereof.
- B. Violations of this Agreement by the administration shall be resolved with the proper and timely use of the Grievance Procedure.
- C. Violation of this Agreement by members of the bargaining unit and their representatives will be subject to appropriate discipline by the District.

- D. This Agreement shall supersede any rules, regulations, policies, resolutions, or practices of the District which shall be contrary to or inconsistent with its terms.
- E. Unless otherwise provided in this Agreement, nothing contained herein shall be interpreted and/or applied so as to eliminate, reduce or otherwise detract from current individual salaries and economic benefits.
- F. During years and/or periods of time in between contract ratification and the contract end date, the District and SEA will participate in interest-based bargaining as needed. Any new SEA and District agreed to language will be put into practice.

SECTION 5. CONFORMITY TO LAW

If any provision of this Agreement is held to be invalid by operation of law, or a tribunal of competent jurisdiction, such provision shall become inoperative, but the remainder of the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect for the duration of this Agreement. In the event a provision(s) is determined to be contrary to law as stated above, such provision shall be re-negotiated. Negotiation shall commence within a reasonable amount of time after receipt of the written decision.

SECTION 6. PRINTING/DISTRIBUTION

- A. Within thirty (30) days following the ratification and signing of this Agreement by the parties, both chief negotiators will proofread and prepare a final draft copy for printing. All certificated individuals making employment applications to the District shall be provided access to the Agreement for their examination. If copies of the Agreement are printed, the cost of printing shall be shared equally between the Board and the Association. The Association shall provide access to the Agreement to each member of the bargaining unit and shall bear the exclusive responsibility of notifying the members of the bargaining unit of the various provisions of the Agreement.
- B. There shall be two (2) signed copies of the final Agreement for the purpose of records. One (1) shall be retained by the District and one (1) by the Association. Both the Superintendent and the Chief Negotiators shall sign a verification that the proofs have been read prior to printing.

ARTICLE II - BUSINESS

SECTION 1. EMPLOYER'S RIGHTS AND RESPONSIBILITIES

It is understood and agreed that with the exception of the expressed provisions of the Collective Bargaining Agreement, the Board retains all rights and responsibilities that have been granted or imposed on it by law, rules and regulations of federal, state, county, and all other regulatory agencies.

SECTION 2. ASSOCIATION RIGHTS

- A. The Association and its representatives will be allowed to use District buildings for meetings when rooms are available and scheduled with the building principal for the purpose of transacting Association business.
- B. The Association will be allowed to use District facilities and equipment including computers with internet access, copy equipment, calculating machines and all types of audiovisual equipment at reasonable times when such equipment is not otherwise in use. All consumable items used will be paid for by the Association. The Association agrees to repair any equipment damaged as a result of its use. The Association will schedule the use of equipment with the building principal.
- C. The Association will be allowed to post notices of activities and matters of Association concern on bulletin boards in each faculty lounge of each building in the District upon notification of the principal.
- D. The Association will be allowed to use the District mail/email service and employee mailboxes for communication purposes so long as such communications are labeled as Association materials and shall not constitute an unfair labor practice.
- E. Upon request the District shall provide to the Association information as required under the statute which will assist the Association in carrying out its responsibility as the bargaining representative.
- F. The Association and its representatives will have access to all employees during times which will not interrupt instruction. Representatives duly authorized by the Association who participate during working hours in negotiations, grievance proceedings, or meetings with representatives of the District, shall suffer no loss of pay. In a work stoppage, the above provisions may be withheld.
- G. The association shall be afforded a one (1) hour block of time during the workday to meet with new employees as a group on the new employee orientation day, prior to the first student instruction day.
- H. The association shall be guaranteed a minimum of a two (2) hour block of time on the district welcome back day immediately following the district kickoff to conduct a general membership meeting. Upon request, the district may approve additional time for the meeting as needed.

SECTION 3. ASSOCIATION LEAVE

- A. Thirty (30) days of professional leave shall be provided for Association business. This applies to members of the Association for meetings or conferences, or negotiations when mutually agreed to, or other Association business. The thirty (30) days shall be provided for the total staff, and this provision shall not be interpreted to mean that thirty (30) days leave may apply to each Association officer or staff member.
- B. Requests for leave shall be submitted in writing by the Association president to the Superintendent two (2) days before the leave is to take effect. The reason for the leave is to be clearly stated.
- C. The Superintendent shall acknowledge receipt of the request to the Association President, the principal and the employee taking such leave. The cost of the substitute shall be paid by the Association. The certificated employee shall suffer no loss in any other benefits. Upon return from leave, the employee shall complete the proper leave form as provided by the District.

SECTION 4. DUES DEDUCTIONS AND REPRESENTATION FEES

- A. On or before August 25 of each school year, the Association shall give written notice to the Board of the dollar amount of dues and assessments of the Association including the National Education Association and the Washington Education Association, which dues and assessments are to be deducted in the coming school year under all payroll deductions. The total for these deductions shall not be subject to change during the school year.
- B. Association Dues Reference RCW 41.59.060. The Association, which is the legally recognized exclusive bargaining representative of the certificated staff as described in the Recognition Clause of this Collective Bargaining Agreement, shall have the right to have deducted from the salary of members of the Association, upon receipt of a written authorization form, an amount equal to the fees and dues required for membership in the Association.
 - 1. The dues deduction form and authorization shall remain in effect from year to year, unless withdrawn in writing by the employee. Dues deduction forms must be delivered to the Human Resources Department within sixty (60) days from the start of school, or within sixty (60) days of an individual's signing of deduction form.
- C. **Representation Fees** Reference RCW 41.59.100. No member of the bargaining unit will be required to join the Association; however, those employees who are not Association members but are members of the bargaining unit will be required to pay a representation fee to the Association. The amount of the representation fee will be determined by the Association, and transmitted to the Human Resources Department in writing. The representation fee shall be regarded as fair compensation and

reimbursement to the Association for fulfilling its legal obligation to represent all members of the bargaining unit (*Reference RCW 41.59.090*).

- 1. In the event that the representation fee is regarded by an employee as a violation of their right to non-association, such bona fide objections will be resolved according to the provisions of RCW 41.59.100, or the Public Employment Relations Commission.
- 2. The Association agrees to defend and hold the District harmless against any legal action brought against the District in reference to the Representation Fee deduction.

SECTION 5. NO STRIKE

The Association agrees only during the term of this Agreement not to participate nor encourage participation in any strike, work stoppage or slow-down.

SECTION 6. AGREEMENT ADMINISTRATION/INTERPRETATION

Upon request by either party, the Association officials and District administrators shall meet at mutually agreeable times to discuss school problems relating to interpretation or compliance with this Collective Bargaining Agreement. When a request is made, the meeting shall be held within a reasonable amount of time.

ARTICLE III - PERSONNEL

SECTION 1. HIRING PRACTICES

- A. The Board shall in all circumstances employ employees who are properly credentialed in accordance with applicable state laws, Washington Administrative Code and by such other requirements as specified by the Office of the State Superintendent of Public Instruction. In the instance the board intends to hire an applicant who requires a conditional or emergency certificate over applicants who are fully certified, the HR director will notify the SEA President(s).
- B. When a new certificated employee is hired/rehired, the district shall notify the Association in writing within five (5) business days. The type of certificate held by each new hire will be included in the notification to the Association.
- C. Non-certificated personnel shall not be assigned to perform work in the instructional setting (classroom) which will substitute or replace an employee in his/her assignment or employment. All certificated personnel within the bargaining unit shall be placed on the annual salary schedule in accordance with the criteria for salary schedule placement as contained in the Collective Bargaining Agreement.
- D. Job postings will be listed for a minimum of five (5) days. No job will be filled by a person holding a conditional or emergency certificate until it has been posted for 10 days.
- E. An employee hired with a conditional or emergency certificate, not having completed one or more assessments (i.e. NES, EdTPA, etc.) shall be hired for one year only. If by May 15th of that school year, a non-conditional or non-emergency certificate has been obtained, a contract will be reissued; otherwise the job will be posted.
- F. An employee hired with a conditional or emergency certificate, who is currently enrolled in a teacher prep program that takes more than one year to complete will be hired for two years. If by May 15th of the second year, a non-conditional or non-emergency certificate has been obtained, a contract will be reissued; otherwise the job will be posted. An exception will be made if the employee can provide notification from the preparation program that they will have completed their certificate by June 30th of that year.
- G. When a certificated employee transfers to another position within the district, the district shall notify the Association within five (5) business days.

SECTION 2. ISSUANCE OF CONTRACTS

A. All individual employee personal service contracts shall be subject to and consistent with Washington State law and the term and conditions of this Agreement. If any

- individual employee personal service contract contains any language inconsistent with this Agreement, this Agreement shall be controlling.
- B. Individual contracts for employees of the District shall not be issued before May 15 and shall be returned by June 15. A contract will be emailed to the employee each year for electronic signature. The length of the signed teacher contract shall be defined in Article VIII Fiscal, Section 1 Employee Work Year. Any extension of contracted days shall be computed and paid at per diem of the individual's annual contracted rate of pay.
- C. Any employee wishing to terminate his/her employment from the District shall be issued a release from contract until August 1. The district may allow an employee to terminate his/her contract prior to August 15 only when a suitable replacement is hired.
- D. The salary for ROTC is determined by the Army. ROTC staff are entitled to all other contractual rights.

SECTION 3. NON-DISCRIMINATION

A. There shall be no discrimination against any employee or applicant for employment by reason of race, creed, color, marital status, gender, sexual orientation, age, disability, national origin, or because of their membership in employee organizations; and the Board will not discriminate against any employee with respect to hours, wages, or any terms or conditions of employment by reason of his/her membership in the Association, his/her participation in collective negotiations with the Board, or his/her institution of any grievance, complaint, or proceeding under this Agreement. The Association and the District will cooperate to assure compliance with District policies and non-discrimination laws.

SECTION 4. DUE PROCESS

- A. No employee shall be disciplined including warnings, reprimands, suspensions, discharges, termination or other actions that would adversely affect the employee, without just and sufficient cause. Such discipline shall be in private. In addition, the District agrees to follow, when appropriate, a policy of progressive discipline which may begin with a verbal warning, progress to a written reprimand, then to suspension with loss of pay and when required by the circumstances, include discharge or non-renewal. The District will utilize Just Cause 7 Key Tests in determining action and procedure in discipline cases (See Appendix E).
- B. This provision shall specifically extend to all extended day and extended year employee contracts.
- C. When an administrator directs a member to attend a meeting/discussion/conversation with an administrator the topic of the discussion will be made known to the member

- at the time of the request/notification and a meeting time will be mutually decided. Meeting will be held within a reasonable timeframe.
- D. Prior to any meeting where an employee is formally questioned by a supervisor for the purpose of seeking information which may be used as the basis for disciplinary action such as a written reprimand, suspension, discharge or non-renewal, the employee shall be advised that she/he is entitled to request and to have a representative of the Association as determined by the member, SEA president(s), and/or legal representative present at the meeting and any meeting relating to such discipline.
- E. Complaints made against an employee that may lead to discipline will be called to the attention of the employee within five (5) school days. Any complaint not called to the attention of the employee may not be used as the basis for any disciplinary action against the employee.
- F. Employees shall be entitled to full rights of citizenship and no religious or political activities outside of the classroom of any employee or the lack thereof shall be grounds for any discipline or discrimination with respect to the professional employment of such employee.
- G. An employee has the right to have a representative from the Association as determined by the member, SEA president(s), and/or counsel present when formally being reprimanded, warned, disciplined or adversely affected. All information forming the basis of any reprimand, warning, discipline or adverse effect shall be made available to the employee.

SECTION 5. PERSONNEL FILES

- A. Employees or former employees shall upon request have the right to inspect all contents of their complete personnel file kept within the District. All inspections of files shall be by appointment. Upon request, a copy of any documents contained therein shall be afforded the employee at cost. No secret, alternate, electronic, or other official personnel file shall be kept anywhere in the District. A separate file for processed grievances, if any, shall be kept apart from the employee's personnel file.
- B. Anyone, at the employee's request, may be present in this review.
- C. Any derogatory material not shown to an employee within a reasonable time after receipt or composition shall not be allowed as evidence in any grievance or in any disciplinary action against such employee.
- D. No evaluation, correspondence or other material making derogatory reference to an employee's competence, character, or manner shall be kept or placed in the personnel file without the employee's knowledge and exclusive right to attach his/her own written comments.
- E. All information documenting any reprimand, warning, discipline, or adverse effect shall be-kept in the personnel file for three (3) years. Such material three (3) years old

- or older shall be expunged from the file at the employee's written request unless otherwise required by law.
- F. Upon request by the employee, the Superintendent or his/her official designee shall sign an inventory sheet prepared by the employee to verify contents of the personnel file at the time of inspection by said employee.

SECTION 6. ASSIGNMENT, VACANCIES, PROMOTION AND TRANSFER

A. General Provisions.

- 1. To assure that pupils are taught by employees working within their areas of competence, employees shall not be assigned except in accordance with the regulations of the State Board of Education and Federal guidelines, to subjects, grades and/or other classes outside their teaching certificates and/or their major or minor fields of study or qualification in specialty areas, unless the provisions of layoff and recall procedures require otherwise. Employees shall be notified in writing not later than the close of school of any changes in their programs and schedules for the ensuing school year, including teaching programs, assignments and special assignments. This requirement may be waived in case of emergency.
- 2. The District agrees to notify the Association President of job openings by email.
- B. **Voluntary Transfer.** In determination of assignments and transfers, the convenience and work of the employee shall be considered to the extent that these considerations do not conflict with the educational program. As to employees who desire a transfer or reassignment, the following procedure shall be used.
 - 1. All vacancies, new positions, and partial assignments shall be posted by the district so employees interested in the position can submit an internal application through the District's on-line application system.
 - A. At the middle level, the Principal will notify staff via email of assignments less than .5 FTE and gather the affected grade level/department to determine assignment. Assignments will be decided by the grade level/department. If they are unable to come to an agreement, transfer language will apply.
 - 2. All vacancies, new positions, and partial assignments shall be filled on the basis of qualifications for the position. Employees within the same building as the vacant position shall be given first consideration. Employees holding a non-conditional or non-emergency certificate will be hired over employees holding conditional or emergency certificates first issued in 2020 or later. If two (2) employees have equal qualifications, as determined by the District in the job posting, the most senior will fill the position.
 - 3. The District shall make all possible effort to fill vacancies and new positions with their present teaching staff before out-of-district hiring can occur.

- 4. When a person on a continuing contract moves into a 1-year-only position within the same certification, the 1-year-only position will be assigned to the vacated position.
- 5. A voluntary transfer request may be denied by the District under the following circumstances:
 - A. The employee is provisional, or
 - B. The individual's final overall evaluation is "unsatisfactory" or basic, or
 - C. The individual's final overall evaluation has two or more categories marked "area for growth".
- D. the employee holds a conditional or emergency certificate first issued in 2020 or later.

The District may consider extenuating circumstances.

A denial of transfer is subject to the grievance process as stated in Article IV - Grievance Procedure

- C. **Involuntary Transfer**. Each transfer will be considered on its own merits and will be made in keeping with the best interests of the instructional program of the District. The Superintendent shall notify the affected employee in writing of the reasons for such transfer before the change is to become effective. In situations where two (2) employees are equally qualified of filling an involuntary transfer, as determined by the District in the job posting, the least senior employee shall be involuntarily transferred.
- D. Involuntary Transfer Occurring After the Start of School. If an involuntary transfer becomes necessary after the start of school, the District will first ask for a qualified volunteer within the affected building. The volunteer must express their willingness to transfer in writing. If no volunteer is available, the District will make the transfer decision considering teacher seniority (Article V, Section 3), best interest and least disruption to the instructional program. In addition the District will provide the individual being transferred two (2) paid days for moving and setting up.
- E. When employees are transferred due to a building closure, the opening of a new building, or otherwise involuntarily transferred, the employer will provide physical assistance and transportation for instructional supplies, materials, and equipment for the affected employee(s).

SECTION 7. EMPLOYEE FACILITIES

- A. Each building shall maintain a supply of basic office supplies and shall whenever practical have the following facilities and equipment:
 - 1. adequate space in each classroom to safely store instructional materials and supplies;

- 2. a work area containing adequate equipment and supplies to aid in the preparation of instructional materials;
- 3. a furnished faculty lounge separate from any work area and equipped with a local only telephone line and instrument;
- 4. a serviceable desk and chair and a filing cabinet of adequate size in each classroom;
- 5. a communication system between classrooms and the main office;
- 6. well-lighted and clean restrooms, separate for each sex and separate from student restrooms.
- B. In order to permit freedom of access both during and after regular school hours, all employees will be given keys to their classroom, faculty lounge, work area and outside door of their assigned building.
- C. An adequate part of the parking lot at each school will be reserved for employee parking.
- D. The Board and the Association mutually agree that many of the above conditions now exist. Where there are deficiencies in the above, effort, where financially feasible, will be made to implement this provision.

SECTION 8. EMPLOYEE PROTECTION

- A. The District shall provide employees with liability insurance covering injury to persons and their property, and insurance protecting employees from loss or damage of their personal property incurred while engaged in the maintenance of order and discipline and the protection of school personnel and students, and the property thereof when that is deemed necessary by such employees as outlined by RCW 28A.400.370.
- B. The District will render assistance to the employee in connection with handling of the incident by law enforcement authorities.

SECTION 9. SAFE WORKING CONDITIONS

No employee will be required to remain in any building or area that has been evacuated because of potentially hazardous conditions.

SECTION 10. INAPPROPRIATE BEHAVIOR PROHIBITED

- A. Employees should not be subjected to harassment, intimidation, inappropriate behavior or interference by a parent, student, co-worker, or any other person in the performance of the employee's duties. Employees will not be expected to remain in any meeting or activity in which prohibited behavior occurs.
- B. Administrators will take appropriate steps so that employees are not subjected to further harassment, inappropriate behavior, or interference.
- C. Staff members, who believe they have been the subject of harassment, intimidation, inappropriate behavior or interference, or who have witnessed any of these, will report the incident in a timely manner to the immediate supervisor. The immediate supervisor shall report this information to the Superintendent and SEA President.

Further action as deemed appropriate will be taken (which may include reporting the incident to law enforcement authorities). The results of the investigation will be reported to the complainant.

SECTION 11. THREAT AND/OR ASSAULT ON AN EMPLOYEE

- A. The District shall take reports of threats and assault seriously.
- B. Any case of a threat and/or assault upon an employee by any person, including a student, parent, guardian, or co-worker shall promptly be reported to the employee's supervisor or designee.
- C. The District shall meet with the employee about the allegation of a threat or assault.
- D. The District shall inform the employee of any disciplinary action taken against the student.
- E. The District acknowledges the extraordinary impact that serious threats an assault on staff members have on the educational process and will, therefore, take disciplinary action for exceptional misconduct.
 - 1. Such disciplinary action may include long-term suspension, expulsion or emergency expulsion whenever appropriate in accordance with student due process rights and all applicable laws and regulations.
 - 2. Pursuant to RCW 28A.600.460, a student committing an assault or any offense listed in chapter 9A.36, 9A.40, 9A.46, or 9A.48, when the activity is directed toward the teacher, shall not be assigned to that teacher's classroom for the duration of the student's attendance at that school or any other school where the teacher is assigned.
- F. The District shall inform the employee of the legal rights and alternative courses of action available to the employee. Employees assaulted and injured by students will file a Worker's Compensation claim in accordance with District Policy. When absence or disability results from injury sustained in the course of employment, employees shall suffer no loss in wages or other benefits. No part of such employee absence will be charged to sick leave. When the employee receives workers compensation, the District shall only be liable for the difference between the employee's wage and the amount of worker's compensation awarded.
- H. The District will refer reports of threats and assault to the authorities as appropriate.

SECTION 12. SOCIAL MEDIA DIRECTED AT EMPLOYEES

In the event that the district is made aware, through the report of an employee or other sources, that a social media or other web site is being used to libel, slander, (RCW 9.58.010) or impersonate a member of the bargaining unit, then the district will take the following steps:

- The immediate supervisor shall report this information to the Superintendent and SEA President. Further action as deemed appropriate will be taken (which may include reporting the incident to law enforcement authorities). The results of the investigation will be reported to the complainant.
- 2. The district will make a reasonable effort to determine the source of the material.
- 3. If the material has been created or posted by a student or students within the district, the district will take disciplinary action against such students due to the nexus between the posted material and the reputation and professional standing of the educator. Such discipline will be administered in a manner consistent with the severity and impact of the Internet content and the legal rights of the offending student.
- 4. The district will contact the host of the site on which such material has been posted, alerting them to the slanderous/libelous nature of the posted information. The district will request that the entity hosting the site remove the material or, at minimum, clearly tag the material as not being posted or endorsed by the district and its employee.
- 5. At the election of the impacted teacher, the offending student will be removed from that teacher's class for the remainder of the academic year.
- 6. The district will initiate a complaint with law enforcement officials at the request of the impacted teacher, and will provide support for the investigation and prosecution of any potential or actual charges.

SECTION 13. COMPLAINTS/CRITICISM

- A. Any written complaint made against an employee by any parent, student, or to the other person will be promptly called to the attention of the employee. Any written complaint not called to the attention of the employee may not be used as the basis for any reprimand, discipline or discharge.
- B. Any criticism of any employee by a supervisor, administrator, or other agent of the employer shall be made in confidence and never in the presence of students, parents, other employees, or at public gatherings, if possible. All critiques shall be confidential.

SECTION 14. EMPLOYEE RESPONSIBILITY

The employee shall care for instructional materials and equipment and shall promptly report damages, loss, theft of equipment, furniture or fixtures to his/her supervisor. Assistance will be provided to help inventory textbooks and supplemental materials at the end of each school year upon request.

ARTICLE IV.A - OBSERVATION/EVALUATION/PROBATION, PROFESSIONAL GROWTH PLAN

SECTION 1. PURPOSE

The evaluation procedure set forth herein provides for a growth mindset to be maintained by all parties toward the development and improvement of the instructional program of the District. The evaluation procedure recognizes high levels of performance and encourages improvement in specific identifiable areas, and provides support for professional growth through the systematic assessment of employee performance. Within the selected instructional framework teachers will be allowed to exercise their professional judgment and will be evaluated on their own practice, skills, and knowledge.

The parties agree that the following evaluation system for all employees in the bargaining unit is to be implemented in a manner consistent with good faith and mutual respect, and, as defined in RCW 28A.405.110:

- 1. An evaluation system must be meaningful, helpful, and objective;
- 2. an evaluation system must encourage improvements in teaching skill, techniques, and abilities by identifying areas needing improvement;
- an evaluation system must provide a mechanism to make meaningful distinctions among teachers and to acknowledge, recognize, and encourage superior teaching performance; and
- 4. an evaluation system must encourage respect in the evaluation process by the persons conducting the evaluations and the person's subject to the evaluations through recognizing the importance of objective standards and minimizing subjectivity."

Additionally, the parties agree that the evaluation process is one that will be implemented with collaboration between the evaluator and the bargaining unit member, as described in WAC 392-191-025:

- 1. To identify in consultation with classroom teachers and certificated support personnel observed, particular areas in which their professional performance is satisfactory or outstanding, and particular areas in which the classroom teacher or support person needs to improve his or her performance.
- 2. To assist classroom teachers and certificated support personnel, who have identified areas needing improvement, in making those improvements.
- 3. To identify classroom teachers or certificated support personnel whose professional performance is unsatisfactory and for whom remediation is needed.

EVALUATOR QUALIFICATIONS:

All assigned evaluators shall receive annual training in the evaluation processes they will be assigned to conduct that are contained in Article IV of the Agreement and related appendices. Within fifteen (15) school days of the beginning of the school year the

District shall provide the Association with dates and content of the training that each Evaluator has completed.

The District shall report confidentially to the Association President and Chief Grievance Officer the prior year's principal summative evaluation score for each administrator receiving an overall basic evaluation. No principal with an overall basic evaluation will evaluate a teacher with an overall basic evaluation from the previous year, unless by mutual agreement.

The principal/administrator in the school of the employee's primary assignment will evaluate each employee, unless by mutual agreement.

Under extenuating circumstances, an employee may request in writing an alternative evaluator. This request must be submitted in writing by September 5.

SECTION 2. APPLICABILITY FOR EVALUATION PROCESSES

The evaluation processes to be utilized for employees shall be as follows:

As used in this section "certificated classroom teacher" and "teacher" mean a certificated employee who provides academically- focused instruction to students and holds one or more of the certificates pursuant to WAC 181-79A-140(1) through (3) and (6)(a) through (e) and (g). It does not include Educational Staff Associates (ESA), Nurses, Counselors, Social Workers, Media Specialists/Librarians, Instructional Coaches, School Psychologists, and Speech Language Pathologists, as they will remain under the previous evaluation system. (See Article IV.B)

SECTION 3. CLASSROOM TEACHER EVALUATION PROCESS

This process applies to certificated staff with an assigned group of students for whom they provide academically focused instruction and grades.

No teacher shall be evaluated by an evaluator who has not been trained in observation, evaluation, and the use of the specific instructional framework and rubrics contained in this agreement and any relevant state or federal requirements. New evaluators may begin observations and collecting evidence before training is complete.

3.1 PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Prior to being evaluated under Article IV, each teacher shall receive adequate professional development to comprehend the framework and understand the evaluation process. All funding provided by the state specific to the purpose of professional development for evaluation shall be used for that purpose, provided that this money shall not supplant any other district/state/federal funds designed for other professional development purposes or are otherwise negotiated in other provisions of this Agreement.

By September 15th, each employee shall be given a copy of the evaluation criteria, procedures, and any relevant forms and information appropriate to the teacher's position and track in the evaluation cycle.

3.2 DEFINITIONS, STATE CRITERIA, FRAMEWORK, AND SCORING

A. Definitions

- 1. Criteria shall mean one of the eight (8) state defined categories to be scored.
- 2. Indicator shall mean the sub-section of each criterion.
- 3. Evaluator shall mean a certificated administrator who has been trained in observation, evaluation and the use of the specific instructional framework and rubrics contained in this agreement and any relevant state or federal requirements. The evaluator shall assist the teacher by providing support and resources.
- 4. Artifacts shall mean any products generated, developed or used by a certificated teacher. Artifacts should not be created specifically for the evaluation system. Additionally, tools or forms used in the evaluation process may be considered as artifacts.
- 5. Evidence shall mean examples or observable practices of the teacher's ability and skill in relation to the instructional framework rubric. Evidence collection is not intended to mirror a Pro-Teach or National Boards portfolio but rather is a sampling of data to inform the decision about level of performance. It should be gathered from the normal course of employment. Input from students, parents, co-workers, or any other source shall not be used as evidence unless it is initiated and agreed upon by the teacher.
- 6. Not Satisfactory shall mean:
 - Level 1: Unsatisfactory Receiving a summative score of 1 is not considered satisfactory performance for a teacher.
 - Level 2: Basic If the classroom teacher is on a continuing contract with than five years of teaching experience and if a summative score of 2 has been received two years in a row or two years within a consecutive three-year period, the teacher is not considered performing at a satisfactory level.
- 7. Student Growth Data shall mean the change in student achievement between two points in time within the current school year, as determined by the teacher. Decisions on assessments used to demonstrate growth must originate at the classroom level and be initiated by the classroom teacher. Assessments used to demonstrate growth must be appropriate, relevant, and may include both formative and summative measures.

B. State Evaluation Criteria:

The evaluative criteria must contain as a minimum the criteria established by the superintendent of public instruction. These criteria shall be revised upon any revisions made by OSPI. The minimum criteria shall include:

- 1. Centering instruction on high expectations for student achievement,
- 2. Demonstrating effective teaching practices,

- 3. Recognizing individual student learning needs and developing strategies to address those needs,
- 4. Providing clear and intentional focus on subject matter content and curriculum,
- 5. Fostering and managing a safe, positive learning environment,
- 6. Using multiple data elements to modify instruction and improve student earning,
- 7. Communicating and collaborating with parents and the school community, and
- 8. Exhibiting collaborative and collegial practices focused on improving instructional practices and student learning.

C. Instructional Framework

The parties have agreed to the adopted evidence-based instructional framework developed by the University of Washington Center for Education Leadership (CEL) Five Dimensions of Teaching and Learning (5D+). The instructional framework is included in Appendix C-1.

If an adopted instructional framework is contrary to or inconsistent with the terms and conditions of the Collective Bargaining Agreement, the Agreement shall prevail.

Upon mutual agreement, the parties may negotiate a different approved instructional framework.

D. Criterion Performance Scoring

- 1. Each rating will be assigned the following numeric values:
 - a. Unsatisfactory 1
 b. Basic 2
 c. Proficient 3
 d. Distinguished 4
- 2. The final criterion score shall be determined by the Overall Rating Range as set forth in the Final Comprehensive Summative Evaluation Form (Appendix C-2).

E. Final (Summative) Performance Rating

A classroom teacher shall receive a summative performance rating for each of the eight (8) state evaluation criteria. No area on the final evaluation shall be marked as unsatisfactory without first having been brought to the attention of the employee. The overall summative score is determined by totaling the eight (8) criterion-level scores as follows:

- 1. 8-14 Unsatisfactory
- 2. 15-21 Basic
- 3. 22-28 Proficient
- 4. 29-32 Distinguished

- F. Student Growth Criterion Score
- 1. Embedded in the instructional framework are five (5) components designated as student growth components. These components are embedded in criteria as SG 3.1, SG 3.2, SG 6.1, SG 6.2, and ST 8.1. Evaluators add up the raw score on these components and the employee is given a score of low, average, or high based on the scores as follows:
 - a. 5-12 Low
 - b. 13-17 Average
 - c. 18-20 High
- 2. Student growth data must be a substantial factor in evaluating the summative performance of certificated classroom teachers as directed, required, and defined by the Office of the Superintendent of Public Instruction. Student growth means the change in student achievement between two points in time within the current school year as determined by the teacher.
 - a. The teacher shall consult with the evaluator to identify student growth and achievement data that are relevant to the teacher and subject matter that will be used in assessment of the state required student growth components. (Appendix C-4)
 - b. The evaluator's determination of proficiency level ratings must be based on multiple measures that can include classroom-based, school-based, district-based, and state-based tools.
- 3. An overall student growth score shall be generated for each teacher following the rules and procedures issued by OSPI and as they may be revised from time to time. Ratings will be "low", "average" or "high" as defined by OSPI. (Appendix C-5)
 - a. A classroom teacher with a preliminary summative evaluation of Distinguished with a Low student growth rating will receive an overall summative Proficient rating.
 - b. Conduct of a student growth inquiry. Within two months of the teacher receiving the low student growth score or at the beginning of the following school year, whichever is later, one or more of the following must be initiated by the evaluator in collaboration with the teacher:
 - i. Examine student growth data in conjunction with other evidence including observation, artifacts, and other student and teacher information based on appropriate classroom, school, district and state-based tools and practices and/or;
 - ii. Examine extenuating circumstances which may include one or more of the following: goal setting process; content and expectations; attendance; extent to which curriculum, standards, and assessments are aligned and/or iii. Schedule monthly conferences focused on improving student growth to include one or more of the following topics: student growth goal revisions, refinement, and progress; best practices related to instructional areas in need of attention; best practices related to student growth data collection and interpretations and/or:
 - iv. Create and implement a professional development plan to address student growth areas.

c. A classroom teacher with preliminary summative evaluation rating of Unsatisfactory who has a high student growth rating will be reviewed by the evaluator's supervisor.

3.3 PROCEDURAL COMPONENTS OF EVALUATION

A. Notification

The teacher will be notified by September 15th of their evaluator and whether the teacher will be evaluated using a comprehensive or focused evaluation.

B. Student Growth Goal Setting

By October 1st the teacher shall determine a student growth goal in collaboration with the evaluator and/or PLC for Components SG-3.1, SG-6.1, and SG-8.1 on a goal setting form (Appendix C-4). The goals for SG-6.1 and SG-8.1 may be the same goal or interrelated.

C. Evidence and Artifacts

- The evaluator will collect and share artifacts and evidence necessary to complete
 the evaluation. Evaluator observation data and notes of evaluative conversations
 with the teacher and the completed negotiated forms contained in this Agreement
 shall serve as the primary evidence and artifacts for the evaluation process.
 Additional artifacts and evidence shall be utilized as needed to complete the
 record of the evaluation.
- 2. The teacher may provide additional artifacts and evidence to aid in the assessment of the teacher's professional performance against the instructional framework rubric, especially for those criteria not observed in the classroom. The evidence provided by the teacher shall be used to determine the final evaluation score.
- 3. A teacher may, but shall not be required to, submit artifacts and evidence for completion of the evaluation, other than student growth data.
- 4. Input from students, parents, co-workers, or any other source shall not be used as evidence unless initiated by the teacher.

D. Record-Keeping

The District shall adhere to the following:

The evaluator may keep an evaluation folder that will include evaluator working notes, records and materials relevant to the teacher's performance and evaluation forms. "Working notes" are those notes created by an evaluator. The completed evaluation forms shall be transferred to the classroom teacher's personnel file at the end of the school year. The evaluator may also maintain a copy of working notes and completed evaluation forms in the evaluation folder from year to year so long as he/she continues as the evaluator for that classroom teacher by mutual agreement. Once an evaluator is no longer the evaluator of a particular classroom teacher, all copies of working notes and completed evaluation forms will be destroyed. Teachers shall not be required to share personal assessment information with any electronic data collection system. Any and all data or other electronic data collection system, should be considered confidential.

E. Electronic Monitoring

All observations shall be conducted openly. Electronic devices shall not be used to listen to or record the procedures of any class, without the prior knowledge and consent of the teacher.

3.4. COMPREHENSIVE EVALUATION

The comprehensive Evaluation is a growth-oriented, teacher/evaluator collaborative process that requires teachers to be evaluated on the eight state criteria.

A. All classroom teachers shall receive a comprehensive summative evaluation at least once every six (6) years. A comprehensive cumulative evaluation assesses all eight evaluation criteria and all criteria contribute to the comprehensive summative evaluation performance rating. Each teacher will be notified prior to Sept. 15th whether they will be evaluated on the comprehensive or focused evaluation.

- B. The following categories of classroom teachers shall receive an annual comprehensive summative evaluation:
 - 1. Classroom teachers who are provisional employees under RCW 28A.405.220 shall be evaluated using the comprehensive process during each year of their provisional status.
 - 2. Any classroom teacher who received a comprehensive summative evaluation performance rating of Level 1 or Level 2 in the previous school year.
 - 3. Any employee who returns from a leave of absences of one year or greater will be on a comprehensive evaluation.

C. Observation cycle

1.Pre-observation conference

A pre-observation conference shall be held prior to the first observation. The teacher and evaluator will mutually agree when to conference. When possible, the conference shall be held in the teacher's classroom to facilitate the documentation of artifacts and evidence. The purpose of the pre-observation conference is to discuss:

- a. student growth goals
- b. set the date of the first observation

The discussion may also include:

- c. professional growth goals
- d. professional activities to be observed and possible observable evidence to meet the scoring criteria.
- e. self-assessment
- f. a pre-observation conference form (Appendix C-8) may be referenced during this conference as guiding questions

2. Observations

A. The first observation for each employee shall be conducted by the second Friday in December. This observation will be a minimum of 30 minutes.

- B. The observation will occur no later than five (5) school days after the pre-observation conference, unless mutually agreed upon.
- C. A minimum of two more observations will occur throughout the year.
 - i. The purpose of these observations is to collect evidence and to provide feedback to the teacher and to address any area of concern. If there is an area of concern, the evaluator will identify, in writing, specific concerns that may lead to an unsatisfactory rating for the applicable criteria and provide recommendations for improvement with the district support and resources to address the concern.
 - ii. Each of these observations shall be a minimum of fifteen (15) minutes.
 - iii. The evaluator shall solely conduct each observation, unless otherwise previously agreed to by the teacher.
 - iv. The second observation will take place by January 31.
 - v. The third observation will take place before May 1.
- D. When at all possible, observations will not take place on half, early release, or late start days, the day before or after winter or spring break, the week of parent-teacher conferences, on the day following an absence of the employee, and on days of an assembly or a modified schedule unless otherwise agreed to by the employee.
- E. The evaluator will document all observations and provide feedback using the rubric (Appendix C-1) to the employee within five (5) days following the observation date and when applicable, at least one (1) day prior to the post observation conference.
- F. The teacher shall be provided the opportunity to submit additional evidence to aid in the assessment of the teacher's professional performance against the instructional framework rubric, especially for those criteria not observed in the classroom. The evidence provided by the teacher may be considered on the observation report form and may be used to determine the final summative evaluation score.
- G. The total annual observation time shall not be less than sixty (60) minutes.
- H. An employee in the third year of provisional status as defined in RCW 28A.405.220 shall be observed at least three times in the performance of his or her duties and the total observation time for the school year shall not be less than ninety (90) minutes. Any observation shall not be less than fifteen (15) minutes in length.

3. Post-Observation Conference

- A. Following the first observation, a post-observation conference between the evaluator and teacher will be held no later than five (5) school days, unless otherwise mutually agreed to by the evaluator and the teacher, or unless delayed by the absence of the teacher or evaluator. The teacher and evaluator will mutually agree when to conference. When possible, the conference shall be held in the teacher's classroom to facilitate the documentation of artifacts and evidence. The teacher and evaluator will use the rubric as the basis for discussion at the conference.
- B. The purpose of the conference is to review the evidence related to the rubric, and to discuss the teacher's performance.
- C. During the post-observation conference, the teacher and evaluator will sign the rubric form with notes. The teacher's signature does not signify agreement with the observation report. The evaluator may or may not assign numerical ratings to individual components or criteria, based on the evidence collected by the time the report is prepared. The teacher will receive a copy of the completed, signed Observation Report Form. The teacher may attach written comments to the observation report.

4. Final Summative Evaluation

- A. Following the completion of the required observations, the evaluator shall provide the teacher with a draft copy of an Evaluation Report Form (Appendix C-2) reflecting his/her preliminary ratings for the teacher on all criteria being evaluated at least two (2) school days prior to a final summative evaluation conference, which shall be held no later than May 15th. When possible, the conference shall be held in the teacher's classroom to facilitate the documentation of artifacts and evidence. The purpose of the summative rating conference is to discuss the following:
 - i. The evaluator's preliminary rating on all criteria;
 - ii. Student growth data; and
 - iii. Any additional evidence and artifacts the teacher would like the evaluator to consider before making a final summative rating.
- B. Nothing prohibits an evaluator from evaluating all teachers as Distinguished-4 within a school year.
- C. No criterion shall be marked unsatisfactory or basic on the overall rating without first being brought to the employee's attention.
- D. With the mutual agreement of the teacher and evaluator, this final summative conference may be consolidated with a post observation conference following the final required observation.

- E. All evidence, measures and observations used in developing the final summative evaluation score must be a product of the school year in which the evaluation is conducted, except as provided in subsection 8E, in the case of probation extended into the following school year. In the event that the evaluation is not completed during the final summative evaluation conference, the evaluator shall complete the Evaluation Report Form (Appendix C-2) and provide a copy to the employee within five (5) school days.
- F. The final evaluation report and conference shall be completed by May 15th. The evaluator and the employee shall both sign the final evaluation report. The employee's signature on the Evaluation Report Form shall not necessarily indicate concurrence with the evaluation. The employee has the right to attach an addendum statement no later than five (5) school days following the receipt of the final evaluation report.

3.5 FOCUSED EVALUATION

The Focused Evaluation is used when a teacher is not evaluated using the Comprehensive Evaluation process, and will include evaluation of one of the eight state criteria. If a non-provisional teacher has scored at Proficient or higher the previous year, they shall be evaluated using the Focused Evaluation, provided that the teacher may only remain on the Focused Evaluation for five (5) years before returning to the Comprehensive Evaluation.

Should an evaluator determine that a teacher on a focused evaluation be moved to a comprehensive evaluation for the following year, the teacher must be informed of this decision in writing on or before May 15th of the current year. This written notice shall also include a plan of support for the following year.

- A. One of the eight (8) evaluation criteria must be assessed in a focused evaluation. The selected criterion to be evaluated may be proposed by the teacher prior to or at the first pre-observation conference, and must be approved by the evaluator. (Appendix C-6) The selected criterion may have been identified in a previous summative evaluation as benefiting from additional attention.
- B. If the employee chooses criterion 1, 2, 4, 5, or 7, they must also complete the student growth components in criterion 3 or 6.
- C. If the criterion selected for a focused evaluation has been determined to be non-observable, a classroom-based observation will not be required.
- D. Observations and conferences for the focused evaluation shall follow the process set forth in Section 3.3, Procedural Indicators of Evaluation, and Section 3.4, Comprehensive Evaluation Process, above.
- E. A teacher on Focused Evaluation will receive the same summative rating as given

in the most recent Comprehensive Evaluation. This will, in no case, be less than Proficient. If the teacher on a Focused Evaluation has provided evidence of exemplary practice on the chosen focused criterion, the teacher will receive a summative score of Distinguished. (as per WAC 392-191A-120).

- F. A group of teachers may focus on the same evaluation criterion and share professional growth activities. This collaboration may be initiated by the teacher(s) and no individual shall be required to work on a shared goal.
- G. A teacher may apply the focused evaluation professional growth activities toward the professional growth plan for professional certificate renewal (eg. Pro-Teach) as required by the Professional Educators Standards Board.

3.6 SUPPORT FOR BASIC AND UNSATISFACTORY PERFORMANCE

- A. Prior to the end of the school year, the Association will be notified when any teacher is evaluated Basic or Unsatisfactory following completion of the teacher's final evaluation.
- B. When any teacher is evaluated as Unsatisfactory or Basic the following conditions and provisions may be considered:
 - i. The teacher's class size limits as established in this Agreement;
 - ii. The teacher may be granted up to four (4) days of district funded release time to observe colleagues' instruction;
 - iii. The teacher may request an additional/different certificated employee evaluator;
 - iv. The teacher may be assigned only one (1) work location, i.e., one classroom;
 - v. A mentor may be assigned;
 - vi. The teacher may request to transfer to another school. The Superintendent may approve or deny this request.
 - vii. The teacher may choose to participate in a voluntary structured support plan;
 - viii. The District will pay for any required in-service training and any required mentor (RCW 28A.405.140). Additional supports may include, but are not limited to: university course work, peer coaching, reading material, and District or ESD staff development courses.
 - ix. Any assigned district-approved support activities shall be compensated at the employee's per diem rate of pay for any time that occurs outside the normal work day/year.

3.7. PROVISIONAL EMPLOYEES

When there is concern that may lead to non-renewal of a provisional employee as documented on an observation report form, the employee will be informed that he/she may request a meeting with Association representation and evaluator to review the expectations for the employee's current position. At that time a plan will be developed to assist the employee in improving his/her performance to an acceptable level. The course of action for provisional employees will follow the guidelines stated in RCW 28A.405.220.

A. A second year Provisional teacher who receives a summative rating of Proficient may be granted continuing contract status for the subsequent school year. A second year Provisional teacher who receives a summative rating of Distinguished shall be granted continuing contract status for the subsequent school year.

Provisional Year 1

- a. Unsatisfactory Non-Renewal
- b. Basic May lead to non-renewal or renewal with continued support for subsequent year

Provisional Year 2

- a. Unsatisfactory Non-Renewal
- b. Basic May lead to non-renewal or renewal with continued support for subsequent year
- c. Proficient May lead to continuing contract status for subsequent year
- d. Distinguished Continuing contract status for subsequent year

Provisional Year 3

- a. Unsatisfactory Non-Renewal
- b. Basic May lead to non-renewal and/or continuing contract status for subsequent year
- c. Proficient Continuing contract status for subsequent year
- B. Before non-renewing a provisional teacher, the evaluator shall have made a good faith effort beyond the minimum requirements of the evaluation process to assist the teacher in making satisfactory progress toward remediating deficiencies. Efforts may include:
 - i. A description of the assistance and services the District will provide to the teacher to improve his/her performance;
 - ii. Periodic reports from the evaluator on the teacher's progress toward remediating deficiencies;
 - iii. Written notice regarding performance concerns to the Association and teacher prior to April 1.

3.8 PROBATION

At any time after October 15, a classroom teacher (excluding provisional employees) whose work is not judged satisfactory based on the scoring criteria shall be placed on probation and notified in writing of the specific areas of deficiencies and provided a written reasonable plan of improvement.

- A. The following comprehensive summative evaluation performance ratings mean a classroom teacher's performance is judged not satisfactory:
 - 1. Level 1 Unsatisfactory
 - 2. Level 2 Basic if the teacher is a continuing contract employee under RCW 28A.405.210 with more than five (5) years of teaching experience and if the Level 2 comprehensive summative evaluation performance rating has been received for two (2) consecutive years or for two (2) years within a consecutive three (3) year time period.
- B. Teachers may only be placed on probation from the Comprehensive Evaluation Process.
- C. Teachers on continuing contracts who have been assigned to teach outside of their endorsements shall not be subject to non renewal or probation based on evaluations of their teaching effectiveness in the out-of-endorsement assignments in accordance with WAC 181-82-110.
- D. In the event that an evaluator determines that the performance of a teacher under his/her supervision merits probation, the evaluator shall report the same in writing to the Superintendent. The report shall include the following:
 - 1. The evaluation report prepared pursuant to the provisions of Article IV Section 3, and,
 - 2. A recommended specific and reasonable program designed to assist the teacher in improving his or her performance.
- E. If the Superintendent concurs with the administrator's judgment that the performance of the employee is unsatisfactory, the Superintendent shall place the teacher in a probationary status for a period of not less than sixty (60) school days, any time after October 15. The probationary period may be extended into the following school year if the teacher has more than five (5) years of teaching experience and the final summative rating as of May 15th is Unsatisfactory.
- F. Before being placed on probation, the Association and the teacher shall be given notice of action of the Superintendent which notice shall contain the following information:
 - i. Specific areas of performance deficiencies identified from the instructional framework;
 - ii. A suggested specific and reasonable plan for improvement;
 - iii. A statement indicating the duration of the probationary period and that

the purpose of the probationary period is to give the teacher the opportunity to demonstrate improvement in his/her area or areas of deficiency.

G. A plan of improvement will be developed and will include the specific evaluative criteria which must be met and the measures and benchmarks which will be used to determine the teacher's success or failure. The plan will include a system for periodic feedback during the term of probation and will include supports provided and funded by the district (see section 3.6.B.1-9), and the dates those supports will be put in place. Any of these support activities shall be compensated at the employee's per diem rate of pay for any time that occurs outside the normal work day /year.

H. Evaluation During the Probationary Period:

- 1. Prior to the recommendation of probation, the evaluator shall hold a meeting with the employee to discuss performance deficiencies and the improvement measures to be taken. The employee may request an Association representative attend this meeting.
- 2. Once an employee has been placed on probation, the areas of deficiency and criteria for improvement may not be changed.
- 3. During the probationary period, the evaluator shall meet with the probationary teacher at least twice a month to supervise and make a written evaluation of the progress, if any, made by the teacher. The teacher may request a union representative at any/all conferences. The provisions of Section 3 above shall apply to the documentation of observation reports and evaluation reports during the probationary period.
- 4. The probationary teacher must be removed from probation if he/she has demonstrated improvement to the satisfaction of the evaluator in those areas specifically detailed in his/her notice of probation.
- 5. The probationary teacher may request that an additional certificated evaluator become part of the probationary process and the request must be granted.
- I. Lack of necessary improvement during the established probationary period, as specifically documented in writing with notification to the probationer constitutes grounds for a finding of probable cause under RCW 28.A.405.300 or 28A.405.210.

J. Evaluator's Post-Probation Report

The evaluator shall submit a written report to the Superintendent at the end of the probationary period which report shall identify whether the performance of the probationary teacher has improved and which shall set forth one (1) of the following recommendations for further action:

- 1. That the teacher has demonstrated sufficient improvement in the stated areas of deficiency to justify the removal of the probationary status; or
- 2. That the teacher has demonstrated sufficient improvement in the stated areas of deficiency to justify the removal of the probationary status if accompanied by a letter identifying areas where further improvement is required; or

3. That the teacher has not demonstrated sufficient improvement in the stated areas of deficiency and action should be taken to non-renew the employment contract of the teacher.

K. Action by the Superintendent:

Following a review of the report submitted pursuant to paragraph J. above, the Superintendent shall determine which of the alternative courses of action is proper and shall take appropriate action to implement such determination. (RCW 28a.405.100 Section 4d)

L. A teacher who fails to successfully complete the probation process, as outlined above, may have their probationary period extended or may be recommended for non-renewal.

3.9 DISCHARGE

When a continuing contract teacher with five (5) or more years of experience receives a comprehensive summative evaluation below level 2 for two (2) consecutive years, the District shall, within ten (10) days of the completion of the second summative comprehensive evaluation or May 15th, whichever occurs first, implement the teacher notification of discharge as provided in RCW.28A.405.300.

3.10 PROBABLE CAUSE

The teacher who is, at any time, issued a written notice of probable cause for discharge by the Superintendent pursuant to this Article shall have ten (10) calendar days following receipt of said notice to file any notice of appeal as provided by statute.

3.11 EVALUATION RESULTS

A. Evaluation results may be used:

- 1. to acknowledge, recognize, and encourage excellence in professional performance.
- 2. to document the level of performance by a teacher of his/her assigned duties.
- 3. to identify specific areas in which the teacher may need improvement according to the criteria included on the evaluation instrument.
 - 4. to document performance by a teacher judged unsatisfactory based on the District evaluation criteria.
- 5. and must be used, beginning in 2015-16, as one of the multiple factors in making human resource and personnel decisions, only as defined elsewhere in this Agreement.
- B. Evaluation results shall not be:
 - 1. Shared or published with any teacher-identifying information.
 - 2. Shared or published without notification to the individual and Association for their approval to release or act to block such publication (if the release is required by law).
 - 3. Used to determine any type of base or additional compensation.

3.12 DISTRICT TPEP STEERING COMMITTEE

A District TPEP Steering Committee will be maintained and consist of four (4)- ten (10) SEA-appointed representatives and four (4)- ten (10) District-appointed Administrators.

The purpose of this committee is to: problem solve, address contract language, analyze federal and state evaluation requirements, and assure best practices to support professional growth. This committee will annually review inter-rater reliability and address any discrepancies. District TPEP Steering Committee shall meet quarterly throughout the school year, or as needed.

This committee shall be co-chaired by a SEA member chosen by the SEA, and a District Administrator.

ARTICLE IV.B - EVALUATION - PROBATION

SECTION 1. PURPOSE

The purpose of evaluation is to encourage improvements in teaching and learning through the use of clear objective performance standards and authentic assessment processes. The evaluation procedure recognizes high levels of performance and encourages improvement in specific identifiable areas through the systematic assessment of performance as it relates to the adopted criteria. The evaluation process is intended to be respectful, meaningful, helpful, and emphasize positive interaction between the evaluator and the person being evaluated.

SECTION 2. PROCEDURE

- A. The principal shall give each employee a copy of the Observation Report Form attached to this Agreement as an appendix at the first building meeting of the year after all employees are assigned to their schools, and shall inform them of the evaluation process and its purpose in the District.
- B. Employees in a school building shall be observed in the following order:
 - 1. employees new to the District (first year provisional employees);
 - 2. employees new to the building, but not new to the District; and
 - 3. employees not new to the building.
 - 4. The sequence of (1) and (2) may be varied by the evaluator upon mutual agreement with the employee to be evaluated, in order to provide efficient use of time and scheduling of observations.
- C. The administrator/principal in the school of the employee's primary assignment will evaluate each employee unless by mutual agreement.
- D. No area on the final evaluation should be marked as unsatisfactory without first having been brought to the attention of the employee.
- E. The following conditions shall be considered when an evaluation of an employee takes place. The evaluation report shall consider the specific condition(s) in the employee's instructional setting as they relate to the following items:
 - 1. Class size;
 - 2. availability of supplies and equipment for the instructional program;
 - 3. physical facilities and location to accommodate the learning environment as necessitated by the area of instruction being taught;
 - 4. preparation time;
 - 5. administrative support in dealing with disciplinary problems.

- F. Employee placement on the short form evaluation shall be as outlined in RCW 28A.405.100. The short form evaluation is an option under the following guidelines:
 - 1. Four (4) years of successful final yearly evaluations in the Sunnyside District.
 - 2. When an employee transfers, changes grade levels, or returns from a leave of absence, he/she will be on the long form for one (1) year. If that year is successful, he/she would then be eligible to be on the short form again.
 - 3. If at any point during the year the employee receives an area marked unsatisfactory, the employee will be returned immediately to the long form. If an area for growth or "unsatisfactory" is indicated on the final yearly short form evaluation, the employee would return to the long form. Once all criterion meets expectations again, the employee would be eligible to return to the short form.
 - 4. No more than two-thirds (2/3) of the staff shall be on the short form each year. No one shall be on the short form more than two (2) consecutive years.
 - 5. Unusual circumstances would be up to the discretion of the building administrator as to eligibility for the short form, (i.e. a teacher looping with a class).

SECTION 3. OBSERVATIONS

A. **Long Form -** Employees will be observed at least twice annually in the performance of their assigned duties for a minimum of sixty (60) minutes prior to the formal evaluation conference, with one (1) observation being no less than thirty (30) minutes in length.

Short Form - Evaluation shall include a thirty (30) minute observation during the school year with a written summary.

For new employees, the first formal evaluation conference shall be held within the first ninety (90) calendar days of employment.

For continuing employees, the formal evaluation conferences shall be held by May 1.

- B. Observations, where appropriate, shall take place under a variety of circumstances such as different subject areas, different instructional methods, and different times of the day, week and year.
- C. The evaluator and the evaluee shall plan in advance for at least one (1) of the required classroom observations. No later than five (5) school days following the observation, the evaluator shall discuss the observation with the evaluee and provide the evaluee with a copy of the Observation Form used during observation.
- D. Media Specialists can be evaluated on either the Certificated Teachers Evaluation Form or the Certificated Support Staff Evaluation Form by mutual agreement of the media specialist and the building administrator until a separate library media specialist evaluation form is approved.
- E. Provisional employees will be observed and evaluated pursuant to Article IV, excluding probationary procedures. The final evaluation will be completed no later than April 1. If the employee is found by the evaluator to perform unsatisfactorily

overall, the employee will be immediately notified of the reason(s) that he/she will be recommended for non-renewal of contract. If the employee submits a resignation prior to May 1, no recommendation for non-renewal will be made.

SECTION 4. EVALUATION REPORT

- A. The administrator/principal or immediate supervisor will review the Evaluation Report Form for the employee's personnel file at the conference. The final evaluation conference shall be held no later than five (5) school days following the final observation of the employee.
- B. The employee's signature on the Evaluation Report Form shall not necessarily indicate concurrence with the evaluation. The evaluee has the exclusive right to attach an addendum statement.
- C. Distribution of the final Evaluation Report Form shall be:
 - 1. original school district personnel file;
 - 2. first copy principal; and
 - 3. second copy employee

SECTION 5. PROBATIONARY PROCEDURE

- A. The probationary procedure as set forth herein shall provide an employee with assistance through consulting, counseling and providing other resources as may be utilized in the improvement of performance relating to the instructional program. If it becomes necessary to place an employee on probation, such action shall be in accordance with the Evaluation Procedure as contained in this Agreement.
- B. Such probationary period shall begin any time after October 15 and shall continue for up to sixty (60) days. The probationary process is to be implemented and completed within this time frame. In carrying out the probation procedure, the following steps shall be followed:

STEP 1

The principal shall meet with the employee in an attempt to resolve matters relating to performance before probation is recommended. This conference shall be held before the date of the formal evaluation and in no case later than January 20. The employee shall have an opportunity to have an Association representative in attendance at the conference.

STEP 2

If an employee is being considered for probation, the recommendation to the Superintendent for probationary status must be made on or before January 20. The recommendation for probation must be made in writing and a copy of that recommendation be sent to the employee. The recommendation for probation will include a specific and reasonable program for improvement as follows:

1. a precise definition of the problem in terms of adopted criteria;

- 2. a precise set of expectations delineating what levels of performance would constitute acceptable performance in the problem areas defined;
- 3. a prescription for remediation which spells out courses of action and time expectations so the employee involved can reach an acceptable level of performance; and
- 4. a prescription for assistance by the administrator/principal which spells out courses of action whereby the employee will be assisted, counseled and tutored in improving the level of performance to an acceptable level.
- 5. a statement of the sixty (60) day duration of the probationary period.

STEP 3

The Superintendent, or his/her designee, shall review the administrator/principal's recommendation for probation. If the Superintendent or his/her designee determine that there is an alternative to probation, he/she may continue to work with the parties involved as an alternative to probation.

STEP 4

The decision to place an employee on probation is to be determined by the Superintendent. If an employee is placed on probation, the actual letter of probation from the Superintendent to the employee must include all the provisions of Step 2 of this probationary process, as well as being consistent with this and other provisions of the Agreement and state statutory requirements. During the probationary period the principal shall meet with the probationary employee at least twice monthly to supervise and make a written evaluation of the progress, if any, made by the employee. The provisions of Step 2 above shall apply to the documentation of evaluation reports during the probationary period.

STEP 5

If by May 1 and after all the steps and processes of the probationary period have been followed, the employee does not demonstrate the acceptable level of performance as originally stated in the probationary recommendation, the actual letter of probation and subsequent supportive evaluation documentation, then that employee may be eligible for non-renewal of contract.

Conversely, if by May 1 and after all the steps and processes of the probationary period have been followed, the employee does demonstrate the acceptable level of performance as originally stated in the probationary recommendation, the actual letter of probation and subsequent supportive evaluation documentation, then that employee shall be given a favorable evaluation for inclusion in the employee's District personnel file.

In either case, the Superintendent shall notify the employee in writing no later than May 15 of the status of his/her contract renewal.

SECTION 6. PROFESSIONAL GROWTH PLAN

- A. **Definition:** As used in this Agreement the term "Professional Growth Plan" (PGP) shall mean a voluntary plan by an employee designed to improve that employee's professional performance. This plan focuses on professional growth and is separate from the summative evaluation. (*Employees whose work is judged to be unsatisfactory, based on the evaluation criteria and procedure will not be eligible for a PGP.*)
- B. **Purpose:** The purpose of the Professional Growth Plan is to assist employees in personal professional development toward personal development goals in order to encourage improvements in teaching skills, techniques and abilities. It will allow them to embark on challenging and innovative methods in education. Professional development is the desired outcome of the PGP. These procedures will be used to encourage employee self-assessment and goal setting; provide opportunities for and encourage sharing among teaching and support staff of personal professional experience and expertise; aid employees in planning personal professional growth plans; provide opportunities for parents, students, and other interested community members to offer meaningful input to their schools through their observations of instructional effectiveness; and link identified professional needs with appropriate in-service, staff development, and other improvement opportunities.
- C. **Plan:** Each employee is encouraged to develop his/her own PGP. Such plan will be developed, maintained and executed independently of administrative interference, but with administrative assistance as requested by the employee. Such plans may utilize one or more of the following sources of information in its development: (1) peer review and evaluation, (2) input by parents, (3) input by students, (4) personal and/or professional goals; (5) school district goals; (6) building goals; (7) self-assessment; (8) personal academic records; and (9) school district evaluations
- D. **Professional Growth Plan Results:** It is important to note that the materials/records/portfolios that are developed as a result of the employee's professional development shall be the property of the certificated staff member and shall not be retained in the employees personnel file or used by the District in its formal evaluation criteria. If an employee elects to share the processes and/or results of his/her PGP with his/her peers, other staff, administrators, or no one, is the right of the employee, unless there has been a stipulation made ahead of time that the information obtained would be shared.
- E. **Funding:** The District shall establish a Professional Growth Plan Fund for materials not to exceed \$3,000. Employees who have approved plans (*signed off by the principal of the school*) may access funds by making an application to the PGP Committee. Said Committee shall authorize allocation of PGP funds for approved PGPs up to \$200. The PGP Committee shall have the option to establish such additional requirements for form and content of funding application as it determines consistent with sound pedagogy and research principles and accountability standard

ARTICLE V - REDUCTION IN FORCE (RIF) AND RECALL

SECTION 1. INITIATION OF LAYOFFS

- A. The term "RIF" as used herein refers to action by the Board reducing the number of employees in the District due to economic reasons only; it does not refer to decisions to discharge or non-renew an individual employee for cause.
- B. Employees with valid contracts will not be laid off during any school year. In the event of layoff, the Board shall provide written notice to all affected employees on or before May 15 of the school year preceding the year in which layoff would occur.
- C. Employees shall not be laid off pursuant to a necessary reduction in personnel unless all available revenues of the District projected for the forthcoming fiscal year will not provide for a balanced budget as defined as expenditures not exceeding income.
- D. In the event that the Board anticipates a layoff of employees, the Board will notify the Association at least thirty (30) calendar days before May 15 and shall provide the Association with a detailed report on the financial affairs of the District demonstrating that the projected revenues will not provide for a balanced budget.
- E. The Board shall also make available to the Association an accurate, up-to-date account of all voluntary gifts, contributions, donations, bequests or pledges to the District. All non-categorical cash reserves and contingency funds will be depleted by the Board and placed in the general fund for operational expenditures.

SECTION 2. CRITERIA

- A. Employees shall qualify for placement in the following categories:
 - 1 K-5
 - 2. 6-8 by endorsement area
 - 3. 9-12 by endorsement area
 - 4. Specialist K-12: Music/Performing Arts, Health/Fitness, Art, Educational Specialists, Education Staff Associates
 - 5. Vocational Education
 - 6. Special Education
- B. An employee shall be placed in the categories for which he/she qualifies and/or is endorsed. Such placement must be in conformance with the certification and endorsement requirements of the State Board of Education and the office of the OSPI. Layoff or recall shall be in accordance with those areas. In order to qualify for an area not currently assigned, the employee shall hold certification required by OSPI or federal program.

SECTION 3. SENIORITY

A. Layoff shall be by seniority only as modified by the provisions of this Section as hereafter established. Seniority shall be determined within retention categories with employees holding a conditional or emergency certificate first issued in 2020 or later being laid off first, followed by the least senior employee within each category. Seniority is defined as teaching experience from any district in the State of Washington (see Article III, Section 6D). Less than a full year teaching experience

- shall be computed as the actual number of days employed by a district as a full-time employee excluding any substitute service. A seniority list ranking each employee from greatest to least seniority shall be provided to the Association by March 1.
- B. In the event of more than one individual employee having the same seniority ranking as defined in paragraph A above (teaching experience in the State of Washington), the employees shall be ranked most senior to least senior in accordance with the employee's teaching experience in the District.
 - In the event more than one (1) employee has the same seniority ranking after applying the above provisions, all employees so affected will be ranked in accordance with the total number of education credits beyond the BA degree submitted to the District as of September 10 of the current school year.
- C. If after applying the above provisions more than one individual employee still has the same seniority ranking, employees shall participate in a drawing, by lot, to determine position on the seniority list. The Association and all employees so affected shall be notified in writing of the date, place and time of the drawing. The drawing shall be conducted openly and at a time and place which will allow affected employees and the Association to be in attendance.

SECTION 4. PROCEDURE

- A. In the event it becomes necessary to layoff employees, the following procedure will be implemented:
 - 1. The staff requirement and projected student enrollment for all schools in the District will be listed by building.
 - 2. Staff election to fill all staffing requirements will be made from the seniority list in descending order from highest to lowest position, of teachers holding non-conditional and non-emergency certificates; provided, that where teaching assignments require special certification by state regulations, such assignments shall be filled with employee's currently holding such special certificates.
 - 3. Employees holding conditional or emergency certificates will be placed by years of service after all employees holding non-conditional and non-emergency certificates have been placed. Employees currently assigned in **full-time** teaching positions shall be first assigned to all full-time teaching positions consistent with their individual seniority and shall not be obligated to accept any part-time teaching position, but may choose to accept such a position on a voluntary basis.
 - 4. Employees currently assigned in **part-time** teaching positions shall be assigned to part-time teaching positions only consistent with their individual seniority and shall not be assigned to any part-time teaching position unless such a position is declined by all employees (*full and part-time*) with greater seniority.
 - Individual employees not assigned to a teaching position will be notified of layoff in accordance with the aforementioned provisions of this Section and will be recalled as requirements permit.

B. Employees on layoff shall be placed in a rehiring pool and ranked by seniority therein. It is understood and agreed that although employees properly laid off pursuant to the terms hereof and in compliance with applicable law may not have a continuing contract guaranteeing them a teaching position and a salary for the forthcoming fiscal year, each laid off employee shall be considered as having employment status with the District for purposes of seniority, insurance and other fringe benefits as provided herein. A laid-off employee shall be considered to have employment status with the District for a period of two years following layoff.

SECTION 5. RECALL PROCEDURE

- A. In the event that additional students enroll in the District or additional revenues become available, the Board shall first recall all employees in the bargaining unit who have been laid off before the Board employs or assigns any additional personnel to fill teaching assignments. Employees on layoff shall first be recalled by seniority. Employees who were previously assigned to full-time teaching positions shall be recalled to full-time teaching positions provided that such employees shall have the option of accepting any part-time teaching position that may exist without jeopardizing his/her recall status for any full-time position.
- B. Employees who were previously assigned to part-time teaching positions shall be recalled to part-time teaching positions provided that no part-time employee with less seniority shall be recalled to any part-time teaching position unless such a position is declined by all employees (*full and part-time*) with greater seniority.

SECTION 6. NOTIFICATION OF RECALL

- A. The Board shall give written notice of recall from layoff by sending a registered or certified letter to said employee at his/her last known address. It shall be the responsibility of each employee to notify the Board of any change in address. The employee's address as it appears on the Board's records shall be conclusive when used in connection with layoffs, recall or other notice to the employee.
- B. Any employee so notified shall respond within five (5) calendar days from receipt of said notice whether the employee accepts or rejects the position. If an employee rejects a position for which he/she is certificated to teach and such position is offered consistent with the aforementioned provisions of this Section, the employee shall be considered to have resigned from the employ of the District and all benefits shall cease at that time.

SECTION 7. LAYOFF BENEFITS

- A. Any person not renewed under this RIF policy shall have the right to continue any and all insurance and medical provisions provided they pay their own premium.
- B. All positions of substitute employees shall be offered to employees on recall, in rotating alphabetical order, before any other person is offered such a position.
- C. All benefits to which an employee was entitled at the time of his/her layoff, including unused accumulated sick leave and credits towards sabbatical eligibility, will be restored to the employee upon his/her return to active employment and the employee

will be placed on the proper step of the salary schedule for the employee's current position according to the employee's experience and education.

SECTION 8. AFFIRMATIVE ACTION

It is understood that this policy may be amended to coincide with any requirements imposed upon the District in reference to its affirmative action program.

SECTION 9. STATE ACCREDITATION

It is further understood and agreed that every attempt will be made to maintain standards for state accreditation.

ARTICLE VI - INSTRUCTION

SECTION 1. PREPARATION PERIODS

Because preparation time is self-directed by members, interruptions during this time should be kept to a minimum.

A. High School.

One (1) class period per day.

B. Middle School.

One (1) class period per day.

C. Elementary Schools.

Each elementary certificated employee will be provided with a minimum of fifty (50) continuous minutes daily (exclusive of the 60 minutes before and after school).

Each elementary certificated employee will receive a 15 minute period of student-free and duty-free time daily, exclusive of preparation time and the time before and after school.

Each certificated employee shall receive fifty dollars (\$50) for the loss of any portion of a prep period when required by the principal. If the employee elects to meet with an administrator during the prep period when other options within the contract day are available, the employee is not eligible for pay.

Exception will be made and no financial remuneration made when there is loss of time due to a teacher planned field trip. School Administrators will make every effort to schedule field trips so that certificated employees will have preparation time.

Specialist teachers providing preparation time will not be reassigned for the purpose of providing coverage. ESA and certified employees not assigned to classrooms will not be assigned coverage unless the principal has determined there are no other means available for coverage. Every effort will be made to maintain specialist classes providing preparation time. In the event that a specialist class providing preparation time needs to be canceled due to the lack of a substitute (for the absent specialist teacher), the affected teachers will be notified as soon as possible. Every attempt will be made to notify affected teachers 30 minutes before students enter for the day.

D. Certificated employees not assigned to a regular classroom shall have

- preparation time equal to other employees in their school. The employee and building administrator will meet as needed to discuss preparation time parameters. The scheduling of this time throughout the week may vary due to student or building needs.
- E. If a teacher is assigned students due to a fail-to-fill position (no substitute), the teacher will be compensated with overload pay at per student daily rate starting with the first student assigned to the classroom.
- F. Any certificated employee assigned to cover a class which is not their regular assignment or preparation period will be paid at the missed plan time rate of \$50 for each hour of coverage.
- G. Coverage for lack of a substitute will be determined on a rotating basis. Teachers will identify their willingness to sub at the beginning of each school year for the purpose of efficiency and to be used in a rotation system with a tracking mechanism to ensure equity. This on-going list of coverage will be made available to all certificated staff members.
- H. Modified schedule instructional program: Each certificated employee will be compensated for 15 minutes of plan time per hour of instruction.
- I. After-school program: Each certificated employee will be compensated for 15 minutes of plan time per hour of instruction.

SECTION 2. PLC

- A. Professional Learning Communities (PLCs) shall be planned and directed by classroom teachers. Support will be provided by academic coaches and/or administrators. Any additions or changes to a PLC agenda at the request of the building administrator and/or coach will give the PLC a 48 hour notice before the next scheduled PLC. PLCs will be scheduled outside of preparation minutes and shall not be required to be held during a week of three or fewer instructional days, weeks of parent teacher conferences, and during weeks with professional development days. PLCs can be held on the professional development day. The Sunnyside School District Curriculum, Instruction and Assessment Conceptual Framework is the guiding document that describes the focus, work and outcomes of all PLCs.
- B. At the beginning of each year, teachers whose jobs are single in nature (i.e. Specialists and Electives) may determine their PLC. These teachers may choose to form a PLC across buildings for the duration of any given school year.
- C. Teachers shall not be required to turn in an agenda beyond bulleted topics

- D. Teachers shall not be required to turn in summaries or plans of action. They may be asked to turn in/share minutes of each meeting.
- E. Instructional and technology coaches are a vital resource to aid teachers in developing their instructional practices. The work of the Coach is to assist teachers in building instructional practices. The coach's support for teachers shall be confidential. Coaches shall not report on the individual support they provide to teachers. Coaches may attend PLCs as a resource. Coaches shall not perform any administrative duties.

SECTION 3. SPECIAL EDUCATION PRACTICES

- A. The District shall provide seven (7) days student management time for each Resource Room Special Education teacher and ten (10) days student management time for SLP and teacher of an LAC, DDP, or Deaf Education classroom. Fractions of days may be utilized. This time will be in addition to the plan time already guaranteed by the master contract and would be scheduled by each teacher. For each special education teacher, a substitute teacher will be hired. A special education teacher will not be required to return to class on a scheduled student management day. SLPs would be responsible for scheduling their ten days of student management time without a substitute. Staff is required to be at the building sites during these days, unless the employee and administrator mutually agree to a different site within the District. Student management days will not be taken on Monday or Friday without prior approval of the building principal.
- B. Each secondary resource teacher shall be provided with one (1) period per day for case management time. This is in addition to a preparation period and is exclusive of the sixty (60) minutes before and after school.
- C. Each elementary resource teacher shall be provided with forty-five (45) consecutive minutes per day for case management time. This is in addition to plan time of 50 minutes per day, and is exclusive of the sixty (60) minutes before and after school.

SPECIAL EDUCATION CASE MANAGEMENT

Activities include but are not limited to:

- •IEP Planning and Development
- •Testing/Assessment of students
- Monitoring of Students
- •Communication with teachers, administrators, parents, school psychologist, para-educator, counselors and other relevant individuals about students
- •Planning with teachers on implementation of specially designed instruction (adapting the content, methodology, or delivery of instruction. Instruction must be designed, supervised, monitored, and evaluated by a certified special education staff member)
- Progress reports
- Transition Planning and Assessment

- •Teaching students either in a pull-out setting or push-into general education classroom
- •Clerical work on IEP's
- D. Each Psychologist will be provided with an additional twenty-five (25) days and each SLP will be provided an additional seventeen (17) days at per diem pay. Each LAC teacher will be provided with an additional three (3) days of pay at per diem in order to complete required state assessments.
- E. Each school nurse will be provided with an additional five (5) days at per diem pay, and the nurse at Sun Valley will receive an additional three (3) days (for a total of 8). Nurses may also schedule up to five (5) calendared professional development days prior to the first student day.

SECTION 4. CLASS SIZE

A. The parties recognize that the defined pupil-employee ratio is desirable for effective teaching and learning. The District will make every effort to maintain uniform class size by grade level K-12.

The district will attempt to provide at least the following average pupil/teacher ratio:

K-2 23:1 3-5 27:1 6-8 31:1 9-12 31:1

- For the kindergarten through elementary grades, no music, reading, or other specialists shall be counted in determining the teacher/pupil classroom ratio. Library media specialists, counselors, or any other school personnel who do not maintain a regular classroom shall not be counted in the teacher/pupil classroom ratio determination.
- 2. Special Education children will be equitably distributed in all classes in each grade level, or placed into an approved pull out classroom. In addition, training shall be provided to all classroom teachers involved with severely or profoundly disabled children in regular classes. Other certificated employees, upon request, may be provided training or assistance for severely or profoundly disabled children.
- 3. In K-5 general education classrooms, ELL students will be equitably distributed by language proficiency level, based on most recent results from the state.
- 4. Emotionally/behaviorally disabled children will be equitably distributed in all classes in each grade level, or placed into an approved pull out classroom. In addition, training shall be provided to all classroom teachers involved with emotionally/behaviorally disabled children in regular classes.

- 5. Students identified as highly capable in the elementary grades may be cluster grouped. In the event that multiple students identified as highly capable are placed in the same grade and building, the principal will meet with the grade level teachers and the Head Building Representative to determine a mutually acceptable solution for placement of those students. The team will consider placement based on the best interest of students. If the team determines that cluster grouping is not in the student's best interest, placement of those students may be distributed across multiple classrooms. If a mutually acceptable placement solution is not reached regarding cluster grouping, the option of placing those students will be determined by the building principal. In addition, training shall be provided to all classroom teachers involved with highly capable/gifted children.
- New students to the District will begin attending school the day after all the registration requirements are completed. Students may be allowed to visit before final enrollment.
- 7. Special Education class size will be appropriate as determined by the IEP team by the student's handicapping conditions and the need for appropriate instruction.
 - Efforts will be made to balance caseloads as much as possible.
 Caseloads will be monitored the first working day of each month, beginning in October.
 - b. Caseloads Teachers
 - 1-20 4 days additional pay
 - 21-30 6 days additional pay
 - 31-40 7 days additional pay
 - 41-50 8 days additional pay
 - c. Caseloads SLPs
 - 1-24 2 days additional pay
 - 25-45 3 days additional pay
 - d. If the average caseloads of all SLPs reaches 46 for two consecutive months, the SLPs with caseloads over 45 will be allowed extended contract time not to exceed two (2) days.
 - e. An SLP's caseload will be considered full when it equals the caseload size of 45.
 - f. If the caseload of an SLP reaches 55, additional staff may be assigned to help with screening, to provide treatment to students with communication disorders following the SLP treatment plan, and to assist with clerical duties.
 - g. Part-time SLPs will be provided additional day's pay at a calculated ratio.
- 8. Each Transitional Kindergarten classroom shall have a minimum of 2 adults for every 17 students each day, for the majority of the day, including specialist periods and student lunch periods.
- 9. Any student placed in an Early Exit classroom will first be screened to ensure qualification for the program and be placed in the correct grade level. Early Exit Program teachers will be provided the following additional pay:

1-20 students: 4 days additional pay 21-30 students: 6 days additional pay

B. OVERLOAD – In the event—due to the increased student enrollment—the Overload staffing guidelines (listed below) are exceeded; the affected employees shall meet with the building principal at which time the following procedures shall be followed:

GRADE	CLASS MAX.
Transitional K	17
Kindergarten	21
1 st	22
2 nd	24
3 rd	25
4 th	27
5 th	29
6 th	29
7th – 8th	31
9th - 12th	31

- 1. The affected employee(s) shall meet with the principal within two (2) days of written notification to verify the situation and develop a mutually acceptable solution as provided herein. If agreement is reached the principal shall notify the employee(s) when the mutual plan of action is to begin. Such notification shall be given within three (3) days of the meeting.
- 2. If a mutually acceptable solution is not reached, the principal shall schedule a conference with the Superintendent, or designee, within three (3) days of the conference in #1 above. The affected employee(s) shall participate in the conference. An acceptable solution will be sought. The superintendent shall notify the employee of the action to be taken. Such notification shall be given within three (3) days of the meeting to the employee and the association.
- 3. If not mutually agreed upon, the Parties will meet to discuss the issue within three (3) days.
- 4. The overload limit and ratio calculation may not apply in traditionally large classes such as band, orchestra, choir, and in team-teaching situations. Federal and state staffing guidelines for special education, home economics, laboratories, vocational classes, migrant/bilingual and other federally funded programs shall be

- implemented, where applicable. This does not preclude staff members from discussing their class size with administration.
- 5. Secondary physical education shall not exceed 35 students.
- C. The following options will be considered when meeting in (B.1) or (B.2) above.
 - 1. Establish a reasonable time period for determining whether the enrollment is stabilized at the current level.
 - 2. Hire additional certificated employees.
 - 3. Determine an appropriate amount of additional paraeducator time to assist with the additional load. This paraeducator time is exclusive of existing programs.
 - 4. Transfer excess students to other classes thereby redistributing the load.
 - 5. Pay for additional preparation time (i.e. hire a sub).
 - 6. Determine an appropriate alternative to the above options (i.e. combination classes, close enrollment, move teacher).
- D. If an "overload" becomes necessary, the Principal will make the placement decision after consultation with the teacher.
 - 1. The contract will compensate Elementary level unit members at the twenty-seven dollars (\$27) per student, per day.
 - 2. Secondary unit members will be compensated at the rate of three dollars (\$3) per student per class period per day.
 - 3. Class size will be determined by student enrollment for each class section or instructional period per day.
 - 4. At the beginning of each term (when new classrooms are formed), when enrollment exceeds above mentioned limits the District will have ten (10) days to make enrollment adjustments. If enrollments are adjusted and reduced to within class size limits, no compensation will be due.
 - 5. If after ten (10) days, enrollment excesses continue, compensation will be paid from day six (6) onward.
 - 6. If an enrollment overload occurs after day ten (10) of the new term, supplemental compensation will be paid from the first day of the overload.

SECTION 5. RE-EVALUATION OF SPECIAL EDUCATION, EMOTIONALLY/BEHAVIORALLY DISABLED, AND HIGHLY CAPABLE/GIFTED STUDENTS/CLASSROOM PLACEMENT

A. In the event an employee believes a special education, emotionally/behaviorally disabled, or highly capable/gifted student has been improperly placed in his/her class, the employee shall have the right to request re-evaluation of that student's placement.

- B. The employer district's written procedures regarding special education, emotionally/behaviorally disabled, and highly capable/gifted students shall be made available to all employees. District administrators shall discuss and explain those procedures in building faculty meetings.
- C. Special education, emotionally/behaviorally disabled, and highly capable/gifted students are defined as those who qualify according to state and federal guidelines.

SECTION 6. STUDENT DISCIPLINE

School principals will meet with the faculty annually to establish and/or review building disciplinary standards and procedures to ensure uniform enforcement of building standards.

- A. In the maintenance of a sound learning environment, the District shall expect acceptable behavior on the part of all students who attend schools in the District. Administrators and teachers shall enforce a policy regarding student cell phone usage that does not allow for cell phones to be used during class time. Students will not be allowed to use cell phones in the bathroom. Discipline shall be enforced fairly and consistently regardless of race, creed, sex, or status. Such discipline shall be consistent with applicable federal and state laws.
- B. The Board and Superintendent shall support and uphold employees in their efforts to maintain discipline in the District and shall give immediate response to all employees' requests regarding discipline problems. Further, the authority of employees to use prudent disciplinary measures for the safety and well-being of students and employees is supported by the Board. In the exercise of authority by an employee to control and maintain order and discipline, the employee may use reasonable and professional judgment, concerning matters not provided for by specific policies adopted by the Board and not inconsistent with federal and state laws or regulations.
- C. In accordance with state law, any student who creates a disruption of the educational process in violation of the building disciplinary standards while under a teacher's immediate supervision may be excluded by the teacher from his or her individual classroom and instructional or activity area for all or any portion of the school day, or up to the following two (2) days, or until the principal or designee and teacher have conferred, whichever occurs first. Except in emergency circumstances, the teacher first must attempt one or more forms of corrective action. After one or more forms of corrective action have been taken by the classroom teacher, the teacher may send the student directly to the office. No student shall be sent to another teacher's classroom for any kind of corrective action such as a refocus without the receiving teacher's express permission. In no event without the consent of the teacher may an excluded student return to the class during the balance of the class or activity period or up to the following two days, or until the principal (or designee) and the teacher have conferred.

Definitions:

a. Confer shall mean a conversation between principal or assistant principal and teacher in person (not electronically) at a time that is mutually agreed.

During this conversation a plan will be created to support the student's return to the classroom. This conversation shall include a review of the student's behavior plan, if applicable.

- D. The principal or designee shall log any disciplinary action taken. All discipline log entries shall be visible to staff assigned to the student. The principal or designee shall communicate any defiant or aggressive behavior to all certificated personnel to whom that student is assigned before the student is allowed to return to any class.
- E. Disciplinary actions resulting in suspension or expulsion of a student due to behavior, drugs or aggression towards any certificated staff person will result in notification/communication to all certificated staff who work with the student before the student returns to school.
- F. Staff shall have the opportunity to participate in the creation of behavior plans for the students they service. Behavior plans must be shared with all certificated staff who service students.
 - 1. The district shall adopt a procedure for the development of building behavioral programs that:
 - a. Involve stakeholders
 - b. Are consistently applied
 - c. Provide training
- G. A Student Behavioral Committee will be established as a subcommittee of the SEA/District bargaining team. This committee will be co-chaired by a SEA appointed chair and a District appointed chair. This committee will have duties that include but are not to be limited to:
 - 1. A review of district wide student behavioral needs.
 - 2. Provide feedback on district wide efforts regarding student behavior.
 - 3. Suggest procedures, planning, and organizing professional development where appropriate.
 - 4. Assist in suggesting, planning, and organizing professional development where appropriate.
 - 5. Other duties as assigned by the SEA/District bargaining team.

SECTION 7. CURRICULUM

The District shall provide adequate resources to meet the goals and objectives of classroom lessons and delivery of curriculum to meet the state standards.

Instructional materials shall be selected and made available to employees according to the following guidelines:

- Core Instructional Materials shall be selected according to RCW 28A.320.230, the applicable rules, regulations, and guidelines of the Office of the Superintendent of Public Instruction and the State Board of Education.
- 2. Supplemental materials supportive to the Core Instructional Materials for

- each course and/or grade level shall be selected by the appropriate course and/or grade level teachers/ District teams.
- 3. Additional supplemental instructional materials may be selected by individual teachers for occasional use in the classroom. Such materials are to be relevant to the levels of ability and maturity of the students, to the content of the course and to the purposes of the school system.

SECTION 8. ACADEMIC FREEDOM

The District and Association recognize the professionalism of bargaining unit members and value the independent exercise of their judgement in the development and delivery of instruction. The parties therefore agree to uphold and adhere to the rights, responsibilities, and privileges of academic freedom and acknowledge the fundamental need to protect employees from censorship or restraint which might interfere with the performance of their professional duties. The District further believes that controversial issues are a part of the District's instructional program when related to subject matter in a given grade level or specific curricular field. Therefore:

- A. Employees will have professional freedom in classroom presentations and discussions, and may allow discussion on political, religious, racial, or otherwise controversial topics, provided this is done as part of the educational process reasonably within course content. Employees will use professional judgment in determining the appropriateness of the issue to the curriculum and the maturity of students.
- B. In the presentation of all controversial issues, every effort will be made to effect a balance of bias, divergent points of view, and opportunity for exploration by the students into all sides of the issue.
- C. In discussing controversial issues, the employee will encourage students to express their own views, assuring that it be done in a manner that gives due respect to one another's rights and opinions. When discussing controversial issues, the employee will respect positions other than his/her own. Students will be encouraged, after class discussions and independent inquiry, to reach their own conclusions regarding controversial issues.
- D. The Association agrees that District Curriculum needs to be taught and assessed. However, our student population represents a diversity of needs. Therefore, within the established objectives of the District, employees shall have the right to adapt or modify District curriculum in order to address the learning objectives of the class and the needs of the students, provided such is effective and appropriate to the level and/or subject being taught.

- E. The District may provide model assessments for PLC teams to consider. Each PLC team shall be responsible to decide what and when assessments are given other than required state and federal testing, and up to three District leadership team-developed assessments.
- F. By November 1st the District shall provide to all teachers a report detailing the state and federal tests to be administered, the scheduled windows for these tests, class time anticipated for test preparation and administration of the tests.
- G. The District shall provide appropriate support structures for state required assessments such as paraeducator support and/or additional hours for assessments and data entry.
- H. The teacher shall have the sole authority to determine the grades assigned to students in the class. No grade shall be changed by anyone other than the instructor without the consent of the instructor, except in the case of emergency.
- I. The method for recording daily grades will be at the sole discretion of the teacher, however; all grades will be reported out to parents in the format and through the medium that is determined collaboratively by the district grade reporting committee. A grade reporting committee shall be established.
- J. Grades shall be due no sooner than the sixth calendar day after the end of a trimester. No additional compensation will be offered if the grade due date extends past the last contracted day.

SECTION 9. CLASSROOM VISITATION

The employer recognizes the desirability of having patrons of the District be familiar with the total educational program. It further recognizes that frequent or unannounced interruptions to the classroom can be detrimental to the educational process. To provide patrons the opportunity to visit classrooms with the least interruption to the teaching process, the following guidelines are set forth:

- A. All visitors to a school shall obtain the approval of the building administration in advance of the visitation.
- B. If the visit is to a classroom, the time shall be arranged only after the building administration has conferred with the employee involved.
- C. The employee shall have the opportunity to confer with the classroom observer before and/or after the observation.

SECTION 10. CLASSROOM SUPPLIES

The District shall provide each secondary employee ninety dollars (\$90) and each elementary employee two hundred ten dollars (\$210) per year beyond the annual building

budget for the purchase of supplies or instructional materials for use in his/her teaching assignment. New employees shall receive an additional one hundred twenty dollars (\$120) their first year in the District.

SECTION 11. WORK PERFORMED BY DISTRICT EMPLOYEES

All work customarily performed by the District in its own facilities with its own employees shall continue to be performed by the District and its employees. Subject to the following condition: Nothing in this section shall prohibit the Board and the Administration from hiring consultants who might or might not have the same qualifications as the certificated employees in the District.

SECTION 12. MENTOR TEACHERS

The District shall establish and make known to employees a Mentor Teacher Program for entry level employees. Each mentor teacher will receive a stipend of \$500. Mentor teachers will be determined by mutual agreement of principal, mentor and mentee within department/content area/grade level. The head building rep will be notified of the pairings of mentor/mentee by October 1.

SECTION 13. STUDENT TEACHERS

No employee with less than three (3) years experience in the District shall be assigned a student teacher. No employee will be assigned a student teacher without his/her prior consent and knowledge of such an assignment. When possible, such assignments shall be announced at least two weeks in advance of the student teacher's arrival.

SECTION 14. STAFF DEVELOPMENT

The employer is committed to the ongoing professional growth of all employees. The employer agrees that the District Staff Development Program shall be building-centered and employee-centered. Professional development will be supported through the following systems and structures: SIT, SIP and PLC. Professional development and growth will be driven by mutually agreed upon goals and plans that promote a positive impact on Student Learning. A positive impact on student learning means promoting the continuous achievement of the state learning goals and progress toward graduation throughout the K-12 system. Non-instructional certificated staff such as psychologists, nurses, counselors, and SLPs will review the agenda with the principal in advance to determine which, if any, items are pertinent to the their work (ie. building vision/goals). These employees will participate in those sessions. These employees shall have the choice to attend/lead any other portions of the professional development.

The District will make available to staff yearly a minimum of six (6) clock hours of training on STEM integration and Equity Based School Practices. The training(s) will be coded as STEM and Equity Based School Practices and meet STEM and Equity expectations required for teacher recertification.

A. Each school shall establish a School Improvement Team. SIT team members shall consist of elected representatives of employees and include at least one elected SEA representative.

- B. School Improvement Teams in collaboration with the administration shall have the following responsibilities:
 - 1. Determine building/staff needs through a School Improvement Plan process: needs assessment, goal development, fiscal support/recommendations, and monitoring and evaluation of the plan.
 - Make building level educational recommendations regarding curriculum, instruction and assessment.
 - 3. Make recommendations to the district level leadership teams.
- C. Individual teacher names will not be included on any data distributed to staff without permission from the staff member. Data comparison sheets will not be organized in a way that will allow identification of individual teachers.

D. Notification of Programs Available:

The District shall establish a process for advance timely notification to all employees of any programs available in the district/region of which the District has been made aware.

E. Voluntary Participation:

The participation of any employee in supplemental staff development programs shall be optional. No member shall be required to attend a training, or committee, during the student day.

F. Teachers as Professional Development Trainers:

To build capacity in our system, the District supports qualified teachers providing inservice training for other teachers when such training is aligned with school learning goals and school improvement plans. If a teacher is hired to provide professional development for colleagues, payment for this service shall be structured in one of two ways:

- 1. For training provided on a contracted day: two (2) hours of preparation time for each hour of presentation time.
- 2. For training provided on a non-contracted day, two (2) hours of preparation time for each hour of presentation time and per diem for the day of presentation.

The school principal and the school improvement team must approve and schedule the in-service to support school learning goals and the school improvement plan. Building staff development funds are used to support the trainer's fees.

SECTION 15. VISITATION DAYS

A. Each employee shall have one (1) paid day every other year for visitation to other districts or other classrooms within Sunnyside School District in order to observe instruction. The day shall be within the student calendar year.

B. The Superintendent may grant the employee the prerogative of visiting for one-half (1/2) day every year, upon request.

SECTION 16. BUILDING BUDGET COMMITTEE

- A. There shall be established in each school building a budgeting process which shall consist of members of the building School Improvement Team (SIT). The SIT may, where applicable, suggest priorities and allocations within the building budget, including but not limited to, all local, state, and federal monies, for purchasing instructional supplies, materials and equipment, developing curriculum and implementing programs such as in-service trainings.
- B. A monthly report, when available, accounting for all moneys expended for each school building shall be distributed if available to the committee SIT in that building. The term "school building" is defined as any building in which instruction takes place. The primary responsibility for the administration of the building budget shall be the principal's.
- C. Prior to the close of school each year, all employees in each school building shall submit in writing their requests for supplies, equipment and materials to be purchased prior to the official opening of the school year. If some items have not yet arrived by that time, the current status of such items shall be indicated through the building principal or designee to the employee involved.

SECTION 17. TECHNOLOGY COMMITTEE

A technology committee will be established to provide input into which devices and operational programs will be purchased when a refresh or new implementation occurs. The members of this committee will be SEA representatives from every building, chosen by the administrator and SEA head building representative.

SECTION 18. DIVERSITY, EQUITY, AND INCLUSION

The Sunnyside School District and the Sunnyside Education association are committed to promoting inclusive learning environments where:

- All students regardless of race, gender, gender identity, ethnicity, religion, first language and sexual orientation are able to build meaningful connections and envision their future.
- Equity exists for families to have access to their child's school and learning regardless of barriers and the SSD will strive to provide inclusive opportunities for families.

Starting in 2022, a district equity team will be created to examine cultural competency, diversity, equity, and inclusion as defined by **RCW 28A.415.443.** This team shall meet monthly, and be co-chaired by an appointee of the SEA president(s), and a district leader

and shall include at least one member from each building as chosen by the head building rep and equal representation from the district. The committee will also include student family representatives.

ARTICLE VII LEAVES

SECTION 1. SICK LEAVE

- A. At the beginning of each school year each employee shall be credited with an advanced sick leave allowance of twelve (12) days with full pay to be used for absence caused by illness, injury, pregnancy disability, parental bonding, family care, emergency, quarantine, disability, mental condition, or any reason listed under leave sharing. Each employee's portion of unused sick leave allowance shall accumulate from year to year to a maximum of one hundred eighty (180) days.
- B. The twelve (12) days of sick leave is based on 1.0 FTE and will be prorated for different FTE.
- C. Employees may use accrued sick leave as a supplemental benefit while receiving Washington Paid Family & Medical Leave.
- D. Sick leave cash-out procedures shall be in accordance with the law.
 - 1. In January of the year following any year in which a minimum of sixty (60) days of leave for illness or injury is accrued, and each January thereafter, any eligible employee may exercise an option to receive remuneration for unused leave for illness or injury accumulated in the previous year at a rate equal to one (1) day's monetary compensation of the employee for each four (4) full days of accrued leave for illness or injury in excess of sixty (60) days. Leave for illness or injury for which compensation has been received shall be deducted from accrued leave for illness or injury at the rate of four (4) days for every one (1) day's monetary compensation: PROVIDED, that no employee may receive compensation under this section for any portion of leave for illness or injury accumulated at a rate in excess of one (1) day per month.
 - 2. At the time of separation from school district employment due to retirement or death, an eligible employee or the employee's estate shall receive remuneration at a rate equal to one (1) day's current monetary compensation of the employee for each four (4) full days accrued leave for illness or injury.
- E. Absence due to injury incurred in the course of the employee's employment may be compensated for in the following manner: For absences due to job related injuries which qualify for Industrial Accident and Worker's Compensation coverage, a prorated portion of sick leave may be used which when added to any of the above compensation shall equal, but not exceed, the employee's normal salary. For absences due to job related injuries covered by Worker's Compensation or State Industrial Insurance, the employee shall initially select either sick leave or State coverage.
- F. The District will provide each employee with an accounting of their accumulated sick leave and all transactions concerning their sick leave days within that time period.

- G. An employee who is unable to perform assigned duties may utilize Washington State Paid Family & Medical Leave, Federal Medical Leave, and/or shared leave, contingent on meeting the conditions for such leave. An employee may also request to utilize unpaid leave. An employee who has been granted leave may return to service during the period of the leave after giving ten (10) days written notice to the Superintendent and with the written permission of his/her personal physician, if applicable.
- H. For any sick leave absence in excess of 5 consecutive days, a signed statement from a health care provider will be requested by the Human Resources office via email to the member WAC 296-128-660:
 - a. The employer must not require that the information provided explain the nature of the condition.
 - b. Employer-required verification may not result in an unreasonable burden or expense on the employee.
 - c. If the employee anticipates that the requirement will result in an unreasonable burden or expense, the employee must be allowed to provide an oral or written explanation.

SECTION 2. WASHINGTON STATE PAID FAMILY & MEDICAL LEAVE (PFML)

- A. An employee may be eligible for paid leave under Washington State's Paid Family and Medical Leave (PFML). PFML is administered by the State of Washington, Employment Security Department. Eligibility and claim approval are determined by the Employment Security Department, not the school district.
- B. Each employee who qualifies for PFML is entitled to up to 12 weeks of Paid Family & Medical Leave per year. PFML may be used at any time in the 12 calendar months after a qualifying event, if the event and doctor's note indicate that need.
- C. Employees may utilize PFML without exhausting all other leaves.
- D. PFML may run consecutively or concurrently with sick and/or personal leaves as determined by the employee.
- E. The district shall notify all employees annually about the premium, benefits, and claim process of PFML.
- F. Five business days after an employee's seventh consecutive day of absence due to family or medical leave, or five business days after an employer becomes aware that the employee's absence is due to family or medical leave, the district shall provide a statement of employee's rights to said employee.

- G. Employees may use accrued sick leave as a supplemental benefit while receiving Washington Paid Family & Medical Leave.
- H. If leave is foreseeable, the employee must give the district 30 days' notice, or as soon as practical.

SECTION 3: FEDERAL FAMILY AND MEDICAL LEAVE ACT (FMLA)

- A. An employee may be eligible for unpaid leave under Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA). The Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA) entitles eligible employees who work for covered employers to take unpaid, job-protected leave for specified family and medical reasons.
- B. Each employee who qualifies for FMLA is entitled to up to twelve (12) workweeks of unpaid leave per year. FMLA may be used at any time in the 12 calendar months after a qualifying event, if the event and doctor's note indicate that need.

SECTION 4. LEAVE SHARING

- A. A leave sharing program has been established for the employees of the Sunnyside School District in accordance with RCW 41.04.665: Leave sharing is allowed for the following conditions outlined in RCW 41.04.665. Appropriate documentation such as a statement from a medical provider is required, if applicable.
 - 1. An employee suffers from, or has a relative or household member suffering from, an illness, injury, impairment, or physical or mental conditions which is of an extraordinary or severe nature,
 - 2. The employee has been called to service in the uniformed services;
 - 3. The employee is a current member of the uniformed services or is a veteran as defined under RCW 41.04.005 and are attending medical appointments or treatments for a service-connected injury or disability;
 - 4. The employee is the spouse of a current member of the uniformed services or a veteran as defined under RCW 41.04.005 who is attending medical appointments or treatments for a service-connected injury or disability and requires assistance while attending appointment or treatment;
 - 5. A state of emergency has been declared anywhere within the United States by the federal or any state government and the employee has needed skills to assist in responding to the emergency or its aftermath and volunteers his or her services to either a governmental agency or to a nonprofit organization engaged in humanitarian relief in the devastated area, and the governmental agency or nonprofit organization accepts the employee's offer of volunteer services;
 - 6. The employee is a victim of domestic violence, sexual assault, or stalking;

- 7. The employee needs the time for parental leave;
- 8. The employee is sick or temporarily disabled because of pregnancy disability.
- B. Shared sick leave may be used intermittently or on nonconsecutive days.
- C. The employee or designee will initiate the leave sharing process. The employee or designee will bring to the Human Resources Office written documentation of the need for leave. The employee or designee will determine from the business office when sick leave will be shortly depleted (forty (40) hours or less).
- D. Any eligible certificated employee may donate excess leave to another staff member of Sunnyside School District who has been approved for shared sick leave.
 - **a. DONOR** Must maintain a balance of at least twenty-two (22) days and may not transfer more than six (6) leave days during a twelve (12) month period.

Employees shall put in writing the number of days they wish to donate. Shared leave shall be donated one (1) day at a time per donating employee. Leave will not be transferred until a need exists. Contributions of leave shall be on a voluntary basis and names of the donors shall remain confidential.

Example:

Employee A needs ten (10) days leave donated

Employee B donates three (3) days

Employee C donates two (2) days

Employees E, F, G, H, I, J, K, and L each donate one (1) day.

The District shall take one (1) day from Employee B, one (1) day from employee C, and one (1) day each from Employees E-L totaling ten (10) days.

b. RECIPIENT Must not be eligible for worker's compensation and must have exhausted or will shortly exhaust (forty hours or less) annual and/or sick leave. The amount of leave an employee may receive shall be determined by RCW 41.04.665.

Such a program is intended to extend leave benefits to a staff member who otherwise would have to take leave without pay or terminate his/her employment with the District.

E. Donated leave shall be donated on a dollar basis (gross pay) rather than a day for day basis. (If an employee wishing to donate leave earns one hundred dollars (\$100) per day and the person needing the leave earns two hundred dollars (\$200) a day, it will take two (2) days of donated leave to pay for one (1) day for the employee needing

- one (1) day of donated leave.) Benefit costs will be added on to the cost of salary to find total cost of employee receiving benefits.
- F. An employee receiving donated leave shall receive the same benefits and pay as if they had been working.

SECTION 5. FAMILY ILLNESS LEAVE

- A. Employees shall, upon request, be granted a leave of absence with pay during a contract year when such absence is occasioned by reasons listed in RCW 41.04.665: of any family member as defined in RCW 50A.05.010. Such leave shall be deducted from sick leave.
- B. Eligible employees may utilize FMLA or PFML to care for a family member as defined in RCW 50A.05.010.

SECTION 6. EMERGENCY LEAVE

- A. Emergency leave shall be granted with pay. Emergency leave may be taken at the employee's discretion for personal reasons or due to a problem that has been suddenly precipitated or is unplanned; or where preplanning could not relieve the necessity for the employee's absence. Such leave shall be taken from sick leave.
- B. The intent of the above leaves is to make it possible for employees to be absent for the stated reasons and not for personal pleasure or profit.

SECTION 7. PERSONAL LEAVE

- A. Personal leave of three (3) days shall be granted with pay. Unused personal leave shall accumulate to a total of ten (10) days. No reason shall be required as to the purpose for using the personal leave day.
- B. An employee shall be required to notify the District in advance to allow time to arrange for a substitute. Recommended advance notice is ten (10) working days prior to the first personal leave day before and /or after holidays and after May 1. Recommended advance notice is three to five (3-5) working days throughout the remainder of the school year. Early notification of planned use of personal leave is strongly encouraged.
- C. The intent of this process to secure personal leave is to open and maintain dialogue between employees and the District in order to serve the educational needs of students, the personal needs of employees, and the building management needs of administrators (i.e. substitute availability).
- D. Unused personal leave will automatically accumulate to the maximum accumulation unless individuals make a written request on the approved electronic form to the HR/Payroll Office to cash them out at a rate of two hundred fifty (\$250) dollars per day. Days will be paid in the same manner as other additional pay (example: turned in by April 10th, paid on April 30th). After the last contracted day, any days above seven (7) will be deposited into the employee's VEBA account in the month of July at

- the rate of \$250 per day. All unused days of an employee who declares and is eligible to retire, will be deposited into their VEBA account with the July payroll.
- E. Unit members in TRS Plan 1 may not cash out unused Personal Leave days during the two (2) years prior to retirement.

SECTION 8. BEREAVEMENT LEAVE

Up to five (5) days shall be granted with pay for bereavement in the event of death of an immediate family member or close personal friend. Such leave is non-accumulative. Such leave may be extended by the Superintendent.

SECTION 9. MATERNITY/PARENTAL LEAVES

An employee requesting a pregnancy disability and/or parental leave shall notify the District in advance of his or her intention to take leave and the estimated date when he/she will return to work. Employees may use sick, personal, PFML, and unpaid leaves for pregnancy disability and parental leaves, in consecutive or concurrent order as determined by the employee.

A. Pregnancy Disability Leave WAC 162-30-020: 4d:

- 1. The length of pregnancy disability leave lasts as long as the employee's healthcare provider determines the parent is disabled due to pregnancy and/or childbirth.
- 2. The employee shall be able to return to her job under the same uniform terms and conditions as any other employee with Other Leaves Policy (Article VII, Sections 14 and 15).
- 3. An employee may be eligible for PFML in addition to the pregnancy disability leave indicated in this section. Those leaves may run consecutively or concurrently as determined by the employee.
- 4. Employees who have a need to express breast milk will be provided reasonable break time for up to two (2) years after the child's birth each time the employee has need to express milk. The employee will be provided a private and secure location, other than a bathroom, which may be used by the employee to express breast milk. The employer shall work with the employee to identify a convenient location and work schedule to accommodate the employee's needs

B. Parental Leave

1. An employee shall be allowed to use up to sixty (60) days of accumulated sick leave for introducing a new child into their family. This leave may be utilized all at once or intermittently throughout the 12 month period. The employee shall be able to return to his or her job under the same uniform

- terms and conditions as any other employee as set forth in Return from Leave (Article VII, Section 15)
- 2. This applies to regular childbirth as well as adoption and fostering.
- 3. If the employee does not have enough sick leave, the employee may go on an unpaid parental leave. Unpaid parental leave may be extended, if qualified, under FMLA in addition to the leave indicated in this section. The employee may continue District sponsored insurance programs while on unpaid leave by paying the associated premiums directly to the District.
- 4. An employee may be eligible for Washington Paid Family & Medical Leave (PFML) in addition to the parental leave indicated in this section. Those leaves may run consecutively or concurrently as determined by the employee.

C. Child Care Leave

An employee shall be entitled to take an unpaid leave of absence for child care for a length of time up to one (1) year. The employee shall be able to return to his or her job under the same uniform terms and conditions as any other employee consistent with Other Leaves Policy (Article VII Sections 14 and 15).

SECTION 10. MILITARY LEAVE

- A. Employees shall be granted a military leave of absence without pay when such leave is occasioned by induction into the armed services.
- B. While on leave, the employee shall retain all benefits as though employment had been continuous in the District.
- C. Upon return from leave, the employee shall be placed in the position last held or a similar position in the District. Military leave of absence is construed as regular service in regard to salary increments.
- D. Members of the Washington National Guard, the Army, Navy, Air Force, Coast Guard, or Marine Reserve of the United States shall be granted military leave of absence from his/her teaching assignment for a period not exceeding twenty-one (21) calendar days during each year beginning October 1st and ending the following September 30th. The employee shall receive his/her normal District pay, and there shall be no loss of privileges, vacations or sick leave to which he/she might otherwise be entitled.

SECTION 11. JURY DUTY LEAVE

- A. An employee who is away from his/her duties because of jury duty shall be paid for such time lost at his/her normal rate of pay.
- B. An employee will be granted a maximum of two (2) days leave if subpoenaed as a witness in court or other legal proceedings; provided that a leave with pay shall not be granted to an employee for a case brought or supported by a staff member, union, or association for a case in which the staff member has a direct or indirect interest in the proceedings. On any day that an employee is released from jury duty or as a witness

- by the court and four or more hours of the employee's scheduled work day remains, the employee is to inform his/her supervisor and report to work if requested to do so.
- C. The Superintendent or designee may extend the definition and intent of the subpoena leave policy on an individual basis.

SECTION 12. PROFESSIONAL LEAVE

- A. Professional leaves may be granted for up to one (1) year to employees who have been with the District for at least three (3) years upon approval of the Board. An employee who has had a professional leave can become eligible for another professional leave after serving an additional three (3) years in the District.
- B. An employee on professional leave shall receive no salary, but will receive other employee benefits he/she would have received if he/she had remained on active duty.
- C. Employees granted professional leaves may agree to return to regular service in the District upon the expiration of their leaves for a period of at least one (1) year.
- D. In the event an employee elects not to return to the District, that employee will be required to pay the District back for the actual cost of benefits received.
- E. Any employee desiring professional leave must submit a written request to the Superintendent prior to April of the school year prior to the year for which leave is requested, provide an outline of the activities in which he/she will be engaged and indicate the length of leave.
- F. No more than two percent (2%) of all employees shall be granted professional leave during any school year.
- G. An employee returning from professional leave shall be given the same consideration for returning to the position of his/her last assignment as if he/she had been on active duty. If re-assignment is contemplated, a conference with the Superintendent shall be held to find an assignment that is mutually agreeable.
- H. If more than two percent (2%) of the employees in the District apply, the evaluation and recommendation for leave shall be determined by a committee of three (3): One (1) representative from the Board and two (2) representatives from the Association.

SECTION 13. PROFESSIONAL TRAINING

- A. Meetings, conferences, symposiums and seminars at which concerns vital to the profession are the subject of discussions are recognized by the District as an inherent part of the employee's professional obligation
- B. Such leaves may be granted by request to the Superintendent, and when required, by the Board.
 - 1. Full Payment Leaves.

- a) Substitute and necessary expenses paid by the District. This category applies to employees authorized by the Board to represent the District at professional conferences, meetings, symposiums, and seminars.
- 2. Partial Payment Leaves.
- a) Substitute paid by the District; necessary expenses paid by the employee or outside agency. This category applies to employees authorized by the Board to represent the District in cooperation with outside agencies at conferences, meetings, symposiums and seminars.
- b) Substitute provided by the Association with no expenses paid by the District. This category applies to employees who are authorized and selected by the Association to be in attendance at professional conferences, meetings, symposiums and seminars. Whenever possible, notification of leave shall be submitted by the Association president in writing to the Superintendent two (2) days before the leave is to take effect.
- C. The Association president and the employee shall be informed of the arrangements made for the leave. The principal shall be responsible for securing a substitute.

SECTION 14. OTHER LEAVES

- A. Leaves of absence of up to one (1) year without pay may be granted employees for the purposes of study, travel, recuperation, child care, teaching in another school district, working in a professionally related field, Association or Association-related business. A letter of intent will be mailed to the employee on leave by May 1. A postmarked reply stating the employee's intent to return (or not return) to the District will be required by May 15. If the required timelines are not met, the approved Leave of Absence will end effective May 16.
- B. Employee benefits may be maintained by the employee.
- C. Upon request by the employee, such leave may be renewed for up to one (1) additional year.
- D. Any employee granted a leave of absence may not return to work during the leave period unless a position is opened for which they are qualified, unless agreed to by the District.
- E. Employees are contracted for a set number of days. For the benefit of students, both parties agree that teachers need to be in their classrooms as much as possible. Therefore, employees should make every effort not to use Leave Without Pay. In circumstances where Leave Without Pay is requested, superintendent approval is required. Approval may or may not be granted.
- F. An employee may utilize unpaid leave when all other leave options have been exhausted due to extraordinary or severe medical reasons. During the first three (3) months of this unpaid medical leave, the employee will receive insurance benefits the same as if they were not on leave.

SECTION 15. RETURN FROM LEAVES

- A. Upon return from leave, the employee shall be placed in the position last held or in a similar position in the District.
- B. Employees returning from a leave of absence of one year or greater will be evaluated using the Comprehensive Evaluation or Long Form upon returning from leave.

ARTICLE VIII - FISCAL

SECTION 1. EMPLOYEE WORK YEAR

- A. The employee work year shall be one hundred eighty (180) days as set forth in the appendices, which are attached hereto and made a part hereof. Unit members who are unavailable to work the scheduled Supplemental Professional Development Days will be permitted to work an alternative date(s) as mutually agreed.
- B. The Board will identify Flex Professional Development days and those days may be used in alternative ways as described below. Once the Board approves the calendar, and prior to the last day of school, each school should then determine how to use its Flex Professional Development days by choosing from these two options:
 - 1. Use the Flex PD days as they are designated in the calendar.
 - 2. Use one or two Flex PD days in no less than 15-minute increments across the school year before or after school.

The school administration will meet with their School Improvement Team and Head Building Representative to develop two or more Flex PD choices for staff vote.

The Head Building Representative will conduct the voting and report the outcome to the SEA President and Superintendent. A majority of those who vote constitutes approval. The day before the first day of school will be used for the district opening meeting, a union meeting, and completion of online Safe Schools training.

- C. There shall be no deviation from or change in workdays except by mutual agreement of the parties.
- D. In the event that mutual agreement cannot be achieved as in the preceding paragraph, and state apportionment funds are threatened, the Board may act unilaterally.

SECTION 2. WORK DAY/PAYMENT

- A. The employee may start and end their day anytime as long as it begins at least 10 minutes prior to the student start and ends 10 minutes after student dismissal. The employee will work their contracted hours from their start time, exclusive of their 30 minute duty free lunch. Employees must inform their Principal of their chosen start time by the first day of school. The employee will attend PLCs and monthly staff meetings. The employee will be able to flex their time to make themselves available for scheduled meetings.
 - After the start of the school year, the workday at all schools will remain fixed.
 Should the District wish to make a change in the defined workday during the school year or from one school year to the next, they will notify the Association in writing of the proposed change. The Parties shall meet to discuss the change and its impact on employees. No change will be made prior to mutual agreement.

- 2. It is the intent of the District to provide a safe and productive learning environment for students. Therefore, each school's staff and building administrators, in the spirit of cooperative planning, will develop through consensus, a fair and equitable plan to ensure the safe and efficient daily operation of the school. The plan may include supervision of students during non-instructional time, such as bus duty, passing time, assemblies, etc., but excludes teacher preparation time.
- 3. Employees are not responsible for the supervision of students more than ten (10) minutes before the scheduled start of the student instructional day other than what is required by statute.
- B. In addition to regular building hours and consistent with traditional expectations associated with the performance of employees, the following shall apply:
 - 1. Employees shall spend time outside of building hours to the extent necessary for adequate preparation for instruction, pupil and parent consultations, and other occasional activities related to instruction.
 - 2. Employees shall attend staff meetings within building hours when and as required by the Superintendent or principal. Every effort shall be made to conduct meetings during the regular school day. Staff meetings shall be limited to one a month, except in case of emergency.
 - 3. Employees who are asked to attend non-athletic school events beyond the work day will be compensated at committee rates. These events will be calendared by the first week of school. Employees shall make every effort to attend.
 - 4. Each certificated employee may claim up to 2 hours each year for the time spent filling out state or district required paperwork.
- C. Employees shall adhere to the daily schedule and shall make no commitments which will preclude their presence in their assigned responsibilities. Requests for exceptions must be submitted to the principal prior to the anticipated absence and/or late arrival or early leaving. Employees shall not leave the buildings to which they are assigned during class or preparation periods without the approval (and/or notification) of the building principal.
- D. All employees shall be paid in twelve (12) monthly installments. Payroll checks shall be issued to the employees on the last business day of each month, if funds are available.
- E. An employee receiving an overpayment or underpayment has an obligation to notify the payroll office. In the event of a mistake in payment resulting in underpayment or overpayment within the previous two (2) years, the District and employee involved shall mutually determine an arrangement for correction. Payment arrangements will be processed through the payroll system. When at all possible, overpayments will be corrected within one (1) year. If an employee separates, the remainder of any overpayment shall be due in full and taken from the employee's final payroll.

F. All compensation owed to an employee who is leaving the District shall, upon request be paid within fifteen (15) days after the final day of work, providing funds are available.

SECTION 3. CONFERENCES

A. To better meet the needs of families with the goal to reach 100% attendance, conference times may be adjusted by buildings. Within the first month of school, members at each building must approve by vote any adjustment to the days designated as "Conferences" on the calendar. The actual hours worked will not change. At the elementary level, members of each building will vote to determine seven (7) hours of building time during the designated conference week. Seven (7) hours of conference time will be determined by each teacher individually, and be completed during the conference window unless there are extenuating circumstances. The conference window will be mutually determined each year during the development of the district calendar. Teachers will provide the office a schedule of conferences. No changes will be made to an individual teacher's conference schedule without agreement from the teacher.

SECTION 4. EMERGENCY SCHOOL DELAYED OPENING OR CLOSURE

- A. In the event it becomes necessary to delay or close school because of weather or other emergency situations, employees will be notified through various media outlets by 6:00 a.m., when possible.
- B. If schools are delayed because of inclement weather or an emergency, employees shall be required to report to work thirty (30) minutes prior to the planned emergency start time.
- C. If school has begun for the day and early dismissal is required, employees will be dismissed immediately following students.
- D. No teacher shall be required to report for work on a day when student attendance in the building has been suspended for emergency reasons. No employee shall be subjected to loss of pay or benefits due to non-attendance on days when schools have been closed for emergency reasons.
- E. If students are required by the District to makeup days, employees will also make up the days. If makeup days are required, the District and the Association will mutually agree upon the dates.
- F. In case of unforeseen events in which the District requests and is granted a waiver from OSPI for the one hundred and eighty (180) days school year, employees shall suffer no loss in wages, or benefits and will make up the hours in the following way:

for every seven (7) hours missed, teachers will complete five (5) hours teacher validated time and two (2) hours PLC time.

SECTION 5. SUPPLEMENTAL DAYS/TRI/EXTENDED CONTRACTS:

A. Extended contracts:

All extended contracts shall be paid with funds other than BEA funds. All extended contracts shall be paid on supplemental contracts and the funds shall come from block grants, State Remedial, State Bilingual, or any other District funds. Such extended contracts shall include all positions listed on the Supplemental Services Schedule plus any other contracts currently paid as extended contracts. The District shall advise employees in writing not later than May 15th if the individual's supplemental or extended contract is not renewed for the coming year.

- B. Employees may work supplemental days as follows:
 - 1. All certificated staff will receive twelve (12) supplemental days
 - A. Four (4) days shall be for professional learning activities.
 - B. One (1) state day will be a professional development day that adheres to state requirements.
 - C. Two (2) state days shall be used between trimesters. One day shall exist immediately after the end of the first trimester and second trimester. These days will be used for planning, grading, and PLC work. These days will be worked at the school site and be directed by the individual teacher.
 - D. Five (5) days shall be teacher validated days. These days must be used to improve classroom instruction, for curriculum development, or in support of the school's learning improvement plan and must be worked by July 31.
 - 2. During the 2022-2023 school year, four hours will be available for training for teachers on new student growth goals requirements. Teachers may select the method of training to propose to building administration for approval. The following year, 2023-2024, a full day will be provided for the same model.
 - 3. Special education teachers, SLPs, psychologists and nurses can use up to four (4) in-service days of professional growth during a summer institute program or other professionally recognized training.
 - 4. Certified employees working with Kindergarten students will receive three (3) days supplemental compensation, not inclusive of the three (3) days of Kindergarten Orientation. One (1) additional day may be granted in the spring if needed for year-end testing and inputting data and uploading evidence. The purpose of these days is to enable employees to meet the requirements of WaKIDS.

- 5. Employees who are unable to work scheduled supplemental days will be permitted to work an alternative time(s) as mutually agreed with the administrator.
- 6. The District shall provide three (3) days per year for management time for each elementary media specialist. This time will be in addition to the plan time already guaranteed by the master contract and would be scheduled by each elementary media specialist. For each elementary media specialist, a substitute teacher will be hired to teach the classes during the management day. The Media Specialist is required to be at the building sites during these days.
- 7. Since CTSOs are by definition an extension of the CTE classroom, all CTSO Advisors who participate in their organizations' leadership activity, local competitions, and regional competitions will be paid .0512 above the salary schedule.
- 8. Secondary counselors who work on scheduling will receive up to 10 extra days to complete this work.
- 9. The District will compensate SLPs holding the Certificate of Clinical Competence from the American Speech-Language Hearing Association at \$1,000 per year.
- 10. The District will compensate Psychologists holding professional certification from the National Association of School Psychologists \$5,000 per year.
- 11. The District will compensate each Nationally Certified School Nurse \$2,500 per year.
- 12. Employees with 17 years or more of experience shall receive Supplemental Longevity Pay at the following rates:

	Supplemental Longevity Pay*
Years of Experience	
17-20	1.2%
21-24	1.8%
25-27	2.4%
28-31	3%
32-35	3.6%
36-39	4.2%
40+	4.8%

^{*}Years as placed on the Salary Schedule.

13. Retirement/Resignation Notification Stipend: Upon submission to the District of a signed letter of retirement or resignation (effective at the end of the school year) on or before February 1, retiring and resigning employees shall be given a one-time stipend of \$500.

- C. Participation in the Professional Learning Supplemental Days shall be optional with each employee and shall be separate and apart from the regular contracted services. Staff members will be eligible to participate in the program in the same ratio as their service years to full-time service. The time will be paid on an hourly basis. This rate will be calculated at each employee's per diem, one-one hundred eightieth(1/180) of the annual salary rate, excluding all supplemental contracts, divided by seven (7) hours.
- D. No provisions of this contract shall be interpreted or applied so as to place the District in breach of salary limitations imposed by state law or subject the District to a state-funding penalty.
- E. All inservice required by the District or by assignment will be paid at the employee's per diem.
- F. When Professional Development inservices or trainings are offered, the district shall make clear if they are required or optional.

SECTION 6. HOURLY RATE

- a. Employees who teach after school or who participate in District-directed committee work or optional training outside the normal workday shall be paid an hourly rate of \$42.00.
- b. Certificated teachers who teach summer school will be paid \$42.00 per hour or their per diem rate, whichever is greater.

SECTION 7. JOB SHARING

Employees who want to share a job should work with the building administrator to submit a job-sharing plan to the District for approval. Employees who job share shall receive compensation and benefits on a pro-rated basis.

SECTION 8. EDUCATIONAL STAFF ASSOCIATES

Educational Staff Associates shall be placed on the certificated employee's salary schedule according to their education and experience. These employees shall be credited with up to two years of service credited for experience outside of education as per RCW 28A.150.410.

SECTION 9. SALARY

The salary schedule is attached as an appendix. Each cell of the salary schedule will be adjusted by the same percentage increase identified and funded by the state as an inflationary adjustment allocation for salaries each year of this Agreement through August 31, 2024 All certificated employees will receive this increase. The specific annual salary schedule shall be reviewed by both the Association and the District, or as a result of any action by the Washington State Legislature to ensure that the maximum funds allowable are being placed on the schedule. For 2022-23 the increase to each cell will be 5.5%. In the event the state rebases the annual salary allocation formula the SEA and SSD will meet to renegotiate the salary schedule. All financial items and working

conditions after August 1 each year will follow the contract language and financial rates of the new contract starting September 1.

SECTION 10. PROVISIONS GOVERNING EMPLOYEES' SALARY SCHEDULE

- A. **Placement of beginning employees on the salary schedule**. All beginning employees' salaries shall commence on Step A-0. Hours earned after such date of the awarding of the Bachelor's Degree shall be applicable for advanced placement on the schedule.
- B. **Index**. Increments for experience, education and Master's will be in accordance with the index shown on the Salary Schedule.
- C. **Education Credits.** Education credits will be granted for college work. College credits for advancement on the salary schedule will be accepted from a four-year-degree-granting institution. Credit for courses taken at community colleges shall be granted if in conformity with SPI regulations relating to state allocations.
 - 1. Credit for education experience shall be given when evidence of such credit is filed with the District. Such evidence should be in the form of official college transcripts and should be filed with the District's Business Office no later than September 10. If, for some circumstances beyond the control of the employee, the college transcripts are not available and the District has been advised by the college of the credit, the employee shall be granted the allowance for credit. The District will provide for the staff notice of available, accredited college courses throughout the year to be held in this District or in surrounding Districts.
 - 2. Education credits may be given for non-college educational activities voluntarily entered into by an employee for the purpose of strengthening his/her competencies.
- D. **Experience Credits**. Experience credit shall be given for military service which interrupts the employee's career up to five (5) years. Military service from six to seventeen (6-17) months will be credited as one (1) year, eighteen to twenty-nine (18-29) months will be credited as two (2) years, thirty to forty-one (30-41) months as three (3) years, forty-two to fifty-three (42-53) months as four (4) years and fifty-four (54) or more months as five (5) years.
- E. **Out-of-State Credits.** Employees hired from out-of-state shall be given the same credit consideration, rights and benefits as those hired within the state or those presently working for the District.
- F. Acceptance of Clock Hour/Inservice Credits: The District shall accept all clock hour and inservice credits that meet State Board of Education Approval Standards for clock hour and inservice credit. The credits shall count for advancement on the salary schedule. Ten (10) clock hours of inservice shall be equal to one (1) quarter university credit and shall be recognized as equivalent on the salary schedule--provided they qualify for State reimbursement.

1. Teachers may request replacement clock hour forms from the Curriculum, Instruction and Assessment Office for the current and previous three (3) school years. Starting in the fall of 2020 the district will provide all clock hours electronically.

SECTION 11. 125 PLAN

The District shall institute a 125 Plan.

SECTION 12. DEFERRED COMPENSATION

The District will offer employees the opportunity to participate in the State of Washington Deferred Compensation program.

SECTION 13. INSURANCE BENEFITS

- A. Beginning January 1, 2020 and each year thereafter, the employer agrees to provide the insurance plans, follow employee eligibility rules and provide funding for all bargaining unit members and their dependents as required by State law, the State Operating Budget and the School Employee Benefit Board (SEBB).
- B. The District shall pay 100% of the state health care authority retirement benefit fund (*commonly known as the carve-out*).
- C. VEBA- The District will provide \$600 per employee per year into an individual VEBA account.

SECTION 14. TRAVEL

A. Employees utilizing their private vehicle to travel on school business shall be compensated at the most recent rate being paid by the State of Washington. All employees, who by the nature of their assignment, must travel between schools or are required to make home visitations shall also be reimbursed at the most recent rate being paid by the State of Washington.

SECTION 15. TUITION REIMBURSEMENT

- A. The District agrees to maintain a \$40,000 fund each year for tuition reimbursement and tuition loan reimbursement:
- B. Each employee will be eligible for a maximum seven hundred and fifty (\$750) per year on an FTE basis.
 - 1. Courses taken must qualify for advancement on the Salary Schedule.

- 2. Tuition reimbursement will cover tuition and related textbooks, supplies, and materials.
- 3. Tuition reimbursement can be used for repayment of loans, limited solely to verified tuition costs. The District will make reimbursement checks payable to the employee and holder of the loan. Request for payment of loans may be made only after February 1 of each school year.
- 4. July 31 is the final deadline to turn in an official transcript for courses taken during the school year.

Dates: Fall, winter, spring, summer quarters/semesters that correspond with current school year. (For example: Current school 2018-2019, classes that are taken in the following quarters/semesters will qualify: Fall 2018, Winter 2019, Spring 2019, Summer 2019.

The first reimbursement for the 2018-2019 school year is September 30 and the last reimbursement is August 31. All documentation needs to be turned into the Business office by the tenth of the month to be paid on the next payday.

Required Tuition Documentation:

- Complete credit approval form signed by principal
- Copy of registration form—indicating term of enrollment
- Proof of Payment*
- An official transcript (This is not required prior to reimbursement—but it is required when course is completed.)
- * One of the following qualifies as proof of payment for tuition reimbursement:
 - A canceled check written to college
 - · Receipt from college showing payment made for course being reimbursed
 - Copy of a credit card receipt to college for payment
 - Account statement from college
 - Credit card statement showing payment to college

Required Loan Repayment Documentation:

- Completed credit approval form signed by principal
- Copy of registration—indicating term of enrollment
- Photocopy of statement from college/financial aid office
- An official transcript (This is not required prior to reimbursement—but is required when course is completed.)
- C. The District agrees to maintain a \$15,000 fund to reimburse teachers enrolled in the National Teacher Certification program. Eligibility documentation shall include National Teacher Certification participation selection approval. Each employee will be eligible for a maximum seven hundred and fifty (\$750) per year on an FTE basis.
- D. An employee who requests but does not receive the tuition reimbursement the first year shall be placed first on the eligibility list to receive reimbursement until March 1st the following year.

- E. Monies intended for tuition reimbursement not used by the employee may carry over for use during the life of this contract.
- F. In the event that the budget for national boards or tuition reimbursement is depleted, the monies from one account may be used to fund the other.
- G. Employees receiving the \$5,000 reimbursement may also apply for the \$750 reimbursement

If Title II funds are available, the District will reimburse up to \$5,000 of the cost of tuition to current certificated staff enrolled in a program to add an endorsement in Special Education or obtain certification in Special Education, School Psychology or Speech Language Pathology through an approved certification program.

If Title III funds are available, the District will reimburse up to \$5,000 of the cost of tuition to current ELL teachers who are impacted by new TBIP endorsement requirements.

- 1. In order to be reimbursed, certified staff must receive prior approval from the District before beginning the program of student and may be required by the District to first apply for the PESB Educator Retooling Conditional Scholarship Program. The employee will make a good faith effort on the scholarship application and the District will provide assistance if needed.
- 2. Certified staff receiving reimbursement can be required to sign an agreement to be employed for at least three (3) years in the District after receiving the endorsement and/or certification.
- 3. Certified staff receiving reimbursement may also receive tuition reimbursement designated in Section 13 of the bargained agreement if funds are available at the end of the year (August 31).

ARTICLE IX - GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

Parties to this contract are encouraged to settle disputes at the lowest possible step. If informal discussion is unable to resolve the issue/problem the parties are encouraged to consider an informal or formal mediation either prior to or during the processing of a grievance. Should the parties agree to use mediation, they should be mindful of Article IX, Section 5. Time Limits.

SECTION 1 DEFINITION

A grievance is a claim by an employee or the Association that there has been a violation, misinterpretation or misapplication of any provision of this Agreement and should be processed as a grievance as hereinafter provided.

SECTION 2. PROCEDURE

In the event that an employee believes there is a basis for a grievance, the employee may first discuss the alleged grievance with his/her building principal or other appropriate supervisor either personally or accompanied by his/her Association representative. If the grievance is not thus resolved, formal grievance procedures may be instituted. However, the exhaustion of the informal procedure is not a condition precedent in invoking the formal grievance procedure.

STEP I

The grievant may invoke the formal grievance procedure through the Association on the grievance form which will be available from the Association representative in each building. A copy of the grievance form shall be delivered to the principal or appropriate supervisor. If the grievance involves more than one school building, it may be filed with the Superintendent or a representative designated by the Superintendent. A grievance must be filed within twenty (20) school days of the occurrence of which he/she complains or twenty (20) school days of the time when the grievant learned of the occurrence of which he/she complains, whichever is later.

STEP I REPLY

Within five (5) school days of receipt of the written grievance, the principal or appropriate supervisor shall meet with the grievant in an effort to resolve the grievance. The principal or appropriate supervisor shall indicate his/her disposition of the grievance in writing within five (5) school days of such meeting and shall furnish a copy thereof to the Association and grievant.

STEP II

If the grievant is not satisfied with the disposition of the grievance or if no disposition has been made within five (5) school days of such meeting or ten (10) days from date of filing, whichever shall be later, the grievance shall be transmitted to the Superintendent. Within five (5) school days the Superintendent or his/her designee shall meet with the Association on the grievance and shall indicate his/her disposition

of the grievance in writing within five (5) school days of such meeting and shall furnish a copy thereof to the Association and grievant.

STEP III

If the grievant is not satisfied with the results of Step II, or in the event that no agreeable resolution is reached within ten (10) school days after he/she or the Association has first met with the Superintendent, he/she may ask the local Association to request a meeting with the Board of Directors through the Superintendent or through the Chairman of the Board. The individual may, if he/she wishes, take such action himself, requesting such counsel or assistance from the Association as he/she may desire.

The Board of Directors shall within twenty-five (25) days of the receipt of the request, confer with the individual and/or representatives of the local Association to hear the individual's grievance and attempt to reach a satisfactory solution. The Board shall indicate their disposition of the grievance in writing of such meeting, and shall furnish a copy thereof to the Association.

STEP IV

If the Association is not satisfied with the disposition of the grievance by the Board or if no disposition has been made within the period above provided, the grievance, only at the option of the Association, may be submitted before an impartial arbitrator. The Association shall exercise its right of arbitration by giving the Superintendent written notice of its intention to arbitrate within twenty (20) school days of receipt of the written disposition of the Board. The arbitrator shall be selected by the American Arbitration Association or the Federal Mediation & Conciliation Service. The parties shall separately rank and strike the names of arbitrators on the list and return their list to the appropriate agency for final arbitrator selection. Hearings shall be conducted in accordance with rules of the agency selected. The Board and the Association shall not be permitted to assert in such arbitration proceeding any ground rules, except as provided in "Jurisdiction of the Arbitrator", or to rely on any evidence not previously disclosed to the other party. The decision of the arbitrator shall be final and binding upon both parties.

SECTION 3. ARBITRATION COSTS.

Each party shall bear its own costs of arbitration except that the fees and charges of the arbitrator, if any, shall be shared equally by the parties.

SECTION 4. JURISDICTION OF THE ARBITRATOR.

A. The arbitrator shall have no power to alter, add to, or subtract from the terms of this Agreement. The arbitrator shall confine his/her inquiry and decision to the specific area of the Agreement as cited in the grievance form. The arbitrator shall not substitute his/her knowledge for the expressed provisions of the contract under

question. Upon request of either party, the merits of a grievance and the substantive and procedural arbitrability issues arising in connection with that grievance may be consolidated for hearing before an arbitrator, provided the arbitrator shall not resolve the question of arbitrability of a grievance prior to having heard the merits of the grievance.

B. The decision of the arbitrator may be entered in any court of competent jurisdiction should either party fail to implement the decision. If a motion to vacate the arbitrator's decision is entered in a court of competent jurisdiction, and the initiating party does not prevail in the litigation, such party shall bear the full costs of such action including, but not limited to, the adverse party's court costs, legal fees and other related expenses incurred as a result of defending such action.

SECTION 5. TIME LIMITS.

The time limits provided in this Article shall be strictly observed unless extended by written agreement of the parties.

- A. In the event a grievance is filed after May 15 of any year, the Board shall use its best efforts to process such grievance prior to the end of the school term or as soon thereafter as possible.
- B. Failure of the Association to proceed with its grievance within the time hereinbefore provided shall result in the dismissal of the grievance.
- C. Failure of the Board or its representatives to take the required action within the times provided shall entitle the Association to proceed to the next step of the grievance procedure.

SECTION 6. GRIEVANCE AND ARBITRATION HEARINGS.

All hearings or conferences pursuant to this grievance procedure shall be scheduled at a time and place which will afford a reasonable opportunity for all parties entitled to attend to be present, including any and all witnesses.

SECTION 7. INDIVIDUAL COMPLAINTS.

If an individual employee has a personal complaint which he/she desires to discuss with the supervisor, he/she is free to do so without recourse to the grievance procedure. However, no complaint shall be adjusted without prior notification to the Association and opportunity for an Association representative to be present, nor shall any such adjustment of the complaint be inconsistent with the terms of this Agreement. In the administration of the grievance procedure, the interest of the employee shall be the sole responsibility of the Association.

SECTION 8. EXCLUSIONS FROM ARBITRATION.

The following are excluded from arbitration:

- A. Non-renewal of provisional employees;
- B. Non-renewal of contract; provided, however, the layoff and recall provision will be arbitral; except the financial determination will be decided by the Superior Court per RCW 28A.405.380;
- C. Adverse affect of contract.

SECTION 9. CONTINUITY OF GRIEVANCE.

Notwithstanding the expiration of this Agreement, any claim or grievance arising hereunder may be processed through the grievance procedure until resolution.

DURATION

SECTION 1. TERM OF AGREEMENT

The term of this Agreement shall be September 1, 2022 to August 31, 2024.

This Agreement shall be effective as of September 1, 2022 and shall be binding upon the District and the Association, and their members; and shall remain in full force and effect through August 31, 2024.

SECTION 2. RE-OPENERS

The parties agree to participate in ongoing Interest Based bargaining with modifications during the term of the agreement by mutual consent of the parties. This agreement may be reopened to consider the impact of any legislation enacted which may affect the terms and conditions of the agreement.

This Agreement may be re-opened on any item during the term of the Collective Bargaining Agreement at the request of either Party or to problem-solve as needs arise.

FOR THE ASSOCIATION

Holissa Arquette

Melissa Arquette

Melissa Arquette

Molissa Molissa

Molissa Arquette

Molidons

Molissa Arquette

Molissa Arquette

Molissa Arquette

Molidons

Molissa Arquette

Molidons

Molissa Arquette

Molissa Arquette

Molissa Arquette

Molidons

Molissa Arquette

Mo

Jana Waywell, Lead Negotiator

Date: June 30, 2022 Ratified August 31, 2022

Sunnyside School District 2022-2023						
Vocas of Experience	Ŷ	ertified Salary Scho	edule - Total Comper BA+45	nsation 5.5% IPD BA+90/MA	MA+45	MA+90
Years of Experience	Base	47,598	51,726	55,855	59,983	64,111
	12 Supplemental Days	3,173	3,448	3,724	3,999	4,274
1	Total Compensation Base	50,771	55,174	59,579	63,982 61,029	68,385
1	12 Supplemental Days	48,352 3,223	52,578 3,505	56,803 3,787	4,069	65,255 4,350
	Total Compensation	51,575	56,083	60,590	65,098	69,605
2	Base	49,106 3.274	53,429	57,752	62,075	66,398
	12 Supplemental Days Total Compensation	52,380	3,562 56,991	3,850 61,602	4,138 66,213	4,427 70,825
3	Base	49,861	54,281	58,701	63,121	67,541
	12 Supplemental Days	3,324	3,619	3,913	4,208	4,503
4	Total Compensation Base	53,185 50,615	57,900 55,132	62,614 59,650	67,329 64,167	72,044 68,685
'	12 Supplemental Days	3,374	3,675	3,977	4,278	4,579
	Total Compensation	53,989	58,807	63,627	68,445	73,264
5	Base 12 Supplemental Days	52,358 3,491	57,100 3,807	61,843 4,123	66,585 4,439	71,327 4,755
	Total Compensation	55,849	60,907	65,966	71,024	76,082
6	Base	54,101	59,068	64,035	69,003	73,970
	12 Supplemental Days Total Compensation	3,607 57,708	3,938 63.006	4,269 68.304	4,600 73,603	4,931 78,901
7	Base	55,844	61,036	66,228	71,420	76,613
	12 Supplemental Days	3,723	4,069	4,415	4,761	5,108
	Total Compensation	59,567	65,105	70,643	76,181	81,721
8	Base 12 Supplemental Days	57,587 3,839	63,004 4,200	68,421 4,561	73,838 4,923	79,255 5,284
	Total Compensation	61,426	67,204	72,982	78,761	84,539
9	Base	59,330	64,972	70,614	76,256	81,898
	12 Supplemental Days Total Compensation	3,955 63,285	4,331 69,303	4,708 75,322	5,084 81,340	5,460 87,358
10	Base	61,073	66,940	72,807	78,674	84,541
	12 Supplemental Days	4,072	4,463	4,854	5,245	5,636
11	Total Compensation Base	65,145 62,816	71,403 68,908	77,661 75 ,000	83,919 81,091	90,177 87,183
1 11	12 Supplemental Days	m	4,594	5,000	5,406	5,812
	Total Compensation	#VALUE!	73,502	80,000	86,497	92,995
12	Base 12 Supplemental Days	64,559 4,304	70,876 4,725	77,192 5,146	83,509 5,567	89,826 5,988
	Total Compensation	68,863	75,601	82,338	89,076	95,814
13	Base	66,302	72,844	79,385	85,927	92,468
	12 Supplemental Days Total Compensation	4,420 70,722	4,856 77,700	5,292 84,677	5,728 91,655	6,165 98,633
14	Base	68,045	74,812	81,578	88,345	95,111
	12 Supplemental Days	4,536	4,987	5,439	5,890	6,341
15	Total Compensation Base	72,581 69,788	79,799 76,780	87,017 83,771	94,235 90,762	97,754
13	12 Supplemental Days	4,653	5,119	5,585	6,051	6,517
	Total Compensation	74,441	81,899	89,356	96,813	104,271
16	Base 12 Supplemental Days	71,531 4,769	78,748 5,250	85,964 5,731	93,180 6,212	100,396 6,693
	Total Compensation	76,300	83,998	91,695	99,392	107,089
17-20	Base	71,531	78,748	85,964	93,180	100,396
	12 Supplemental Days Longevity	4,769 858	5,250 945	5,731 1,032	6,212 1,118	6,693 1,205
	Total Compensation	77,158	84,943	92,727	100,510	108,294
21-24	Base	71,531	78,748	85,964	93,180	100,396
	12 Supplemental Days Longevity	4,769 1,288	5,250 1,417	5,731 1,547	6,212 1,677	6,693 1,807
	Total Compensation	77,588	85,415	93,242	101,069	108,896
25-27	Base	71,531	78,748	85,964	93,180	100,396
	12 Supplemental Days Longevity	4,769 1,717	5,250 1,890	5,731 2,063	6,212 2,236	6,693 2,410
	Total Compensation	78,017	85,888	93,758	101,628	109,499
28-31	Base	71,531	78,748	85,964	93,180	100,396
	12 Supplemental Days Longevity	4,769	5,250 2,362	5,731 2,579	6,212	6,693 3,012
	Total Compensation	2,146 78,446	2,362 86,360	2,579 94,274	2,795 102,187	3,012 110,101
32-35	Base	71,531	78,748	85,964	93,180	100,396
	12 Supplemental Days Longevity	4,769	5,250 2,835	5,731 3,095	6,212 3,354	6,693 3,614
	Total Compensation	2,575 78,875	2,835 86,833	3,095 94,790	3,354 102,746	110,703
36-39	Base	71,531	78,748	85,964	93,180	100,396
	12 Supplemental Days	4,769	5,250	5,731	6,212	6,693
	Longevity Total Compensation	3,004 79,304	3,307 87,305	3,610 95,305	3,914 103,306	4,217 111,306
40+	Base	71,531	78,748	85,964	93,180	100,396
	12 Supplemental Days	4,769	5,250 3,780	5,731	6,212	6,693
	Longevity Total Compensation	3,433 79,733	3,780 87,778	4,126 95,821	4,473 103,865	4,819 111,908
•	•					

Ratified 08/31/2022 Revised Longevity An RN, who holds an Educational Staff Associate Certificate (ESA), can move on the salary schedule through accumulation of Continuing Education Units (CEUs) or approved Clock Hours through the BA+90 column. Only CEUs or approved Clock Hours earned post certification can be applied to advancement on the salary schedule. Further progression requires attainment of a Master's Degree. Previous, verified, non-school nursing experience can be applied at a maximum of two years.

APPENDIX B - SUPPLEMENTAL SERVICES SCHEDULE

Co-curricular (Extension of Classroom)	Factor	
Band, High School (maximum of 2 seasons)	.095	
Band, Middle School (4 concerts per year)	.04	
Mariachi, High School	.04	
Choral, High School (3 performances per year)	.04	
Elementary School Music (4 concerts per year)	.03	
Orchestra, High School	.04	
Orchestra, Middle School	.02	
Drama I, High School (2 or more plays per year, maximum of 2 seasons.)	.095	
Drama II, High School (2 or more plays per year implemented when the cast and crew reaches 32 or higher, maximum of 2 seasons)	.065	
Leadership, High School	.095	
Grade Level Counselors (9 th ,10 th ,11 th ,12 th)	.095	

Extra-Curricular (Clubs)	Factor
Apple Bowl/Knowledge Bowl	.0512
Competitive Debate, High School	.09
Math Club	.03
Science Club, High School	.0512
Science Club, Middle School	.0512
TSA, Middle School	.0512
Robotics, High School	.0512
Robotics, Middle School	.0512
Link Crew/WEB	.0512
Honor Society	.028
Latino Culture Club	.02
GSA	.04
Pep Club	.04

Club SADD .02

High School Class Advisors	Factor
Senior	.04
Junior	.03
Sophomore	.03
Freshmen	.03

Instructional Coaches	.125
Technical Resources Trainers (TRT)	.063
Pod Leaders	.03
Auditorium Coordinator	.0512
Middle School SLC Advisors	.03
Dept. Heads (Senior High and Middle School)	
Group I, 4-10 Employees including Dept. Head	.0429
Group II, 11-15 Employees including Dept. Head	.0512

College in the classroom - All money received from a college to support College in the Classroom teachers will be paid to the respective teacher(s). This money shall be paid at the end of the year (no later than August 31).

A one-time stipend of \$200.00 will be paid to any bargaining unit member who has obtained Google Certification- Educator 1 and \$300.00 for Google Certification- Educator 2.

Each psychologist who has a psychologist intern shall receive a stipend of \$1500.

For 2022-2024, Supplemental Services pay will be calculated using the factors from Appendix B and the BA Column on the salary schedule up to 12 years of experience.

Stipend approval process:

- A. Extra Curricular:
 - 1) Initiated by advisor or administrator
 - 2) Factor is determined by the listed definition
 - 3) Must be approved by superintendent
- B. Co-Curricular:
 - 1) Initiated by the building administrator
 - 2) Must be approved by superintendent
- •Stipends will be recommended to the building principal or designee by the start of the school year. Any reduction in stipends must be submitted to the district bargaining team for approval.
- •The Supplemental Services Schedule will be approved by the district bargaining team annually.
- •Approval or disapproval of clubs will be shared in writing by the superintendent. Denials may be addressed at bargaining.

Determining the factor:

To qualify for a .02 factor, groups must meet an average of once per month and conduct 2 to 4 yearly events; for a .03 factor, groups must meet an average of twice monthly and conduct 2 to 4 yearly events; for a .04 factor, groups must meet an average of once each week and conduct 2 to 4 yearly events. Advisors to groups that conduct more than 4 yearly events may be advanced to .0512.

Factors above .0512 are recommended by the building principal and should be scheduled before the school year in June for the following year.

Events are defined as group activities under the supervision of the advisor outside of the regular meeting times, which are conducted for the benefit of group members, the school, or the community.

Curriculum Pilot

The purpose of a curriculum pilot is to make sure the curriculum being considered for adoption is effective. It also allows district leaders an opportunity to gather more data, including feedback from teachers and administrators. Piloting materials helps curriculum teams identify the strengths and areas that may need to be strengthened from each curriculum being considered for adoption. Teachers participating in a pilot will be district selected with SEA input and give feedback in the curriculum adoption process.

Teachers assigned by the District to pilot new programs The total funds available shall be \$10,000 per year and will not be carried over to the next fiscal year.	\$300.00 (and required pilot-related meetings will be paid at committee rate)
--	---

C-1 OBSERVATION FORM					
Teacher:		Sub/Grade Level:	School:	Evaluator:	
Dates:			Start Time:	End Time:	
CRITERION 1: Centering instruction on high expectations for student achievement.					

CRITERION 1: Centering instruction on high expectations for student achievement.						
P1 <u>Purpose</u> - Learning target(s) connect	P1 Purpose - Learning target(s) connected to standards					
UNSATISFACTORY - 1	UNSATISFACTORY - 1 BASIC - 2 PROFICIENT - 3 DISTINGUISHED - 4					
Lessons are not based on grade level standards or there are no learning targets aligned to the standard or the targets do not change daily.	Lessons are based on grade level standards. The daily learning target(s) align to the standard.	Lessons are based on grade level standards. The daily learning target(s) align to the standard. Students can rephrase the learning target(s) in their own words.	Lessons are based on grade level standards. The daily learning target(s) align to the standard. Students can rephrase the learning target(s) in their own words. Students can explain why the learning target(s) are important.			

P4 Purpose: Learning Target: Communication of learning target(s)					
UNSATISFACTORY - 1	BASIC - 2	PROFICIENT - 3	DISTINGUISHED - 4		
Teacher rarely states or communicates with students about the learning target(s).	Teacher states the learning target(s) once during the lesson and checks for student understanding of the learning target(s).	Teacher communicates the learning target(s) through verbal and visual strategies and checks for student understanding of the learning target(s).	Teacher communicates the learning target(s) through verbal and visual strategies, checks for student understanding of the learning target(s), and references the target(s) throughout instruction.		

P5 <u>Purpose:</u> Learning Target: Success cri	Purpose: Learning Target: Success criteria				
UNSATISFACTORY - 1	BASIC - 2	PROFICIENT - 3	DISTINGUISHED - 4		
are nonexistent or vague.		Success criteria are present and align to the learning target(s). With prompting from the teacher, students use the success criteria to communicate what they are learning.	Success criteria are present and align to the learning target(s) criteria. Students use the success criteria to communicate what they are learning.		

CEC Classroom Environment & Culture: Learning Routines					
UNSATISFACTORY - 1	BASIC - 2	PROFICIENT - 3	DISTINGUISHED - 4		
Learning routines for discussion and collaborative work are absent.	Learning routines for discussion and collaborative work are present but may not result in effective discourse. Students are held accountable for completing their work but not for learning.	Learning routines for discussion and collaborative work are present, and result in effective discourse. Students are held accountable for completing their work and for learning.	Learning routines for discussion and collaborative work are present, and result in effective discourse. Students independently use the routines during the lesson. Students are held accountable for completing their work and		
	3.		for learning. Students support the learning of others.		

EVIDENCE/ARTIFACTS:
COMMENTS:

CRITERION 2: Demonstrating effective tea SE1 Student Engagement : Quality			
UNSATISFACTORY – 1	BASIC - 2	PROFICIENT - 3	DISTINGUISHED - 4
Teacher do not asks questions to probe and deepen student understanding or uncover misconceptions.	Teacher ask questions to probe and deepen student understanding to uncover misconceptions.	Teacher ask questions to probe and deepen student understanding or uncover misconceptions. Teacher assists students in clarifying their thinking with one another.	Teacher ask questions to probe and deepen student understanding or uncover misconceptions. Teacher assists students in clarifying and assessing their thinking with one another. Students question one another to probe deeper thinking.

CRITERION 2: Demonstrating effective tea	aching practices		
SE4 <u>Student Engagement</u> : Opportu	nity and support for participation and meaning	ng making	
UNSATISFACTORY - 1	BASIC - 2	PROFICIENT - 3	DISTINGUISHED - 4
Teacher does not use engagement strategies and structures that facilitate participation and meaning making by students. Few students have the opportunity to engage in discipline-specific meaning making.	Teacher uses engagement strategies and structures that facilitate participation and meaning making by students. Some students have the opportunity to engage in discipline-specific meaning making.	Teacher sets expectation and provides support for engagement strategies and structures that facilitate participation and meaning making by students. Most students have the opportunity to engage in discipline-specific meaning making.	Teacher sets expectations and provides support for engagement strategies and structures that facilitate participation and meaning making by students. All students have the opportunity to engage in discipline-specific meaning making. Meaning making are often student-led.

CRITERIO	N 2: Demonstrating effective tea	nching practices		
SE5	Student Engagement: Student	Talk		
U	INSATISFACTORY - 1	BASIC - 2	PROFICIENT - 3	DISTINGUISHED - 4
	ninated by the teacher and/or is unrelated to the discipline.	Student talk is directed to the teacher. Talk reflects discipline-specific knowledge. Students do not provide evidence for their thinking.	Student talk is a mix of teacher-student and student-to-student. Talk reflects discipline-specific knowledge and ways of thinking. Students provide evidence to support their thinking.	Student talk is predominantly student-to-student. Talk reflects discipline-specific knowledge and ways of thinking. Students provide evidence to support their thinking. Students press on thinking to expand ideas for themselves and others.

CRITERION 2: Demonstrating effective te	aching practices		
CP5 <u>Curriculum & Pedagogy : Use</u>	of scaffolds		
UNSATISFACTORY - 1	BASIC - 2	PROFICIENT - 3	DISTINGUISHED - 4
Teacher does not provide scaffolds that are related to or support the development of the targeted concepts and/or skills. If teacher uses scaffolds, he or she does not release responsibility to students.	Teacher provides scaffolds that are clearly related to and support the development of the targeted concepts and/or skills. Using scaffolds, the teacher gradually releases responsibility to students to promote learning and independence.	Teacher provides scaffolds that are clearly related to and support the development of the targeted concepts and/or skills. Using scaffolds, the teacher gradually releases responsibility to students to promote learning and independence. Students expect to be self-reliant.	Teacher provides scaffolds and structures that are clearly related to and support the development of the targeted concepts and/or skills. Using scaffolds, the teacher gradually releases responsibility to students to promote learning and independence. Students expect to be self-reliant. Students use scaffolds across tasks with similar demands.

EVIDENCE/ARTIFACTS:
COMMENTS:

CRITERION 3: Recognizing individual students	dent learning needs and developing strateg	ies to address those needs.	
SE2 <u>Student Engagement – Intellect</u>	tual Work: Ownership of learning		
UNSATISFACTORY - 1	BASIC - 2	PROFICIENT - 3	DISTINGUISHED - 4
Teacher rarely provides opportunities and strategies for students to take ownership of their learning.	Teacher provides opportunities and strategies for students to take ownership of their learning. Most locus of control is with teacher.	Teacher provides opportunities and strategies for students to take ownership of their learning. Some locus of control is with students in ways that support student learning.	Teacher provides opportunities and strategies for students to take ownership of their learning. Most locus of control is with students in ways that support student learning.

CRITERIO	N 3: Recognizing individual stud	dent learning needs and developing strateg	ies to address those needs.	
SE3	Student Engagement - Intellect	tual Work: Capitalizing on students' strength	hs	
U	JNSATISFACTORY - 1	BASIC - 2	PROFICIENT - 3	DISTINGUISHED - 4
students' st life experie	s little knowledge of how rengths (academic background, ences and culture/language) could an asset for student learning.	Teacher has knowledge of students' strengths (academic background, life experiences and culture/language) and applies this knowledge in limited ways not connected to the unit goals.	Teacher capitalizes on students' strengths (academic background, life experiences and culture/language) and applies this knowledge in limited ways connected to the unit goals.	Teacher capitalizes on students' strengths (academic background, life experiences and culture/language) and applies this knowledge in a variety of ways connected to the unit goals.

CRITERION 3: Recognizing in	ndividual stu	dent learning needs and developing strateg	gies to address those needs.	
CP4 <u>Curriculum & Pe</u>	dagogy – Tead	ching Approaches and/or Strategies: Differe	entiated instruction for students	
UNSATISFACTORY	7 - 1	BASIC - 2	PROFICIENT - 3	DISTINGUISHED - 4
Teacher does not use strategies of differentiate for individual learn and needs.		Teacher uses one strategy –such as time, space, structure or materials- to differentiate for individual learning strengths and needs.	Teacher uses multiple strategies- such as time, space, structure or materials- to differentiate for individual learning strengths and needs.	Teacher uses multiple strategies- such as time, space, structure or materials- to differentiate for individual learning strengths and needs. Teacher provides targeted and flexible supports within the strategies.

CRITERION 3: Recognizing individual students	dent learning needs and developing strateg	gies to address those needs.	
A4 <u>Assessment for Student Learning</u>	ng - Adjustments: Teacher use of formative of	assessments	
UNSATISFACTORY - 1	BASIC - 2	PROFICIENT - 3	DISTINGUISHED - 4
Teacher does not use formative assessments to modify future lessons, make instructional adjustments, or give feedback to students.	Teacher uses formative assessments to modify future lessons or make in-the-moment instructional adjustments based on completion of task(s).	Teacher uses formative assessments to modify future lessons, makes in-the-moment instructional adjustments based on student understanding, and gives general feedback aligned with the learning target(s).	Teacher uses formative assessment to modify future lessons, makes in-the-moment instructional adjustments based on student understanding, and gives targeted feedback aligned with the learning target(s) to individual students.

EVIDENCE/ARTIFACTS:

COMMENTS:

Student Growth 3.1: Establish	Student Growth Goal(s)		
UNSATISFACTORY - 1	BASIC - 2	PROFICIENT - 3	DISTINGUISHED - 4
Does not establish student growth goal(s) or establishes inappropriate goal(s) for subgroups of students not reaching full learning potential. Goal(s) do not identify multiple, high-quality sources of data to monitor, adjust, and evaluate achievement of goal(s).	Establishes appropriate student growth goal(s) for subgroups of students not reaching full learning potential. Goal(s) do not identify multiple, high-quality sources of data to monitor, adjust, and evaluate achievement of goal(s).	Establishes appropriate student growth goal(s) for subgroups of students not reaching full learning potential. Goal(s) identify multiple, high-quality sources of data to monitor, adjust, and evaluate achievement of goal(s).	Establishes appropriate student growth goal(s) for subgroups of students not reaching full potential in collaboration with students, parents, and other school staff. Goal(s) identify multiple, high-quality sources of data to monitory, adjust, and evaluate achievement of goal(s).

Student Growth 3.2: Achievement of Student Goal(<u></u>		
UNSATISFACTORY - 1	BASIC - 2	PROFICIENT - 3	DISTINGUISHED - 4
Growth or achievement data from at least two points in time shows no evidence of growth for most students.	Multiple sources of growth or achievement data from at least two points in time show some evidence of growth for some students.	Multiple sources of growth or achievement data from at least two points in time show clear evidence of growth for most students.	Multiple sources of growth or achievement data from at least two points in time show evidence of high growth for all or nearly all students.
CVIDENCE/ARTIFACTS:			
COMMENTS:			
COMMENTS:			
COMMENTS:			

CRITERION 4: Providing clear and intentional focus on subject matter content and curriculum.					
P2 Purpose - Standards: Connection to previous and future lessons.					
UNSATISFACTORY - 1	UNSATISFACTORY - 1 BASIC - 2 PROFICIENT - 3 DISTINGUISHED - 4				
The lesson is rarely or never linked to previous and future lessons.	Lessons are clearly linked to previous and future lessons.	Lessons are clearly linked to previous and future lessons. Lessons link to a broader purpose of a transferable skill.	Lessons are clearly linked to previous and future lessons. Lessons link to a broader purpose or a transferable skill. Students can explain how lessons build on each other in a logical progression.		

CRITERION 4: Providing clear and intentional focus on subject matter content and curriculum.					
CP1 Curriculum & Pedagogy - Curriculum: Alignment of instructional materials and tasks					
UNSATISFACT	UNSATISFACTORY - 1 BASIC - 2 PROFICIENT - 3 DISTINGUISHED - 4				
Instructional materials and with the purpose of the uni		Instructional materials and tasks align with the purpose of the unit and lesson.	Instructional materials and tasks align with the purpose of the unit and lesson. Teacher makes intentional decisions about materials to support student learning of content and transferable skills.	Instructional materials and tasks align with the purpose of the unit and lesson. Teacher makes intentional decisions about materials to support student learning of content and transferable skills. Materials and tasks align with students' levels of challenge.	

CRITERION 4: Providing clear and intentional focus on subject matter content and curriculum.					
CP2 Curriculum & Pedagogy – Teaching Approaches and/or Strategies: Teacher knowledge of content					
UNSATISFACTORY - 1	UNSATISFACTORY - 1 BASIC - 2 PROFICIENT - 3 DISTINGUISHED - 4				
Teacher demonstrates a lack of knowledge of discipline-based concepts and habits of thinking by making content errors.	Teacher demonstrates an understanding of how discipline-based concepts and habits of thinking relate to one another or build upon one another within a unit.	Teacher demonstrates an understanding of how discipline-based concepts and habits of thinking relate to one another or build upon one another over the course of an academic year.	Teacher demonstrates an understanding of how discipline-based concepts and habits of thinking relate to one another or build upon one another over the course of an academic year as well as in previous and future years.		

CRITERIO	CRITERION 4: Providing clear and intentional focus on subject matter content and curriculum.					
СР3	CP3 <u>Curriculum & Pedagogy – Teaching Approaches and/or Strategies:</u> Discipline-specific teaching approaches					
J	UNSATISFACTORY - 1 BASIC - 2 PROFICIENT - 3 DISTINGUISHED - 4					

Teacher rarely uses discipline-specific	Teacher uses discipline-specific teaching	Teacher uses discipline-specific teaching	Teacher uses discipline-specific teaching approaches
teaching approaches and strategies that	approaches and strategies that develop	approaches and strategies that develop students'	and strategies that develop students' conceptual
develop students' conceptual understanding	students' conceptual understanding and	conceptual understanding and discipline-specific	understanding and discipline-specific habits of
and discipline-specific habits of thinking.	discipline-specific habits of thinking at	habits of thinking throughout the unit, but not	thinking on a daily basis.
	one or two points within a unit.	daily.	

CRITERION 4: Providing clear and intentional focus on subject matter content and curriculum.						
P3 Purpose - Standards: Design of performance task.						
UNSATISFACTORY - 1	BASIC - 2	PROFICIENT - 3	DISTINGUISHED - 4			
Performance tasks do not require a demonstration of thinking connected to the learning target.	Performance tasks require a demonstration of thinking connected to the learning target.	Performance tasks require a demonstration of thinking connected to the learning target. Performance tasks require application of discipline-specific concepts or skills.	Performance tasks require a demonstration of thinking connected to the learning target. Performance tasks require application of discipline-specific concepts or skills. Students are able to use prior learning/understandings to engage in new performance tasks.			
EVIDENCE/ARTIFACTS:						
COMMENTS:						

CRITERION 5: Fostering and managing a safe, positive learning environment. CEC1 Classroom Environment & Culture – Use of Physical Environment: Classroom arrangement and resources					
UNSATISFACTORY – 1	BASIC - 2	PROFICIENT - 3	DISTINGUISHED - 4		
Physical environment of the room is unsafe or resources are not accessible to all students to support their learning during the lesson.	The physical environment is safety. The resources, materials and technology in the classroom relate to the content or current unit and are accessible to all students.	The physical environment is safe. The resources, materials and technology in the classroom relate to the content or current unit and are accessible to all students. The arrangement of the room supports and scaffolds student learning and the purpose of the lesson.	The physical environment is safe. The resources, materials and technology in the classroom relate to the content or current unit and are accessible to all students. The arrangement of the room supports and scaffolds student learning and the purpose of the lesson. Students use resources and the arrangement of the room for learning.		

CRITERIO	CRITERION 5: Fostering and managing a safe, positive learning environment.					
CEC3	CEC3 Classroom Environment & Culture – Use of Physical Environment: Use of learning time					
U	UNSATISFACTORY – 1 BASIC - 2 PROFICIENT - 3 DISTINGUISHED - 4					
Instructiona	al time is frequently disrupted.	Some instructional time is lost through inefficient transitions or management routines. Teacher responds to student misbehavior with uneven results.	Instructional time is maximized in service of learning through efficient transitions, management routines and positive student discipline. Student misbehavior is rare.	Instructional time is maximized in service of learning through efficient transitions, management routines and positive student discipline. Students manage themselves, assist each other in managing behavior, or exhibit no misbehavior.		

CRITERION 5: Fostering and managing a safe, positive learning environment.						
CEC4 <u>Classroom Environment & Culture – Classroom Routines & Rituals:</u> Student status						
UNSATISFACTORY - 1	UNSATISFACTORY - 1 BASIC - 2 PROFICIENT - 3 DISTINGUISHED - 4					
Teacher does not develop positive	Teacher demonstrates positive	Teacher and students demonstrate positive	Teacher and students demonstrate positive			
teacher-student relationships that attend to	teacher-student relationships that foster	teacher-student and student-student relationships	teacher-student and student-student relationships that			
the students' well-being. Patterns of	students' well-being. Patterns of	that foster students' well being and develop their	foster students' well being and develop their identity			
interaction or lack of interaction promote	interaction between teacher and students	identity as learners. Patterns of interaction	as learners. Patterns of interaction between teacher			
rivalry and/or unhealthy competition among	and among students may send messages	between teacher and students and among	and students and among students indicate that all are			
students or some students are relegated to	that some students' contributions are	students indicate that all are valued for their	valued for their contributions. Teacher creates			
low status positions.	more valuable than others.	contributions.	opportunities for student status to be elevated.			

CRITERION 5: Fostering and managing a safe, positive learning environment. CEC5 Classroom Environment & Culture - Classroom Routines & Rituals: Norms for learning						
UNSATISFACTORY - 1	UNSATISFACTORY - 1 BASIC - 2 PROFICIENT - 3 DISTINGUISHED - 4					
Classroom norms are not evident and/or address risk-taking, collaboration, respect for divergent thinking or students' culture.	Classroom norms are evident but result in uneven patterns of interaction that do not encourage risk-taking, collaboration, respect for divergent thinking and students' cultures.	Classroom norms are evident and result in patterns of interaction that encourage risk-taking, collaboration, respect for divergent thinking and students' cultures.	Classroom norms are evident and result in patterns of interaction that encourage risk-taking, collaboration, respect for divergent thinking and students' cultures. Students self-monitor or remind one another of the norms.			

EVIDENCE/ARTIFACTS:		
COMMENTS:		

C-1 Observation Form 8-2018 Observation

CRITERION 6: Using multiple student data elements to modify instruction and improve student learning.						
A1 Assessment for Student Learning - Assessment: Student Self-assessment						
UNSATISFACTORY - 1	UNSATISFACTORY - 1 BASIC - 2 PROFICIENT - 3 DISTINGUISHED - 4					
Teacher does not provide an opportunity for students to assess their own learning in relation to the success criteria for the learning target(s).	Teacher provides an opportunity for students to assess their own learning in relation to the success criteria for the learning target(s) in ways that may no deepen student understanding of progress toward the target(s).	Teacher provides an opportunity for students to assess their own learning in relation to the success criteria for the learning target(s) in ways that deepen student understanding of progress toward the target(s).	Teacher provides an opportunity for students to assess their own learning in relation to the success criteria for the learning target(s) in ways that deepen student understanding of progress toward the target(s). Students use success criteria for improvement.			

CRITERION 6: Using multiple student data elements to modify instruction and improve student learning.				
A2 Assessment for Student Learning	Assessment for Student Learning - Assessment: Student use of formative assessment over time			
UNSATISFACTORY - 1	BASIC - 2	PROFICIENT - 3	DISTINGUISHED - 4	
Students do not use formative assessments to assess their own learning.	Students use formative assessments at least two to three times per year/course to assess their own learning, determine learning goals, and monitor progress over time.	Students use formative assessments at least two to three times per year/course and use formative assessments within a unit or two to assess their own learning, determine learning goals, and monitor progress over time.	Students use formative assessments at least two to three times per year/course and use formative assessments within each unit to assess their own learning, determine learning goals, and monitor progress over time.	

CRITERION 6: Using multiple student data elements to modify instruction and improve student learning.				
A3 <u>Assessment for Student Learning - Assessment:</u> Quality of formative assessment methods				
UNSATISFACTORY - 1 BASIC - 2 PROFICIENT - 3 DISTINGUISHED - 4				
Assessments tasks are not aligned with the learning target(s).	Assessment tasks allow students to demonstrate learning. The quality of the assessment methods provides no information about student thinking and needs.	Assessment tasks allow students to demonstrate learning. The quality of the assessment methods provides limited information about student thinking and needs.	Assessment tasks allow students to demonstrate learning. The quality of the assessment methods provides comprehensive information about student thinking and needs.	

CRITERION 6: Using multiple student data elements to modify instruction and improve student learning.					
A5	A5 Assessment for Student Learning - Assessment: Collection systems for formative assessment data				
UNSATISFACTORY - 1 BASIC - 2 PROFICIENT - 3 DISTINGUISHED - 4					

C-1 Observation Form 8-2018 Observation

Teacher does not have routines for recording formative assessment data.	Teacher has an observable system and routines for recording formative assessment data but does not use the system to inform instructional practice.	Teacher has an observable system and routines for recording formative assessment data, uses multiple sources and frequently uses the system for instructional purposes.	Teacher has an observable system and routines for recording formative assessment data and uses the system to inform day-to-day instructional practice.
EVIDENCE/ARTIFACTS:			
COMMENTS:			

STUDENT GROWTH CRITERION 6: Using multiple student data elements to modify instruction and improve student learning. Student Growth 6.1: Establish Student Growth Goal(s)			
UNSATISFACTORY - 1	BASIC - 2	PROFICIENT - 3	DISTINGUISHED - 4
Does not establish student growth goal(s) or establishes inappropriate goal(s) for whole classroom. Goal(s) do not identify multiple high-quality sources of data to monitor, adjust, and evaluate achievement of goal(s).	Establishes appropriate student growth goal(s) for whole classroom. Goal(s) do not identify multiple, high-quality sources of data to monitor, adjust, and evaluate achievement of goal(s).	Establishes appropriate student growth goal(s) for whole classroom. Goal(s) identify multiple, high-quality sources of data to monitor, adjust, and evaluate achievement of goal(s).	Establishes appropriate student growth goal(s) for students in collaboration with students and parents. These whole classroom goals align to school goal(s). Goal(s) identify multiple, high-quality sources of data to monitor, adjust, and evaluate achievement of goal(s).

STUDENT GROWTH CRITERION 6: Using multiple student data elements to modify instruction and improve student learning. Student Growth 6.2: Achievement of Student Growth Goal(s)				
UNSATISFACTORY - 1 BASIC - 2 PROFICIENT - 3 DISTINGUISHED - 4				
Growth or achievement data from at least two points in time shows no evidence of growth for most students. Multiple sources of growth or achievement data from at least two points in time shows no evidence of growth for most students. Multiple sources of growth or achievement data from at least two points in time show clear evidence of growth for most students. Multiple sources of growth or achievement data from at least two points in time show evidence of high growth for most students. Multiple sources of growth or achievement data from at least two points in time show evidence of high growth for most students.				
EVIDENCE/ARTIFACTS:				
	BASIC - 2 Multiple sources of growth or achievement data from at least two points in time show some evidence of growth	BASIC - 2 PROFICIENT - 3 Multiple sources of growth or achievement data from at least two points in time show some evidence of growth Multiple sources of growth or achievement data from at least two points in time show clear evidence of growth for most students.		

CRITERION 7: Communicating and collaborating with parents and the school community. PCC2 Professional Collaboration & Communication – Communication and Collaboration: Parents and guardians				
UNSATISFACTORY - 1 BASIC - 2 PROFICIENT - 3			DISTINGUISHED - 4	
Teacher rarely communicates in any manner with parents and guardians about student progress.	Teacher communicates with all parents and guardians about goals of instruction and student progress, but usually relies on only one method for communication or requires support or reminders.	Teacher communicates with all parents and guardians about goals of instruction and student progress using multiple tools to communicate in a timely and positive manner. Teacher considers the language needs of parents and guardians.	Teacher communicates with all parents and guardians about goals of instruction and student progress using multiple tools to communicate in a timely and positive manner. Teacher considers the language needs of parents and guardians. Teacher effectively engages in two-way forms of communication and is responsive to parent and guardian insights.	

CRITERION 7: Communicating and collaborating with parents and the school community.				
PCC3 <u>Professional Collaboration</u>	PCC3 <u>Professional Collaboration & Communication – Communication and Collaboration:</u> Communication within the school community about student progress			
UNSATISFACTORY - 1 BASIC - 2 PROFICIENT - 3 DISTINGUISHED - 4				
Teacher maintains student records. Teacher rarely communicates student progress information to relevant individuals within the school community.	Teacher maintains student records. Teacher communicates student progress information to relevant individuals within the school community; however, performance data may have minor flaws or be narrowly defined (e.g., test scores only).	Teacher maintains accurate and systematic student records. Teacher communicates student progress information- including both successes and challenges - to relevant individuals within the school community in a timely, accurate, and organized manner.	Teacher maintains accurate and systematic student records. Teacher communicates student progress information -including both successes and challenges- to relevant individuals within the school community in a timely, accurate and organized manner. Teacher and student communicate accurately and positively about student successes and challenges.	

EVIDENCE/ARTIFACTS:

COMMENTS:

CRITERION 8: Exhibiting collaborative and collegial practices focused on improving instructional practice and student learning.				
PCC1 <u>Professional Collab</u>	PCC1 <u>Professional Collaboration & Communication – Professional Learning and Collaboration:</u> Collaboration with peers and administrators to improve student learning.			
UNSATISFACTORY - 1 BASIC - 2 PROFICIENT - 3 DISTINGUISHED - 4				
Teacher rarely collaborates with peers or engages in inquiry for the purpose of improving instructional practice or student learning.	Teacher collaborates and engages in inquiry with peers and administrators for the purpose of improving instructional practice and student learning. Teacher provides minimal contributions.	Teacher collaborates and engages in inquiry with peers and administrators for the purpose of improving instructional practice and student learning. Teacher contributes to collaborative work.	Teacher collaborates and engages in inquiry with peers and administrators for the purpose of improving instructional practice, and student and teacher learning. Teacher occasionally leads collaborative work and/or teachers serves as a mentor for others' growth and development.	

CRITERION 8: Exhibiting collaborative and collegial practices focused on improving instructional practice and student learning.				
PCC4 <u>Professional Collaboration & Communication – Professional Learning and Collaboration:</u> Supports school, district and state curriculum, policy and initiatives				
UNSATISFACTORY - 1	BASIC - 2	PROFICIENT - 3	DISTINGUISHED - 4	
Teacher is unaware of or does not support school, district or state initiatives. Teacher violates a district policy or rarely follows district curricula/pacing guide.	Teacher supports and has an understanding of school, district and state initiatives. Teacher follows district policies and implements district curricula/pacing guides.	Teacher supports and has an understanding of school, district and state initiatives. Teacher follows district policies and implements district curricula/pacing guide. Teacher makes pacing adjustments as appropriate to meet whole-group needs without compromising an aligned curriculum.	Teacher supports and looks for opportunities to take on leadership role in developing and implementing school, district and state initiatives. Teacher follows district policies and implements district curricula/pacing guide. Teacher makes pacing adjustments as appropriate to meet whole-group and individual needs without compromising an aligned curriculum.	

CRITERION 8: Exhibiting collaborative and collegial practices focused on improving instructional practice and student learning.				
PCC5 <u>Professional Collaboration</u>	5 <u>Professional Collaboration & Communication – Professional Learning and Collaboration:</u> Ethics and advocacy			
UNSATISFACTORY - 1	BASIC - 2	PROFICIENT - 3	DISTINGUISHED - 4	
Teacher's professional role toward adults and students is unfriendly or demeaning, crosses ethical boundaries, or is unprofessional.	Teacher's professional role toward adults and students is friendly, ethical and professional and supports learning for all students, including the historically underserved.	Teacher's professional role toward adults and students is friendly, ethical and professional and supports learning for all students, including the historically underserved. Teacher advocates for fair and equitable practices for all students.	Teacher's professional role toward adults and students is friendly, ethical and professional and supports learning for all students, including the historically underserved. Teacher advocates for fair and equitable practices for all students. Teacher challenges adult attitudes and practices that may be harmful or demeaning to students.	

EVIDENCE/ARTIFACTS:		
COMMENTS:		

	wth 8.1: Establish	Team Student Growth Goal(s)				
UNSATISFAC	ГОRY - 1	BASIC - 2		PROFICIENT - 3	DISTIN	GUISHED - 4
Does not collaborate or re collaborates with other gra district team members to of develop and implement co- high-quality measures, an growth and achievement of EVIDENCE/ARTIFACT	ide, school, or istablish goal(s), to mmon, I to monitor uring the year.	Does not consistently collaborate we other grade, school, or district team members to establish goal(s), to dev and implement common, high-quali measures, and to monitor growth an achievement during the year.	grade, scho establish g ty common, l	ly and actively collaborates with other bol, or district team members to oal(s), to develop and implement nigh-quality measures, and to monitor d achievement during the year.	Leads other grade, school, or district team members establish goal(s), to develop and implement commor high-quality measures, and to monitor growth and achievement during the year.	
COMMENTS:						
Teacher (print):			Signature:		Date:	
			Signature:		Date:	
Evaluator (print):			Signature:		Date.	
Evaluator (print): Teacher (print): Evaluator (print):			Signature: Signature:		Date: Date:	
Teacher (print): Evaluator (print):			Signature:		Date:	
Teacher (print):			Signature:		Date:	

C-1 Observation Form 8-2018 Observation

C-2 - SUNNYSIDE SCHOOL DISTRICT

Classroom Teacher Comprehensive Summative Evaluation

Emple	nvee!					
Evalu	-					
		CI.	-			
	Date	Class	Du	ration		
				Criterion Score 1/2/3/4		
#1	Centering i	nstruction on high expectations for student achievement.		1/2/3/4		
#2		ting effective teaching practices.				
#3		g individual student learning needs and developing strategie	s to			
		se needs. (Includes SG 3.1, 3.2)				
#4		lear and intentional focus on subject matter content and curr	i culum.			
#5		ndmanaging a safe, positive learning environment.				
#6		iple student data elements to modify instruction and improve	e student			
ua.		ncludes SG 6.1, 6.2)				
#7	Communicating and collaborating with parents and school community.					
#8	Exhibiting collaborative and collegial practices focused on improving instructional practices and student learning. (Includes SG 8.1)					
	instruction:	ai practices and student rearning. (Includes 50 0.1)				
Comme	ents:					
COIIIII	01165.					
Overal	l Criterion !	Score				
		5-21/Basic, 22-28/Proficient, 29-32/Distinguished)				
		npact Rating				
		age, 18-20/High)				
	l Evaluatior					
(8-14/1	Unsatisfactory, 1	5-21/Basic, 22-28/Proficient, 29-32/Distinguished)				
		CIT COM A TEXT DE	TVATET	3		
		SIGNATURE	DATI	<u>1</u>		
Employee	e's Signature <i>(S</i> ig	mature is only indication of receipt)				
Administr	rator's Signature					

C-3- SUNNYSIDE SCHOOL DISTRICT

Classroom Teacher Focused Summative Evaluation

Em	ployee:				
Eva	luator:				
	Date	Cla	SS	Du	ration
#1	Centering instr	action on high expectations	for student achievement.		Criterion Score 1/2/3/4
#2		effective teaching practices			
#3		dividual student learning ne eeds. (Includes SG 3.1, 3.2)		giesto	
#4	Providing clear	and intentional focus on su	bject matter content and o	curriculum.	
#5 #6		nanaging a safe, positive lea student data elements to m		orra etindant	
#10		des SG 6.1, 6.2)	odity mstruction and impr	ove student	
#7	Communicating	g and collaborating with par			
#8		aborative and collegial prac actices and student learning		ıg	
	manachona pr	actices and stadent realining	; (1/1cardes 200 0.1)		ı
	□ #3.1	□ #3.2	□ #6.1		#6.2
Com	m ents:				
Ove	rall Evaluation Su	mm arv			
(Uı	nsatisfactory, Basic, Profi	cient, Distinguished)			
		STONIA TUDE		TN A TEL	P
		SIGNATURE		DAT	Ľ.
Emplo	male Signatura 18 mente	re is only indication of receipt)			
THE PARTY.	Nee a righterine the Sunta	e en outh euroremou of 1 gogeth)			
A dmir	nietrator's Signature				

C-4 - SUNNYSIDE SCHOOL DISTRICT

Student Growth Goal Setting

Employee:	
Date:	

Criterion	
#3	Growth focused on a subgroup of students. Write a go al consistent with Criterion 3.1 in the CEL 5D+ Evaluation Rubric. This will be your guide for professional growth this year.
#6	Growth focused on whole classroom. Write a go al consistent with Criterion 6.1 in the CEL 5D+ Evaluation Rubric. This will guide your professional growth this year.
#3	Growth measures targeted by grade-level team, and monitored throughout the year. Write a goal consistent with Criterion 8.1 in the CEL 5D+ Evaluation Rubric. This will guide your professional growth this year.

SIGNATURE	DATE
Employee's Signature	
Administrator's Signature	

^{*}Goals may need to be adjusted due to extenuating circumstances

C-5 - SUNNYSIDE SCHOOL DISTRICT

Student Learning Goal Assessment Results

Teacher:	Grade Level:
School:	Subject:
Date:	# of Students:

What patterns did you observe in student learning? For example, did all students make similar gains in
their learning, or were some groups more successful than others? What were their strengths and areas of improvement?
What changes, if any, did you make or plan to make in the future lessons so that all students continue to progress and learn?

C-6 - SUNNYSIDE SCHOOL DISTRICT Focused Evaluation Request Form

Em	plo;	yee:
----	------	------

Evaluation Criteria:

- At least 1 comprehensive evaluation every 4 years

Having met the evaluation criteria and having reviewed the Focused evaluation process				
		Check One		
#1	Centering instruction on high expectations for student achievement.	CIECIL GIE		
#2	Demonstrating effective teaching practices.			
#3	Recognizing individual student learning needs and developing strategies to			
77	address those needs. (Includes SG 3.1, 3.2)			
#4	Providing clear and intentional focus on subject matter content and curriculum.			
#5	Fostering and managing a safe, positive learning environment.			
#6	Using multiple student data elements to modify instruction and improve student			
	learning. (Includes SG 6.1, 6.2)			
#7	Communicating and collaborating with parents and school community.			
#8	Exhibiting collaborative and collegial practices focused on improving			
	instructional practices and student learning. (Includes SG 8.1)			
	If criteria 1, 2, 4, 5 or 7 are chosen, please also choose a student growth criteria bel	ow:		
	☐ Criterion 3			
	☐ Criterion 6			
	☐ Criterion 8			
O App	oroved ied			
 Explanat	ion of denial:			
	<u>SIGNATURE</u> <u>DATE</u>	<u> </u>		
Fundamental Circulation (Boundary of the Francisco of the				
Employee's Signature (Request to participate in Focused Evaluation option)				
Administra	tor's Signature			

C-7 – SUNNYSIDE SCHOOL DISTRICT

Self-Assessment Criteria Summary		Sunr	nyside Sc	hool District
Name Building This form is a self-reflection tool to guide conversation. There is no requirement to submit this form.	1=Unsatisfactory 2=Basic 3=Proficient 4=Distinguished			
Criterion #1	+- Distinguished			
Centering Instruction on high expectations for stud	ent achievement.	•		
		Score		
Connection to standards, broader purpose and transferab	le skill		P1	
Communication of learning target(s)			P4	
Success criteria and performance task(s)			P5	
High cognitive demand			SE3	
Discussion collaboration and accountability	Cuitarian #1		CEC3	
Overall self-assessment	Criterion #1			
Criterion #2: Demonstrating effective teaching practices.				
		Score]	
Quality of questioning			SE1	
Expectation, support and opportunity for participation and	d meaning making		SE5	
Substance of student talk			SE6	
Scaffolds the task		-	CP6	
Gradual release of responsibility Overall self-assessment	Criterion #2		CP7	
Overall self-basesament	CITCHOII #2			
Criterion #3: Recognizing individual student learning needs and address those needs.	developing strate	gies to	,	
Teaching point(s) are based on students' learning needs		000.0	1 _{P3}	
Ownership of learning			SE2	
Strategies that capitalize on learning needs of students			SE4	
Differentiated instruction			CP5	
Teacher use of formative assessment data			A6	
Establish Student Growth Goal(s)			3.1	
Achievement of Student Growth Goal(s)	Cultarian #3		3.2	
Overall self-assessment	Criterion #3			
Criterion #4: Providing clear and intentional focus on subject ma	tter content and	curricul Score	um.	
Connection to previous and future lessons			P2	
Alignment of instructional materials and tasks			CP1	
Discipline-specific conceptual understanding			CP2	
Pedagogical content knowledge		-	CP3 CP4	
Teacher knowledge of content Overall self-assessment	Criterion #4		CP4	
Overall sell-assessifient	Criterion #4			
Criterion #5: Fostering and managing a safe, positive learning en	ıvironme n t.	Score	1	
Accessibility and use of materials		32312	CEC2	
Arrangement of classroom			CEC1	
Use of learning time			CEC4	
Managing student behavior			CEC5	
Student status			CEC6	
Norms for learning			CEC7	

Overall self-assessment Criterion #5

Criterion #6: Using multiple student data elements to modify instruction and improve student learning.				
	Score]		
Self-assessment of learning connected to the success criteria		A1		
Demonstration of learning		A2		
Formative assessment opportunities		А3		
Collection systems for formative assessments		A4		
Student use of assessment data		A5		
Establish Student Growth Goal(s)			6.1	
Achievement of Student Growth Goal(s)			6.2	
Overall self-assessment Criterion #6				

Criterion #7:		
Communicating and collaborating with parents and school community.		
	Score	
Parents and guardians		PCC3
Communication within the school community about student progress		PCC4
Overall self-assessment Criterion #7		

practice and student learning.	Score
Collaboration with peers and administrators to improve student learning	PCC1
Professional and collegial relationships	PCCZ
Supports school, district, and state curriculum policy and initiatives	PCC5
Ethics and advocacy	PCC6
Establish Team Student Growth Goal(s)	8.1
Overall self-assessment Criterion #8	
development goal(s) for the school year. Describe the area of knowledge or skill that you would like to strengthen.	this year
	this year.
Describe the area of knowledge or skill that you would like to strengthen	·
Describe the area of knowledge or skill that you would like to strengthen What would success in this area look like? How will you know when you h	·
Describe the area of knowledge or skill that you would like to strengthen What would success in this area look like? How will you know when you h	·
Describe the area of knowledge or skill that you would like to strengthen What would success in this area look like? How will you know when you h	·
Describe the area of knowledge or skill that you would like to strengthen What would success in this area look like? How will you know when you h	·
Describe the area of knowledge or skill that you would like to strengthen What would success in this area look like? How will you know when you h	·
Describe the area of knowledge or skill that you would like to strengthen What would success in this area look like? How will you know when you h What would count as evidence of success?	·
Describe the area of knowledge or skill that you would like to strengthen when you have been successed in this area look like? How will you know when you have would count as evidence of success?	nave achieved it?
Describe the area of knowledge or skill that you would like to strengthen What would success in this area look like? How will you know when you h What would count as evidence of success? Describe the professional development activities and action plan you will p	nave achieved it?
Describe the area of knowledge or skill that you would like to strengthen What would success in this area look like? How will you know when you h What would count as evidence of success? Describe the professional development activities and action plan you will p	nave achieved it?
Describe the area of knowledge or skill that you would like to strengthen What would success in this area look like? How will you know when you h	nave achieved it?

C-8 - SUNNYSIDE SCHOOL DISTRICT

Pre-Observation Conference Form

Employee completes form and may bring to pre-observation conference but is not required to turn in.

Employee:
Observer:
Date:
Time/Period:

		Criterion
#1	What is the learning target for the lesson and how does it align to the standards?	1:P1
#2	How will the learning target be communicated with the students?	1:P4
#3	What performance task and/or assessment task will be accomplished by the students to show they have met the learning target?	1:P5, 6:A2
#4	How does this learning connect to previous and future lessons?	4:P2
#5	Briefly describe the students in this class, including those with special needs. How will you differentiate instruction for individuals or groups of students in the class?	3:P3, 4:CP1
#6	Describe any special factor that need to be taken into account regarding your students and their individual needs.	3:P3, 3:SE2
#7	Is there anything you would like me to specifically observe during this lesson?	

C-9 - SUNNYSIDE SCHOOL DISTRICT

Post-Observation Conference Form

Employee completes form and may bring to post-observation conference but is not required to turn in

Employee:		
School:		
Date:		

		Criterion
¥1	In general, how successful was the lesson? Did the students learn what you intended for them to learn? How do you know?	6: A2
#2	How do your students know if they met the learning target?	6: A1
#3	How do your classroom routines and rituals, your use of physical space and the materials in the classroom contribute to student learning?	5:CEC1, CEC2, CEC4, CEC5
¥ 4	What type of formative assessments do you provide your students?	6: A3
¥5	What system and routines do you use for recording and using formative assessments? Are your students able to use this data to monitor their progress?	6: A4, A5
4 6	How do you use formative assessment data in your teaching?	6:A6
¥7	What methods do you use to communicate student progress with families and the school community?	7: PCC3, PCC4
#8	What are some examples of your professional relationships that support student learning, and student, staff, and district growth?	8: PCC1, PCC2

APPENDIX C-10 – LONG FORM OBSERVATION OF CERTIFICATED TEACHERS

(Evaluation Criteria Checklist)

Employee	School
Assignment	Evaluator
Pre-observation Date (optional)	Observation Date
Lesson Observed	
Beginning Time	Ending
INTRODUCTION: This worksheet is to serve as a discussion evaluee. It is to provide an instrument for goal setting during	
 MEETS EXPECTATIONS AREA FOR GROWTH UNSATISFACTORY 	
1 2 3 CRITERION 1: INSTRUCTIONAL SKIL	L
 The competent teacher demonstrates instructional skills Developing appropriate lessons/activities that meet on students' knowledge, experience and student period technology to instruct students in the essential learn Using strategies that encourage independent thinkin thinking, and promote discussion among students. Monitoring, providing feedback, and evaluating studiusing rubrics and authentic assessment techniques. Presenting instruction in a clear, concise manner. Appropriately packing the activities within a lesson, including transitions. Using appropriate strategies to summarize and close COMMENTS:	clear instructional objects that build formance. uals, modeling and the use of ings. g, creative thinking, higher levels of dent progress in a variety of ways, i.e. , making full use of instructional time
1 2 3 CRITERION 2: CLASSROOM MANAGE	EMENT
The competent teacher demonstrates classroom manager 1. Maintaining a record keeping system as required by 2. Organizing the classroom to facilitate learning and cenvironment. 3. Developing effective classroom procedures and rout students. 4. Structuring the classroom environment to accommo 5. Planning for the entire instructional period including COMMENTS	law and district policy. create a stimulating, health and safe tines that define expectations for date all students.

1 2 3 CRITERION 3: PROFESSIONAL PREPARATION AND SCHOLARSHIP
 The competent teacher demonstrates professional preparation and scholarship by: Demonstrating knowledge of current theory and methods of teaching including an understanding of the essential learnings and benchmarks. Adhering to and enforcing school law, state regulations, board policy and established administrative procedures. Adjusting to changing conditions and unexpected situations. Communicating with others, sharing ideas and resources.
COMMENTS:
1 2 3 CRITERION4: EFFORT TOWARD IMPROVEMENT
 The competent teacher demonstrates effort toward improvement by: Learning, exploring and implementing new curriculum and instructional techniques. Demonstrating openness to suggestions for change and identifying areas for growth. Participating in staff development for professional growth.
COMMENTS:
CRITERION 5: THE HANDLING OF STUDENT DISCIPLIE AND ATTTENDANT PROBLEMS
 The competent teacher handles student discipline and attendant problems by: Clearly defining and communicating to students and parents/guardian classroom behavior expectations that are consistent with school and district discipline policies. Monitoring and dealing effectively with student behavior and special needs. Dealing with students fairly and consistently. Utilizing a variety of prevention/intervention strategies to encourage appropriate behavior and facilitate habits of self-discipline. Involving parents, support staff and administration in the discipline process. Maintaining confidentiality. COMMENTS:

1 2 3 CRITERION 6: INTEREST IN TEACHING PUPILS	
 The competent teacher demonstrates interest in teaching pupils by: Expecting all students to experience success. Developing positive and appropriate rapport with students. Establishing a trusting environment that fosters risk taking. Using techniques to motivate and challenge students of different ability Using effective listening/responding techniques. 	v levels.
COMMENTS:	
1 2 3 CRITERION 7: KNOWLEDGE OF SUBJECT MATTER The competent teacher demonstrates knowledge of subject matter by: 1. using the adopted curriculum and supplementing with appropriate mate 2. Keeping current with knowledge, trends, essential learnings, benchmar techniques. 3. Relating subject matter to life experiences.	
COMMENTS:	
AREA(S) OF FOCUS SELECTED BY TEACHER AND/OR ADMINISTI	RATOR
THIS FORM CAN BE USED WITH MEDIA SPECIALISTS BY MUTUA OF THE MEDIA SPECIALIST AND THE BUILDING ADMINISTRATO	
SIGNATURE OF PERSON BEING EVALUATED	DATE
SIGNATURE OF EVALUATOR DATE	

Note: Both signatures are required. Signing of this instrument acknowledges participation in, but not necessarily concurrent with, the evaluation conference. Provide a copy of this report to the employee within five (5) working days of an observation or a series of observations.

APPENDIX C-11 – EVALUATION OF CERTIFICATED TEACHERS

90 Day □		Final □		
Employee		School		
Observation Date(s)	_Start Time_		End	
Time				
Evaluator		School Year _		
			ea for n Unsatisfactory	
Instructional Skills				
2. Classroom Management				
3. Professional Preparation and Sc	cholarship			
4. Effort Toward Improvement Whe	en Needed			
5. Handling Student Discipline				
6. Interest in Teaching Pupils				
7. Knowledge of Subject Matter				
Summary:				
It is my judgment, based upon ado been	durin	that this employee's pe g the evaluation period		
(Satisfactory/Unsatisfactor	y)			
Employee's Signature		Date	3	

Evaluator's Signature		Date	
-----------------------	--	------	--

Note: Employee's signature indicates only that he/she has read and has received a copy of this evaluation not necessarily that he/she agrees with the content. Employee comments may be attached.

APPENDIX C-12 – SHORT FORM EVALUATION OF CERTIFICATED TEACHERS

Employee	 School	
Observation Date(s)Start Time		
Evaluator		r
		ea for Unsatisfactory
1. Instructional Skills		
2. Classroom Management		
3. Professional Preparation and Scholarship		
4. Effort Toward Improvement When Needed		
5. Handling Student Discipline		
6. Interest in Teaching Pupils		
7. Knowledge of Subject Matter		
Summary:		
Employee's Signature	 Date	e

Evaluator's Signature		Date	
-----------------------	--	------	--

Note: Employee's signature indicates only that he/she has read and has received a copy of this evaluation not necessarily that he/she agrees with the content. Employee comments may be attached.

APPENDIX C-13 – LONG FORM OBSERVATION OF CERTIFICATED SUPPORT STAFF

(Evaluation Criteria Checklist)

Beginning Time	Ending
Time	
Employee	School
Assignment	Evaluator
Pre-observation Date (optional)	Evaluator Observation Date
INTRODUCTION: This worksheet is to serve a evaluee. It is to provide an instrument for goal server.	as a discussion focus between the evaluator and the etting during the school year.
1. MEETS EXPECTATIONS	
2. AREA FOR GROWTH	
3. UNSATISFACTORY	
1 2 3	
CRITERION 1: KNOWLEDO	GE OF SCHOLARSHIP IN SPECIAL FIELD
 the special field as it relates to the common observes and implements Washington S applicable to the area of specialization. provides rationale for the procedures ar relates and applies knowledge, research area of specialty to the development of 	State Laws, federal laws, and district policies and processes used in the area of specialty. In findings, and theory derived from the individual's
1 2 3 CRITERION 2: SPECIALIZE	ED SKILLS

The certificated support person demonstrates a competent level of skill and knowledge in his/her specialized field. The support person:

- 1. administers assessment instruments and/or instructs others who will administer assessment instruments.
- 2. prepares case study materials that aid in the development of programs and services for students.
- 3. assists students, parents and staff in understanding and using evaluative information
- 4. develops goals and objectives which facilitate the implementation of programs and services for students.

COMMENTS:
1 2 3
CRITERION 3: MANAGEMENT OF SPECIAL AND TECHNICAL ENVIRONMENT
The certificated support person demonstrates an acceptable level of performance in managing and organizing the specialized environment. The support person:
 demonstrates an understanding of and uses resources appropriate to student needs. fosters an environment which provides privacy and protects student and family information consistent with federal and state regulations and district policies. utilizes available technology for the specialized field.
COMMENTS:
1 2 3
CRITERION 4: SUPPORT PERSON AS A PROFESSIONAL
The certificated support person demonstrates awareness of his/her limitations and strengths and demonstrates continued professional growth. The support person:
1. keeps current with changes in the law, new developments, ideas and events related to the
special field. 2. responds to suggestions for performance improvement.
3. selects and participates in professional growth activities.
COMMENTS:
1 2 2
1 2 3
CRITERION 5: INVOLVEMENT IN ASSISTING PUPILS, PARENTS AND EDUCATIONAL PERSONNEL

The certificated support person demonstrates an acceptable level of performance in offering specialized assistance in identifying those needing specialized programs. The support person:

- 1. identifies those students needing specialized programs and/or services.
- 2. consults with other professionals, school personnel, parents and students concerning needed services.

5. has an awareness of the essential learnings and benchmarks as they pertain to their specialized field and student learning.
COMMENTS:
1 2 3 CRITERION 6: INTERPERSONAL RELATIONS
The certificated support person relates in a professional manner to students, parents and educational personnel. The support person: 1. respects individual differences and demonstrates equitable treatment of others. 2. uses communication skills to acknowledge and clarify the ideas and feelings of others. 3. communicates ideas and feelings in a manner that support group processes. 4. interacts with others in a manner that communicates respect and support. 5. cooperates in and is supportive of the building and district decision-making processes.
COMMENTS:
1 2 3 CRITERION 7: EFFORT TOWARD IMPROVEMENT
The certificated support person demonstrates effort toward improvement by: 1. demonstrating willingness to learn and explore new methodology and instructional techniques. 2. implementing approved new strategies. 3. demonstrating openness to suggestions for change. 4. participating in staff development for professional growth COMMENTS:

3. develops and implements preventative and developmental program(s) that serve the needs

communicates the special needs of students to parents, staff, students and other

of all students.

professionals.

THIS FORM IS TO BE USED FOR COUNSELORS, PSYCHOLOGISTS, SLP/CDS, CERTIFIED NURSES AND MEDIA SPECIALISTS WITH MUTUAL AGREEMENT OF THE MEDIA SPECIALIZED AND THE BUILDNG ADMINISTRATOR.
SIGNATURE OF PERSON BEING EVALUATED DATE
SIGNATURE OF EVALUATOR DATE

Note: Both signatures are required. Signing of this instrument acknowledges participation in, but not necessarily concurrence with, the evaluation conference. Provide a copy of this report to the employee within five (5) working days of an observation or a series of observations.

APPENDIX C-14 – EVALUATION OF CERTIFICATED SUPPORT STAFF

90 Day □		Final 🗆	
Employee		School _	
Observation Date(s) Start Time	e		End
Time			
Evaluator		_ School `	Year
Knowledge of Scholarship in Special Field	Meets Expectations □	Area Growth	for Unsatisfactory
2. Specialized Skills			
3. Management of Special and Technical			
Environment 4. Support Person as a Professional			
5. Involvement in Assisting Pupils, Parents, and	 		
Educational Personnel 6. Interpersonal Relations			
7. Effort Toward Improvement			
Summary:			
· · ·			
It is my judgment, based upon adopted criteria, that this employee's performance has been during the evaluation period. (Satisfactory/Unsatisfactory)			
Employee's Signature		Date _	

Evaluator's Signature		Date	
-----------------------	--	------	--

Note: Employee's signature indicates only that he/she has read and has received a copy of this evaluation not necessarily that he/she agrees with the content. Employee comments may be attached.

APPENDIX C-15 – SHORT FORM EVALUATION OF CERTIFICATED SUPPORT STAFF

Employee	School	
Observation Date(s) Start Time		End
Time		
Evaluator	School Yea	ır
		ea for
Knowledge of Scholarship in Special Field		
2. Specialized Skills		
Management of Special and Technical		
Environment 4. Support Person as a Professional		
5. Involvement in Assisting Pupils, Parents, and		
51		
Educational Personnel 6. Interpersonal Relations		
7. Effort Toward improvement		
7. Enort Toward Improvement		
Summary:		
Employee's Signature	Dat	e

Evaluator's Signature		Date	
-----------------------	--	------	--

Note: Employee's signature indicates only that he/she has read and has received a copy of this evaluation not necessarily that he/she agrees with the content. Employee comments may be attached.

APPENDIX D - GRIEVANCE REVIEW REQUEST FORM

This form is to be utilized in initiating a grievance pursuant to the Grievance procedure contained in the Contract between the Board and the Association.

The completed, signed Grievance Review Request must be submitted in representing a grievance at Steps 1, 2, 3 and 4. The form must be addressed & delivered to the appropriate supervisor at Step 1 and to the Superintendent at Steps 2, 3 and 4.

ГО:	
Name	
Title	
11110	
Grievant's Name	
Address	
Address Home Phone	Position/Title
School	Department
<u></u>	Department
· ·	edure for processing grievances, I have taken the ate specifically by name and title who has officially date.)
STEP I	
STEP II	
STEP III	
OTED IV	
STEP IV	
	nce is: (Specify the section of Agreement violated, urred, and in what way there was a violation, rpretation.)
(3) The relief I am seeking	g is:
Signature	Date
·	

Appendix E Just Cause

The concept of "just cause" referenced in Article III, Section 4, requires that there be fundamental fairness in decisions related to the discipline and discharge of employees. Arbitrators often turn to the seven tests of just cause, generally phrased as follows:

- 1. Notice: Did the employer give to the employee forewarning of the possible consequences of the employee's conduct?
- 2. Reasonable Rule or Order: Is the District's rule, or the supervisor's order, reasonable for the orderly, efficient or safe operation of the District?
- 3. Investigation: Prior to discipline, did the District make an effort to determine if the employee violated or disobeyed the rule or order?
- 4. Fair investigation: Was the investigation conducted fairly and objectively?
- 5. Proof: Did the person making the decision about the employee's conduct obtain sufficient evidence to substantiate the decision?
- 6. Equal Treatment: Has the District applied its rules and penalties even-handedly?
- 7. Penalty: Was the discipline reasonable related to the seriousness of the offense and the employee's past record?

A "no" answer to one or more of the above questions may mean that just cause either was not satisfied or at least was seriously weakened in that some arbitrary, capricious, or discriminatory element was present.

These tests are printed here for the education of employees and supervisors, and not as a limitation on the rights of the Association, District or employees in any particular case.

The above seven steps may not be strictly adhered to in cases of gross antisocial behavior which may merit immediate corrective action.

1		$oldsymbol{F}$	
125 Plan	73	Family Illness Leave	60
\boldsymbol{A}		\boldsymbol{G}	
Academic Freedom	50 6 77 79 77 10 5	Grievance Arbitration Hearings Continuity Definition Individual Complaints Procedure Review Request Form Time Limits	76 78 79 76 78 76 134 78
Association Rights	4	H	_
В		Hiring Practices Hourly Rate	7 71
Bereavement Leave Building Budget Committee	61 54	I	/1
\boldsymbol{c}		IEP Preparation Time Insurance	43
Class Size	44	Issuance of Contracts	73 7
Classroom Supplies Classroom Visitation	51 51	J	,
Closure (School)	68	Job Sharing	71
Conferences	68	Jury Duty Leave	62
Conformity to Law	3	Just Cause	135
D		L	
Deferred Compensation Definitions Distribution of Contract Due Process Dues Deductions Duration Re-Openers Term of Agreement E Educational Staff Associations Emergency Leave	73 1 3 8 5 80 80 80	Leaves Adoption Bereavement Emergency Family Illness Jury Duty Maternity Military Other Parental Paternity Personal Leave	56 61 60 60 62 61 62 64 61 61
Employee Facilities	11	Professional Leave	63
Employee Protection Employer's Responsibilities Employer's Rights Evaluation 1	12 4 4 6-31	Professional Training Sick Sick Leave Sharing M	63 56 58
Evaluation/Observation	122	Mentor Teachers	52
Forms86	-132	Military Leave	62

N		Sick Leave	56
No Strike	6	Sick Leave Sharing	58
Non-Discrimination	7	Staff Development	52
		Status of the Agreement	2
0		Student Discipline	48
Observations	33	Student Teachers	52
Other Leave	64	Substitute Employee	2
P		Supplemental Days	69
	60	T	
Personal Leave	60	Transfers	10
Personnel Files	9	Involuntary	11
Preamble Description Position	1	Voluntary	10
Preparation Periods	41	Travel	73
Preparation Time	42	Tuition Reimbursement	73
IEP Printing of Contract	43		, 0
Printing of Contract Probation	_	V	
Probationary	16, 28	Vacancies	10
Procedure	34	Visitation Days	53
Professional Growth Plan	16	W	
Professional Leave	63		
Promotion Promotion	10	Work Day	66
	10	Work Performed by District	
R		Employees	52
Recall	37	Work Year	66
Notification	39		
Procedure	38		
Recognition	1		
Reduction in Force			
Affirmative Action	40		
Reduction in Force (RIF)	37		
Criteria	37		
Initiation of Layoffs	37		
Layoff Benefits	39		
Procedure	38		
Seniority	37		
State Accreditation	40		
Replacement Employee	2		
Representation Fees	5		
\boldsymbol{S}			
Safe Working Conditions	12		
Salary	71		
Provisions Governing Sch			
Schedule for 2022-2023	81		
Supplemental Services			
Schedule			
School Closure or Delay			
Seniority	37		